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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
B 5 47 22

Audited results for
the year ended 30 April

BEMA=1THILFEEZ

R
2020 2019 Changes
CERRAE R U 5 W)
Revenue (HKS$000) sk (F L) 274,577 282,743 (8,166)
Loss for the year (HK$°000) KAERE R (T ) (68,145) (45,422) (22,723)
Loss per share (HK cent) g e 18 (AL ) (36.24) (24.16) (12.08)
Adjusted LBITDA (HKS$°000) KB LBITDA ( T# )
(Note 1) (MtaEl) 125) (20,754) 20,629
As at As at
30 April 30 April
2020 2019
BB ORE R FUE Changes
WH=4+H WH="+H 5 W)
Gearing ratio (%) (Note 2) EAREEILR %) (Hi2) 14.9% 2.8% 12.1%

Notes :

1.

Adjusted LBITDA for the year ended 30 April 2020, computed
as loss before tax excluding net fair value loss on financial asset
at FVTPL, realised loss on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL,
impairment of property, plant and equipment, depreciation and
finance cost. Adjusted LBITDA for the year ended 30 April
2019, computed as loss before tax excluding net fair value loss on
financial asset at FVTPL, realised gain on disposal of financial
asset at FVTPL, impairment of property, plant and equipment,
depreciation and finance cost.

Gearing ratio is defined as total debts, including bank and other
borrowings and lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases
over shareholders’ equity.

Wit -

HEFFENH =T HILEEREHE
LBITDA j#% B B 51 e 48 i 0% 4% A fo 8 51 A 8]
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
3

On behalf of the Board of Directors (the “Board” or “Directors”),
I hereby present the results of QPL International Holdings Limited (the
“Company”’) and its subsidiaries (collectively the “Group”) for the
year ended 30 April 2020.

FINANCIAL RESULTS

For the fiscal year under review, the Group reported a turnover of
HK$274.58 million, representing a decrease of 2.89% as compared
with HK$282.74 million for the previous year. The Group’s
consolidated loss for the year amounted to HK$68.15 million as
compared with a consolidated loss of HK$45.42 million for the
previous year. Basic and diluted loss per share was HK36.24 cents
(2019 (restated): HK24.16 cents). Recurring LBITDA, computed
as loss before tax excluding net fair value loss on financial asset
at FVTPL, realised loss on disposal of financial asset at FVTPL,
impairment of property, plant and equipment, depreciation and
finance cost, amounted to a LBITDA of HKS$0.13 million (2019:
Recurring LBITDA, computed as loss before tax excluding net fair
value loss on financial asset at FVTPL, realised gain on disposal
of financial asset at FVTPL, impairment of property, plant and
equipment, depreciation and finance cost, amounted to a LBITDA
of HK$20.8 million).

DIVIDEND

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend for
the year (2019: nil).

BUSINESS REVIEW

During the year under review, the Group was suffered from
unfavourable business environment and recorded a decrease in
turnover by 2.89% to HK$274.58 million (2019: HK$282.74
million) during the year.

During the year, staff costs decreased by 6.31% to HKS$79.27
million (2019: HK$84.61 million) representing 28.87% (2019:
29.93%) of the Group’s turnover. Other expenses, mainly included
factory operating costs such as repair and maintenance expenses
of HK$23.61 million (2019: HK$21.11 million) and fuel expenses
of HK$21.36 million (2019: HK$20.22 million), decreased by
7.81% to HK$82.07 million (2019: HK$89.02 million) representing
29.89% (2019: 31.48%) of the Group’s turnover during the year.
The Group will continue to monitor the market and consequently
adjust its labour force and labour structure in order to achieve a
better staff mix to enhance labour efficiency. The Group will also
continuously tighten its expenditure in its efforts to minimise the
impact of increasing factory operating costs.
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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Besides, the financial results of the Group were also affected by
(i) the non-cash expense of an impairment of property, plant and
equipment of HK$24.74 million (2019: HK$1.37 million) during
the year under review due to the expected deterioration in the
long-term profitability of the Group’s business, and (ii) the net
fair value loss on financial asset at FVTPL of HK$11.38 million
during the year under review. The net fair value loss on financial
asset at FVTPL comprised of the fair value loss on investment in
listed equity securities of China Properties Investment Holdings
Limited (“CPI”) (approximately HK$3.29 million) and China
Investment and Finance Group Limited (“CIF”) (approximately
HK$3.88 million). Details of the financial asset at FVTPL are
disclosed in the “Significant Investments” section below.

PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to strengthen its engineering and
production departments in order to maintain its competitive edges
for short lead times and high production planning flexibility.
These competitive edges will enable the Group to serve its
customers better and should expand the Group’s market share.

In order to improve the Group’s operational performance, the
Group will continue to implement plans to increase its production
efficiency and capacity. In order to improve the Group’s
competitiveness and fulfill different production requirements, the
Group would deploy resources to upgrade and restructure existing
plants and machineries, and environmental protection facilities.

In addition, the Group will continue to explore other business
opportunities with a view to expanding its principal manufacturing
business and generating improved returns to our shareholders.

I Ah - A 42 Y BB 2E AR IR A2 B DL W IE R
R (1) FR O TE O AS 4R I SE TS 0 IR 0 R B
55 5 A (] B AR B A R A 2 - R I R 2 e
wH4E IE B4 B %224,740,000% 0 ( —F — JL4FE:
1,370,000 JC) 5 K (ii) i B B AR BE 4 2 o 5T
AFE 55 2 4 RlOE A A o S 155 811,380,000
JCe N REFI A 2 & RE E N REEE
FHARES IR ER P EEEREERAERL
A (AP B2l ) Kb o 4% /il 42 18 A PR
AT EBRE]) 2 EiTRAR RS 2 A A E
15 43,290,0007 JC K #13,880,0007 JC « A B ¥ 24
FAHFT AR 2 S RE B REIE R N ST E R E
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7 B2 I A 2 o i E O R 2 R P DA AR R R
A #4075 S By [H] 0 52 88 B B A s 2R 7 B 58 4 )
BRSSO F R RALE LR R
P AL MRS > I A 4Ok A 4 T G 1T 85 A A R

By TARTI AL B 2 B R B A A N AR A
7 8 T AR AR I R WY R o J 4R TE AR S
f 38 T 1 B 2 BOAS [R] AR 2 B2 > A 4R 1 o e
BRI 8 S FE AL B R b s DA S BRAR B

b A o 7 B2 [ SN A A % U WD 0 R R E R K
5 37 7% Jse SR 2 B A ] s g L A 7 A



CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT

BV e

SIGNIFICANT INVESTMENTS

Since there was no financial asset at FVTPL and other investments
held by the Group valued more than 5% of the total assets of the
Group as at 30 April 2020, there were no significant investments
held by the Group. Details of the financial asset at FVTPL held

by the Group were as follows:

Financial asset at FVTPL A RMERIABRZ SE E

Listed equity securities NN

WLS Holdings Limited (“WLS”) TR A AR ([ERE])

CIF o B Bl

CPI HE B R E

China e-Wallet Payment Group Limited [ #8652 1 45 B 45 fR A A
(“CEW”) (MBI ])

Other listed equity securities (Note 1) Hofly bl B AR 55 (B AE1)

Sub-total N

Unlisted equity securities I b IR AR 55

The Fund B

Total A5t

Note:

1. As at 30 April 2020, other listed equity securities comprised 8

listed equity securities and none of them was more than 1% of the

total assets of the Group.
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CHAIRMAN'S STATEMENT
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WLS, CIF, CPI and CEW are listed on the Stock Exchange of
Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange™). The major activities
of WLS are the provision of scaffolding and fitting out services
and other services for construction and buildings work, provision
of gondolas, parapet railings and access equipment installation
and maintenance services, money lending business, securities
investment business and assets management business. The major
activities of CIF are trading of securities and investment holding.
The major activities of CPI are the properties investment, money
lending and financial services. The major activities of CEW are
the provision of programming and advertising solutions in mobile
platform, and distribution of computer-related and mobile-related
electronic products and accessories.

The Directors considered that the future prospects of the financial
asset at FVTPL held by the Group may be affected by external
market conditions, and the Directors will continue to monitor and
assess the Group’s investment.

LIQUIDITY AND FINANCIAL RESOURCES

During the year under review, the increase in Group’s cash flow
generated from operating activities was mainly due to the decrease
in other receivables from suppliers by approximately HK$54.43
million.

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s bank balances and cash
amounted to HK$154.89 million (2019: HK$131.28 million).
To finance its working capital, the Group has incurred total
outstanding debts of HK$59.65 million as at 30 April 2020 (2019:
HKS$13.06 million), which comprised HK$37.63 million (2019:
HK$0.46 million) of lease liabilities/obligations under finance
leases and HK$22.02 million (2019: HK$12.60 million) of amount
due to a director. In terms of interest costs, included in the
outstanding debts, HK$37.63 million (2019: HK$0.46 million) was
interest bearing and HK$22.02 million (2019: HK$12.60 million)
was interest free.

The gearing ratio was 14.9% as at 30 April 2020 (2019: 2.8%).

CAPITAL STRUCTURE

During the year under review, no material fluctuation was noted
on the capital structure of the Group.

TR ~ B B P BB BRI s
REEB LS T ARA A (TBAH)) Lo
e 1 £ 2SR M 1R I i 50 M i i AR 2R 5
R A6 MR B B At A o e T TR R
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HEAE S ~ A5 REETS - 8 2 B0 S O A A
EFH oPHREMENTEEF B HFEEUL
BEER -FRERRENEEEE Y KR
B~ A B R B o B B 0 B SEH A
B B 7 & e B B B S8 DL R ) B R I & S
) K Bl B 1 B PE A o

EHEL AL [@Fﬁhﬁi””‘fﬁﬁﬁ)\?ﬁﬁnz
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FOREIGN EXCHANGE RISK MANAGEMENT

The Group’s transactions and monetary assets are primarily
denominated in Hong Kong dollars, US dollars and Renminbi.
The fluctuations in currency exchange rates during the year ended
30 April 2020 did not adversely affect the Group’s operations or
liquidity.

During the year under review, no foreign exchange contract was
entered into by the Group to hedge against the Group’s exposure
to currency fluctuations and it is the policy of the Group not to
enter into any derivative contracts purely for speculative activities.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 30 April 2020 and 2019, the Group did not pledge any
assets. As at 30 April 2020, motor vehicles with a carrying amount
of approximately HK$84,000 (2019: HK$768,000) were assets held
under lease liabilities/finance leases.

CAPITAL EXPENDITURE

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Group invested HK$3.40
million (2019: HK$10.79 million) in acquiring property, plant and
equipment. This capital expenditure was financed mainly from
internal financial resources.

EMPLOYEES AND EMOLUMENT POLICY

As at 30 April 2020, the total number of employees of the Group
was approximately 780 (2019: 1,010). The Group maintains
its emolument policy to ensure that employee remuneration is
commensurate with job nature, qualifications and experience. The
Group continues to offer competitive remuneration packages,
share options and other benefits to eligible staff, based on the
performance of the Group and of individual employees.

CAPITAL REORGANISATION

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the shareholders of
the Company at the special general meeting held on 29 April 2020,
with effective from 5 May 2020, (i) twelve issued shares of a par
value of HK$0.08 each in the issued share capital of the Company
be consolidated into one share of a par value of HK$0.96 each in
the issued share capital of the Company (“Consolidated Share”)
and (ii) the issued share capital of the Company be reduced by (a)
rounding down the number of Consolidated Share in the issued
share capital of the Company to the nearest whole number by
cancelling any fraction of a Consolidated Share in the issued share
capital of the Company; and (b) cancelling the paid up capital
of the Company to the extent of HK$0.95 on each of the then
issued Consolidated Share such that the par value of each issued
Consolidated Share be reduced from HK$0.96 to HK$0.01.
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APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, I would like to take this opportunity
to express my gratitude to my fellow Directors and all staff for
their efforts and contribution. Besides, I also would like to offer
my sincere appreciation to all customers, business partners and
Shareholders for their continuing support.

By Order of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Executive Chairman and Chief Executive

Hong Kong, 27 July 2020
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BIOGRAPHICAL DETAILS OF DIRECTORS

w3 i

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. Li Tung Lok, aged 68, is the founder of the Group. Mr. Li has
been an Executive Director and Executive Chairman of the Board
since January 1989. Mr. Li has also served as the Chief Executive
of the Company since January 1989 (except for the period from
February 2004 to December 2008). He is also a member of
Remuneration Committee of the Company. Mr. Li is responsible
for the Group’s corporate strategic planning, overall management,
business and product development. He has a B. Sc. Degree in
Chemical Engineering and over 40 years of experience in servicing
the semiconductor industry.

Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick, aged 50, has been an Executive
Director of the Company since December 2008. He is responsible
for the Group’s overall sales, services and supplies management.
Mr. Phen obtained his bachelor’s degree in Engineering from
Loughborough University of Technology, Loughborough, United
Kingdom. He has over 25 years of experience in semiconductor
sales, services and supplies management through his previous
employment with different companies in Hong Kong.

Ms. Tung Siu Ching, aged 66, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since June 2015. Ms. Tung engaged
in import and export industry for more than 25 years. She held
management positions in several trading companies and was
responsible for regional marketing strategy and internal staff
training. Ms. Tung has extensive knowledge in corporate operation
management and in marketing in the PRC and Europe.

Mr. Lai Sau Him, aged 43, has been appointed as an Executive
Director of the Company since 8 May 2020. Mr. Lai is responsible
for the Group’s business development. Mr. Lai was engaged in
freight forwarding industry for more than 20 years and has deep
connection and relationship with people engaged in different
aspects. Prior to joining the Group, he was a director of a well
established freight forwarding and logistics one-stop service
provider with over 200 employees in Hong Kong and has acquired
extensive knowledge in corporate operation management. Mr. Lai
also has extensive experience in financial investments in Asia.
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INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE
DIRECTORS

Mr. Chu Chun On Franco, aged 37, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
September 2016. He is also a member of each of the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination
Committee. He is a Certified Financial Planner registered with
Institute of Financial Planners of Hong Kong and hold a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting and Finance
from Simon Fraser University in Canada. He is currently a
responsible officer of a licensed corporation to carry out type 1 (dealing
in securities) regulated activities under the Securities and Futures
Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (“SFO”).

Ms. Chung Hoi Yan, aged 38, has been appointed as an
Independent Non-Executive Director of the Company since
November 2016. She is also the Chairman of the Audit Committee
and the Nomination Committee and a member of each of the
Remuneration Committee. She is a qualified member of the
Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants and hold a
Bachelor of Business Administration in Accounting from the City
University of Hong Kong. She has over 10 years of experience in
the auditing and the finance and accounting field. She is currently
a finance manager of a company of which is listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange.

Mr. Liu Rongrui, aged 37, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-Exentive Director of the Company since April 2019. He
is also the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee and a
member of each of the Audit Committee and the Nomination
Committee. Mr. Liu was graduated from the profession of law of
China Central Radio and TV University (419 B #% EHR K ) (in
cooperation with China University of Political Science and Law ( 1
B B2 K2 ) ) in January 2014. Since 2003, he has been working
at the No. 6 Detachment of Chinese Armed Police in Shenzhen,
the PRC as propagandist of the regulation and gained extensive
knowledge in risk management and compliance.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company is committed to building and maintaining best
practice standards of corporate governance. The corporate
governance principles of the Company emphasise a quality Board,
effective internal controls, stringent disclosure practices and
transparency, independence and accountability to all Shareholders.

The Company has adopted its own code on corporate governance
practices (the “QPL Code”) incorporating the principles and
code provisions set out in the Corporate Governance Code (the
“CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 to the Listing Rules on
the Stock Exchange. A copy of the QPL code is posted on the
Company’s website.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Company has applied
the principles and complied with all code provisions set out in
the CG Code except for the deviations explained in the relevant
paragraphs below.

THE BOARD

ROLE OF THE BOARD

The Board assumes responsibility for leadership and control of
the Company and is collectively responsible for promoting the
success of the Company by directing and supervising the Group’s
affairs. Responsibilities of the Board include but are not limited
to the formulation of the Group’s strategy and policies, setting of
corporate and management targets and key operational initiatives,
monitoring and control of operational and financial performance,
and approval of major capital expenditures, major investments,
material acquisitions and disposal of assets, corporate or
financial restructuring and significant operational financial and
management matters.

The Board delegates the day-to-day management and operations
of the Group’s businesses to the executive management under
the supervision of the chief executive of the Company (“Chief
Executive”). The division of responsibilities between the Board
and the management is set out in the QPL Code.

Three Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the
Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, have
also been established to oversee particular aspects of the Group’s
affairs. Details of these three committees are set out in the
relevant paragraphs below.
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The Company has established a policy enabling the Directors to
seek independent professional advice in appropriate circumstances
at the Company’s expense. The Board will provide separate
independent professional advice to the Directors to assist them to
discharge their duties to the Company.

BOARD COMPOSITION

The structure, size and composition of the Board are reviewed
from time to time to ensure that the Board has a balanced
composition of skills and experience appropriate for the
requirements of the businesses of the Group, and that the balance
between executive Directors and independent non-executive
Directors is sufficient to provide adequate checks for safeguarding
the interests of the Shareholders and to enable the Board to
exercise independent judgment.

As at 30 April 2020, the Board comprised seven Directors,
including four executive Directors, one of whom is the founder
of the Group, Chairman of the Board and Chief Executive, and
three independent non-executive Directors.

The composition of the Board and the Board committees, and the
individual attendance records of each Director at the Board and
Board committees’ meetings during the year are set out below:

AN F I E B A R S R I UL oK
o7 HAER L BN A R SR - A I
A £ 8 R Sr SR L DA B 3 SR AT
BB AN T Z WK

o Z ALK

AR T AN A w2 SR R A
DA O 2 2 @ TR B A 4R ) 2685 10 B A6 8 T AR
Bl MP T EFAB I FATEFZ
Yt AL A o LA SRR A A DA AR B AR 2 A
A J e T g A S ) B

MRE-F_FFEMA=tH EHFghLLESF
AL RN ZRMATHE SR (Kb — & B AL E A
N - e T AT AR M =S JE
fridgio

EHGREFGZHG AN URFERKE
FREHGRERGZEGER WA DFEL
R FII T

Meeting Attendance/Eligible to attend

LE LS Va1l
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Board Committee Committee Committee General

Name of Directors meetings meetings meetings meetings Meetings

£33 H #4
HHEH HHEAEHR ZHEEER  ZAGER  ZAGER T N
Executive Directors T H
Lai Sau Him (Note 1) RSrak (Matl) 0/0 N/A R N/A R A N/A R A 0/0
Li Tung Lok EEE 45 N/AREA 22 N/ARHE 0/2
Phen Hoi Ping Patrick wilgr 4/5 N/AREH N/ANEH N/AREH 212
Tung Siu Ching EN 515 NAREA  NAREH  NAAREH 12
Wong Ka Lok Andrew (Note 2) ¥ %4 (Mfit2) 5/5  N/AAN#EA N/A R #5 N/AT# A 212
Independent LIS K

Non-executive Directors

Chu Chun On Franco RIRGE 515 22 22 22 0/2
Chung Hoi Yan LR 515 212 22 22 0/2
Liu Rongrui Bt 5 515 212 212 212 012
Note: Kt -
1. Mr. Lai Sau Him was appointed on 8 May 2020. 1. HApiese b —F R H NH R

2. Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew was resigned on 8 May 2020.

2. WRGETA P ZF _FERHANH BT -
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Code provision A.6.7 and E.1.2 of the CG Code stipulates that the
Chairman of the Board should attend the annual general meeting
of the Company and non-executive Director should attend general
meetings of the Company. Owing to other business engagements
and evolving coronavirus (COVID-19) situation, the Chairman of
the Board, Mr. Li Tung Lok and three independent non-executive
Directors, Mr. Chu Chun On Franco, Ms. Chung Hoi Yan and
Mr. Liu Rongrui were unable to attend the general meetings
of the Company held on 30 October 2019 and 29 April 2020.
However, the senior management and the executive Directors of
the Company subsequently reported to them on the enquiries from
the shareholders of the Company in the general meetings for them
to gain and develop a balanced understanding of the views of
shareholders of the Company.

The Directors have extensive industry knowledge and experience
in corporate management, strategic planning, legal, accounting
and financial matters. Of the seven Directors, one independent
non-executive Directors are qualified accountants.

Biographical details of the Directors are set out in the “Biographical
Details of Directors” section on this annual report. In addition,
a list containing the names of the Directors and their roles and
functions is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

The Board has complied with the Listing Rules in having at
least three independent non-executive Directors (representing
at least one-third of the Board) with at least one independent
non-executive Director possessing appropriate professional
qualifications or accounting or related financial management
expertise.

The Board has assessed the independence of all of the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(i1) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members of
the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment.
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BOARD AND BOARD COMMITTEES" MEETINGS
In addition to the Board meetings, the Chairman holds at least
two meetings with the independent non-executive Directors
annually without the presence of the executive Director.

The Board conducts meetings on a regular basis and on an ad hoc
basis. The bye-laws of the Company (the “Bye-laws”) allow Board
meetings to be conducted by means of a conference telephone or
similar communications equipment by means of which all persons
participating in the meeting are capable of hearing each other.
Also, a resolution in writing signed by each of the Directors for
the time being in the relevant territories shall, provided such
Directors would constitute a quorum at any meeting of the Board
convened to consider the resolution, be valid and effectual.

At least 14 days’ notice for regular Board and Board committees’
meetings and reasonable notice for non-regular Board and
Board committees’ meetings are given to all Directors/committee
members so as to ensure that each of them had an opportunity
to attend the meetings. The company secretary of the Company
(the “Company Secretary”) assists the Chairman of the Board
and Board committees in preparing the agenda for meetings and
ensures that all applicable rules and regulations are complied with.
The agenda and the accompanying meeting papers are sent in full
to all Directors/committee members at least 3 days before the date
of meetings.

After the Board and Board committees’ meeting, draft minutes are
circulated to all Directors/committees members for their comment
before execution and approval. All minutes are kept by the
Company Secretary and available for inspection at any reasonable
time on reasonable notice given by the Directors/committee
members.
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CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code stipulates that the roles of
chairman and chief executive should be separate and should not
be performed by the same individual.

Mr. Li Tung Lok has been the Chairman of the Board since the
establishment of the Company in January 1989. Mr. Li has also
served as the Chief Executive since January 1989 (except for
the period from February 2004 to December 2008). Being the
founder of the Group, Mr. Li’s industry expertise and detailed
understanding of the Company’s operations is highly regarded by
the Company. Accordingly, vesting the roles of Chairman of the
Board and Chief Executive in Mr. Li adds significant value to the
Company’s business growth while enhancing the efficiency of the
decision-making process in response to the changing environment.
Given all major decisions are reserved to the Board and three out
of seven Board members are independent non-executive Directors,
the Company considers that there is an adequate balance of power
and authority in place between the Board and the management of
the Company.

NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The non-executive Directors are appointed for a fixed term of
not more than three years, subject to retirement and re-election
pursuant to the Bye-laws.

APPOINTMENT, RETIREMENT AND
RE-ELECTION OF DIRECTORS

Code provision A.4.2 of the CG Code stipulates that every
director, including those appointed for a specific term, should be
subject to retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Under the bye-laws of the Company, half of the Directors
(excluding Director(s) holding office as executive chairman
and/or managing director, who is/are, by virtue of Bermuda law,
exempted from retirement by rotation) shall retire from office at
each annual general meeting of the Company and shall be eligible
for re-election. As the executive Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li
Tung Lok is not subject to retirement by rotation. In order to
comply with Code provision A.4.2, Mr. Li Tung Lok has agreed
to voluntarily retire and be re-elected at least once every three
years. At the annual general meeting of the Company held on
31 October 2018, Mr. Li Tung Lok retired from office and was
re-elected as an executive Director.
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The Company currently does not have a Director holding office as
its managing director.

A retiring Director is eligible for re-election and the re-election
of retiring Directors at general meetings is dealt with by
separate individual resolutions. Where vacancies arise at the
Board, candidates are proposed and put forward to the Board
for consideration and approval. The Shareholders may propose
a candidate for election as a Director in accordance with the
Bye-laws. The procedures for such proposal are posted on the
website of the Company.

DIRECTORS’ TRAINING

The Board was informed of updates of current Listing Rules,
accounting practices and disclosure requirements as and when
necessary.

The Directors understand the need to continue to develop and
refresh their knowledge and skills for making contributions to
the Company. During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Directors
attended external seminars and read materials on topics relevant
to their duties as Directors. The Directors have been required to
provide the Company with their training records on an annual
basis, and such records are maintained by the Company Secretary.
In addition, the Directors also disclose to the Company their
interests as directors or other offices in other public companies
in a timely manner and update the Company on any subsequent
changes.

MODEL CODE FOR SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS
The Board has adopted the Model Code for Securities
Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the “Model Code™)
as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing Rules for dealings in
the securities of the Company by Directors. All Directors have
confirmed, following specific enquiry by the Company, that they
have fully complied with the required standard set out in the
Model Code and its code of conduct regarding directors’ securities
transactions throughout the year under review.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary is responsible to the Board for ensuring
that the Board procedures are followed and the Board activities are
efficiently and effectively conducted. These objectives are achieved
through adherence to proper Board procedures and the timely
preparation and dissemination of meeting agendas and papers
to the Directors. Minutes of all Board and Board committees’
meetings are prepared and maintained by the Company Secretary
to record in sufficient details the matters considered and decisions
reached by the Board or Board committees. All draft and final
minutes of Board and Board committees’ meetings are sent to the
Directors and committee members respectively for comments and
are available for inspection by any Director upon request.

The Company Secretary is responsible for ensuring that the
Board is fully apprised of all legislative, regulatory and corporate
governance developments relating to the Group and that it takes
these into consideration when making decisions for the Group.

The Company Secretary is also directly responsible for the
Group’s compliance with all obligations under the Listing Rules
and The Codes on Takeovers and Mergers and Share Repurchases,
including the preparation, publication and despatch of annual
reports and interim reports within the time limits laid down in
the Listing Rules and the timely dissemination of the same to the
Shareholders.

Furthermore, the Company Secretary advises the Directors on
their obligations for disclosure of interests and dealings in the
Group’s securities, connected transactions and inside information
and ensures that the standards and disclosures required by the
Listing Rules are complied and, where required, reported in the
annual report of the Company.

The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is
subject to Board approval in accordance with the Bye-laws. All
members of the Board have access to the advice and service of
the Company Secretary. Mr. Chung Yuk Lun was the Company
Secretary of the Company and has day-to-day knowledge of the
Group’s affairs. The Company Secretary confirmed that he has
complied with all the required qualifications, experience and
training requirements of the Listing Rules.
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ACCOUNTABILITY AND AUDIT

FINANCIAL REPORTING

The annual and interim results of the Group are published in a
timely manner, within three months and two months respectively
of the year end and the half year.

DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The Directors are responsible for ensuring that proper accounting
records are kept so that the financial statements can be prepared
in accordance with the appropriate accounting policies, applicable
accounting standards and the disclosure requirements of the Hong
Kong Companies Ordinance.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements for the year
under review, the Directors have:

- selected suitable accounting policies and applied them on a
consistent basis;

- made judgments and estimates that are prudent, fair and
reasonable; and

- ensure that they are prepared on a going concern basis.

Senior management of the Company has provided all members
of the Board with monthly updates giving a balanced and
understandable assessment of the Company’s performance,
business activities and development of the Group in sufficient
detail to enable the Board as a whole and each Director to
discharge their duties.

The statement of the Company’s external auditor, HLB Hodgson
Impey Cheng Limited (“HLB”), regarding their reporting
responsibility is set out in the Independent Auditors’ Report on
this annual report.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established in April 2000. As at
30 April 2020, the Audit Committee has consisted of three
independent non-executive Directors, namely, Ms. Chung Hoi Yan
(being the Chairman of the Audit Committee), Mr. Chu Chun On
Franco and Mr. Liu Rongrui. Ms. Chung Hoi Yan is a qualified
accountant with extensive experience in accounting, audit and
financial matters.

The terms of reference of the Audit Committee are consistent
with those set out in the CG Code and are posted on the websites
of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee include:

. overseeing the relationship between the Group and its
external auditor;

. reviewing the appointment of the external auditor to ensure
continuing auditor’s independence;

. reviewing the Group’s preliminary results, interim results
and annual financial statements;

. monitoring the corporate governance of the Group
including compliance with statutory and the Listing Rules
requirements; and

. assisting the Board in fulfilling its responsibilities by
providing an independent review and supervision of the
Group’s financial reporting system, and effectiveness of the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems.

The annual report for the year ended 30 April 2020 has been
reviewed by the Audit Committee.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Audit
Committee include:

- Meeting with the Chief Executive and senior management
of the Company from time to time to review the interim
and final results, the interim report and annual report and
other financial, internal control, corporate governance
and risk management matters of the Group and making
recommendations to the Board;

- Considering and discussing the annual and interim reports
with a view to ensuring that the Group’s consolidated
financial statements are prepared in accordance with Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standards;

= Meeting with the external auditor, HLB, to consider
the reports of HLB on the scope, strategy, progress
and outcome of its independent annual audit of the
consolidated financial statements, discuss its annual audit
of the consolidated financial statements (in each case
without the Company’s management being present); and

- Assisting the Board in meeting its responsibilities for
maintaining an effective system of internal control.

EXTERNAL AUDITOR

The Audit Committee reviews and monitors the external auditor’s
independence and objectivity and effectiveness of the audit
process. It receives each year the engagement letter from the
external auditor confirming their independence and objectivity
and holds meetings with representatives of the external auditor to
consider the scope of its audit, approve its fees, and the scope and
appropriateness of non-audit services, if any, to be provided by it.
The Audit Committee also makes recommendations to the Board
on the appointment and retention of the external auditor.

The Group’s policy regarding the engagement of HLB for the
various services listed below is as follows:

- Audit services — include audit services provided in
connection with the audit of the consolidated financial
statements. All such services are to be provided by the
external auditor.
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- Non-audit services — include services that would normally
be provided by an external auditor but not generally
included in audit services.

- Taxation related services — include all tax compliance and
tax planning services.

For the year ended 30 April 2020, a remuneration of HK$0.85
million was payable to HLB for the provision of audit services to
the Group.

REMUNERATION OF DIRECTORS AND
SENIOR MANAGEMENT

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established in January 2006.
As at the date of this annual report, the Remuneration Committee
has consisted of one executive Director, namely Mr. Li Tung Lok,
and three independent non-executive Directors, namely, Mr. Liu
Rongrui (being the Chairman of the Remuneration Committee),
Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Ms. Chung Hoi Yan.

The terms of reference of the Remuneration Committee are
consistent with those set out in the CG Code and are posted on
the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.

The major roles and functions of the Remuneration Committee
include:

- making recommendations to the Board on the Company’s
policy and structure for all Directors’ and senior
management’s remuneration;

- reviewing and approving the management’s remuneration
proposals with reference to the Board’s corporate goals and
objectives; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of non-executive Directors.
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During the year under review, work performed by the Remuneration
Committee included:

- determining the remuneration package of newly appointed
Directors and making recommendation to the Board for
approval;

- reviewing and fixing the remuneration of executive
Directors and senior management; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
of the independent non-executive Directors.

REMUNERATION POLICY

The fees of the Directors and emolument of senior management
are determined with reference to their respective duties and
responsibilities, expertise and experience in the industry,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing
market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to determine
the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company is delegated to the Remuneration Committee.

BOARD NOMINATION AND APPOINTMENT
NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established in January 2006. As
at the date of this annual report, the Nomination Committee has
consisted of three independent non-executive Directors, namely,
Ms. Chung Hoi Yan (being the Chairman of the Nomination
Committee), Mr. Chu Chun On Franco and Mr. Liu Rongrui.

The terms of reference of the Nomination Committee have been
reviewed and revised with reference to the CG Code and are
posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock Exchange.
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The major roles and functions of the Nomination Committee
include:

- reviewing the structure, size and composition (including
the skills, knowledge and experience) of the Board at least
annually and make recommendations on any proposed
changes to the Board to complement the Company’s
corporate strategy;

- identifying individuals suitably qualified to become Board
members and selecting or making recommendations to the

Board on the candidates nominated for directorships;

- assessing the independence of independent non-executive
Directors; and

- making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
or re-appointment of Directors and succession planning
for Directors, in particular, the Chairman of the Board and
the Chief Executive.

During the year under review, work performed by the Nomination
Committee included:

- identifying candidates suitably qualified to be appointed as
independent non-executive directors of the Company and
assessing their independence pursuant to the requirement
under the Listing Rules;

- approving for nomination of candidates as independent
non-executive Directors and making recommendation to
the Board for approval of appointment; and

- reviewing the annual confirmation of independence
submitted by the independent non-executive Directors and
assessing their independence.
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BOARD DIVERSITY

During the year, the Nomination Committee reviewed its practices
on Board diversity, formalised and adopted a policy by the Board
which recognises the benefits of a Board that possesses a balance
of skills, experience and diversity of perspectives appropriate to
the requirements of the Company’s business.

The Board’s nominations and appointments will continue to be
made on merit basis based on its business needs from time to
time, with due regard to the benefits of diversity on the Board.
Selection of Board candidates shall be based on a range of
diversity perspectives with reference to the Company’s business
model and specific needs from time to time, including but not
limited to gender, age, cultural and educational background, skills,
knowledge and professional experience.

The Board diversity policy is posted on the website of the
Company’s website. The Nomination Committee is responsible for
reviewing the policy and monitoring the progress on achieving the
measurable objectives from time to time to ensure its effectiveness
and application.

The following is a chart showing the diversity profile of the Board
as at the date of this annual report:
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL
CONTROL

The Board recognizes that it has the overall responsibility to
establish and maintain a sound and effective risk management
and internal control system to ensure the smooth running of
operations, safeguard the Group’s assets and the Shareholders’
interest as well as to ensure the reliability of financial statements
in compliance with applicable laws and regulations. In devising
risk management and internal controls, the Group has regard to
evaluate and determinate the nature and extent of the risk, the
likelihood of it crystallizing, and the cost of controls. A system of
risk management and internal control is designed to manage, but
not eliminate, the risk of failure to achieve business objectives and
can only provide reasonable but not absolute, assurance against
the risk of material misstatement, fraud or loss.

During the year, the Board delegated the management to evaluate
the overall adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk
management and internal control system. The management would
from time to time report the identified deficiencies to the Audit
Committee of the Company for recommendations. An annual
review of the risk management and internal control system would
be performed by the Board to ensure all significant risks are under
proper control.

The Group has engaged an independent internal control review
advisor (the “Internal Control Advisor”) to carry out the internal
audit function of the Group. Review of the Group’s internal
controls covered major financial, operational and compliance
controls, as well as risk management functions of different
systems has been performed on a systematic rotational basis on
the risk assessments of the operations and controls. During the
risk assessment process, the Internal Control Advisor interviewed
the relevant personnel and identified the business objectives and
significant risks of the Group. A risk management review and
internal audit report prepared by the Internal Control Advisor
which sets out the risks, issues and recommended action plan was
presented to the Board for review and endorsement. The Board
considered that significant risks of the Group were managed
within the acceptable level and the management will continue to
monitor the residual risks and report to the Board on ongoing
basis.

For the year ended 30 April 2020, the Board have reviewed the
risk management and internal control system and procedures and
they consider them effective and adequate.
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ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

The Group encourages environmental protection and promotes
environmental awareness for the employees. The Group
implements green office practices which encourage the employees
to make use of the e-statement or scanning copies, double-sided
printing and copying, setting up of recycle boxes for reducing
and disposing of waste. The Group is committed to reduce the
green-house emissions by turning off idle office lightings, air-
conditioning and other equipment after the standard working
hours. The Group regularly reviews its environmental practice to
make further improvement.

Further details will be disclosed in the Company’s Environmental,
Social and Governance Report 2020 to be published within three
months from the date of this report.

RELATIONSHIP WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Group actively promotes investor relations and
communications with the investment community when the interim
and year end financial results are announced and during the
course of the year. A policy on shareholders’ communication,
which is available on the Company’s website, was adopted and is
subject to regular review by the Board to ensure its effectiveness
and compliance with the prevailing regulatory and other
requirements.

The Board is committed to providing clear and full information
about the Group to the Shareholders through the publication of
notices, announcements, circulars, interim and annual reports. A
copy of the Memorandum of Association and Bye-laws of the
Company is posted on the websites of the Company and the Stock
Exchange.

Shareholders are encouraged to attend all general meetings of the
Company. Pursuant to Section 74 of the Bermuda Companies Act
1981, the directors of a company, notwithstanding anything in
its bye-laws shall, on the requisition of members of the company
holding at the date of the deposit of the requisition not less than
one-tenth of such of the paid-up capital of the company as at the
date of the deposit carrying the right of voting at general meetings
of the company, forthwith proceed duly to convene a special
general meeting of the company. The requisition must state the
purposes of the meeting, and must be signed by the requisitionists
and deposited at the registered office of the company, and may
consist of several documents in like form each signed by one or
more requisitionists.
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All substantive resolutions at general meetings are decided on a
poll which is conducted by the Company Secretary and scrutinised
by the Company’s branch share registrar in Hong Kong. The
results of the poll are posted on the websites of the Company
and the Stock Exchange. Regularly updated financial, business
and other information about the Group is made available on the
Company’s website for the Shareholders and stakeholders.

The Directors are requested and encouraged to attend
shareholders’ meetings albeit unforeseen circumstances which
might prevent the Directors from attending such meetings.

The Group values feedback from the Shareholders on its efforts to
promote transparency and foster investor relationships. Enquiries,
comments and suggestions to the Board or the Company are
welcome and can be addressed to the Company Secretary by
mail to 8/F., Hale Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung
Road, Tsuen Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong or by email at
ir@qplhk.com.
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The Directors present their report and the audited consolidated
financial statements for the year ended 30 April 2020.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Company acts as an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are the manufacture and sale
of integrated circuit leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related
products.

RESULTS AND APPROPRIATIONS

The results of the Group for the year ended 30 April 2020 are
set out in the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income on page 50.

The Directors do not recommend the payment of a dividend in
respect of the year ended 30 April 2020.

BUSINESS REVIEW AND PERFORMANCE

A fair review of the business of the Company and a discussion
and analysis of the Group’s performance during the year, the
material factors underlying its results and financial position and
material attributable factors of the development and likely future
developments of the Group’s business, are provided throughout
this annual report, particularly in the following separate sections:

(a)  Review of the Group’s business — “Chairman’s Statement”;

(b) The Group’s risk management framework, the principal
risks and the controls in place — “Chairman’s Statement”,
“Corporate Governance Report” and “Directors’ Report”;

(c) Future development in the Group’s business — “Chairman’s
Statement”;

(d) Analysis using financial key performance indicators —
“Financial Highlights” and “Chairman’s Statement”;

(e) Discussion on the Group’s environmental policies and
performance — “Corporate Governance Report”;

) Discussion on the Group’s compliance with the relevant
laws and regulations — “Corporate Governance Report”
and “Independent Auditors’ Report”; and

(2) An account of the Group’s key relationships with its
employees, customers and suppliers and others — “Corporate
Governance Report” and “Directors’ Report”.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the share capital of the Company during
the year are set out in note 24 to the consolidated financial
statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

The Company did not have reserves available for distribution to
the Shareholders as at 30 April 2020.

Under the Companies Act of Bermuda (as amended), the
contributed surplus account of the Company is available for
distribution. However, the Company cannot declare or pay a
dividend, or make a distribution out of the contributed surplus if:

) it is, or would after the payment be, unable to pay its
liabilities as they become due; or

(i1) the realisable value of its assets would thereby be less than
the aggregate of its liabilities and its issued share capital
and share premium accounts.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The board of directors of the Company established a dividend policy (the
“Dividend Policy”) in January 2019. The Company endeavours
to maintain adequate working capital to develop and operate
the business of the Group and to provide stable and sustainable
returns to the shareholders of the Company.

In considering the payment of dividends, the Board shall take
into account, among other things, the actual and expected
financial performance of the Group, the capital and debt level of
the Group, the general market conditions, any working capital
requirements, capital expenditure requirements and future
development plans of the Group, the liquidity position of the
Group, contractual restrictions on payment of dividends, the
statutory and regulatory restrictions which the Group is subject
to from time to time and any other relevant factors that the Board

may consider relevant.
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The Company does not have any pre-determined dividend
distribution ratio. The Company’s dividend distribution record
in the past does not necessarily imply that the similar level of
dividends may be declared or paid by the Company in the future.

The declaration and payment of dividend by the Company is
subject to any restrictions under the Companies Act of Bermuda
and the Bye-laws and any other applicable laws and regulations.
The Board will continually review the Dividend Policy and reserve
the right in its sole and absolute discretion to update, amend,
modify and/or cancel the Dividend Policy at any time.

The Dividend Policy shall in no way constitute a legally binding
commitment by the Group in respect of its future dividend and/or
in no way obligate the Group to declare a dividend at any time or
from time to time.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment of the
Group during the year are set out in note 13 to the consolidated
financial statements.

IMPORTANT EVENTS SUBSEQUENT TO
FINANCIAL YEAR

Save as disclosed in this annual report, the Directors are not aware
of any significant events affecting the Group subsequent to the
financial year and up to the date of this report. However, under
the outbreak of COVID-19, the Group’s operating environment
would be increasingly challenged when the epidemic continues.
The Group will continued to adopt prudent and risk balancing
management approach in the coming years.

RELATIONSHIP WITH EMPLOYEES,
CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The Group recognises that our employees are one of the greatest
assets contributing to the Group’s future success. The Group
continues to provide training for its staff to enhance technical
and product knowledge as well as knowledge of industry quality
standards. The Group maintains good working relationships with
its employees and has not experienced any material disruption of
its normal business operations due to strikes or labour disputes.
The Group understands the importance of maintaining a good
relationship with our business partners, which including the
Group’s customers and suppliers. The Group believes that a
healthy relationship can be build up by providing better products
and enhanced services to the customers, maintaining an effective
communication channel to the employees and collaborating with
key suppliers.
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PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group’s financial condition, results of operations, and
business prospects may be affected by a number of risks and
uncertainties directly or indirectly pertaining to our Group’s
businesses. The followings are the key risks and uncertainties
identified by our Group. There may be other risks and
uncertainties in addition to those shown below which are not
known to the Group or which may not be material now but could
turn out to be material in the future.

RELIANCE ON MAJOR CUSTOMERS

In the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers in
aggregate accounted for approximately 55% (2019: 52%) of the
total sales for the year and sales to the largest customer accounted
for approximately 15% (2019: 14%) of total sales. If any of these
customers ceases to do business with the Group, or substantially
reduces the volume of its business with the Group and if the
Group is unable to secure new customers with similar sales volume
and profit margin, the Group’s business, results of operations and
financial position may be materially and adversely affected.

RELIANCE ON LIMITED NUMBER OF SUPPLIERS
Purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers in aggregate
accounted for approximately 67% (2019: 70%) of the total
purchases for the year and purchases from the largest supplier
accounted for approximately 20% (2019: 24%) of total purchases.
If any of these suppliers do not continue to supply materials to
the Group at favourable or similar prices or at all, the Group
may not be able to find another suitable replacement supplier in a
timely manner or on terms acceptable to the Group or at all, and
the Group’s business, results of operations and financial condition
could be adversely affected.

EQUITY PRICE RISK

Equity price risk mainly arises from fluctuation in quoted market
price of the Group’s investment in financial assets. The Group
is exposed to equity price risk through its financial assets at
FVTPL. The Group’s financial assets at FVTPL have significant
concentration of price risk in the Hong Kong stock market.
The Group counter the equity price risk by ensuring a board
diversification of the Group’s investment portfolio and ensuring
the investment portfolio are frequently reviewed and monitored.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

The percentages of the Group’s turnover and purchases for the
year ended 30 April 2020 attributable to its major customers and
suppliers were as follows:

Turnover attributable to: Ak 2
Largest customer KKREF
Five largest customers HREF

Purchases attributable to: JIT A R A
Largest supplier Fe Kt E
Five largest suppliers KA E R

At no time during the year did a Director, an associate of a
Director or a Shareholder (which to the knowledge of the
Directors owned more than 5% of the Company’s issued share
capital) have an interest in any of the Group’s five largest
customers or suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The Directors during the year and up to the date of this annual
report were:

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Li Tung Lok
(Executive Chairman and Chief Executive)
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
Ms. Tung Siu Ching
Mr. Lai Sau Him (appointed on 8 May 2020)
Mr. Wong Ka Lok Andrew (resigned on 8§ May 2020)

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS
Mr. Chu Chun On Franco

Ms. Chung Hoi Yan

Mr. Liu Rongrui

Pursuant to bye-law 102 and 102A of the Bye-laws, Mr. Lai
Sau Him, Mr. Chu Chun On Franco, Ms. Chung Hoi Yan and
Mr. Liu Rongrui will retire by rotation and, being eligible, will
offer themselves to re-election at the forthcoming annual general
meeting.
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EHRGH
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S HEE R AT BON R IR A B A B B
INTERESTS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING  frZ i #
SHARES

As at 30 April 2020, the interests and short positions of the A =ZF " F4FEWA =+ H WAL 7 4% B E
Directors, chief executive and their associates in the shares, 7 M &6 (I35 %5 K &G0 ]) 535206 1%
underlying shares or debentures of the Company and its B 2 &5t il g & > SR 95 42 e <y HI i 2 0 &
associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the AAF KB &EFH  EFEITH A B R #5E
Securities and Futures Ordinance (“SFO”) as recorded in the  Z W% A LA A A a] S HAH Bk | (2 % R
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to Section ¢ K& HA & W5 B 55 XV &B 2 B A0 ~ A1 BH % 107 o8 45 RE
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the  #5 W Z #Eifs LIRA W H :

Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model Code were as follows:

LONG POSITION IN SHARES AND T AR 2 w) JBe A B AH B B B 2 0 AT
UNDERLYING SHARES OF THE COMPANY
Number of issued ordinary shares/
underlying shares of the Company
A2 ] OB AT % A IR T e 4

Percentage of

the issued
Personal Family Corporate share capital of
Name of Director interests interests interests Total the Company
A2 7
C#HfTkAZ
EREAH PN X I BE O w B i A [ipid 4
Mr. Li Tung Lok
— Ordinary shares in issue
[ 4 5 A
— DTS R 63,515,530 900,000 4,647,736 69,063,266
(Note a) (Note b)
(ffiFa) (MiFb)
— Unlisted share options
— JF T B 36,500,000 - - 36,500,000
100,015,530 900,000 4,647,736 105,563,266 4.68%
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
— Unlisted share options
AR
— JF kT A 5,000,000 - - 5,000,000 0.22%
Ms. Tung Siu Ching
— Unlisted share options
#NFFL L
— JF kT A 20,000,000 - - 20,000,000 0.89%
Notes: Bt -
a. The family interests of 900,000 shares represent the interest of the  a. F )& HE £ 2.900,000/8 11 43 )% 2= [R) 4% 5 A= 2 3%
wife of Mr. Li Tung Lok. A £
b. Mr. Li Tung Lok wholly owns Solar Forward Company Limited, b. ZR ) 48 S A A R B A BR A B %A W B
which owns 4,647,736 shares of the Company. F 4,647,736 4w A o

Save as disclosed above, as at 30 April 2020, none of the Directors B I CHT#i @ & 4h> it —F -~ F4HEWHA =+H >
nor chief executive of the Company had or was deemed to have — Mf#EA /N 7] & el £ EATH A B R AN T L H
any interests or short positions in the shares, underlying shares or Al i 72 [ 2 % £y ~ A1 B B 1> o 18 A 58 b B A ol
debentures of the Company and its associated corporations. WAL 2 B AT o RE £ BOIR A o
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SHARE OPTIONS

Particulars of the Company’s share option scheme are set out in
note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.

The movements in the Company’s share options granted to the
Directors and employees during the year were as follows:

Jik P i
AR R R HE ) R O AR A R R B
k31 e

R B TR R R AR TR S )
LU

Movement during the year
Outstanding at
30 April 2020 Exercise price Exercise price
after share before share after share
consolidation consolidation consolidation
Outstanding at Outstanding at ~ which effective on  which effective on  which effective on
Date of grant 1 May 2019 Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed 30 April 2020 SMay 2022 5 May 2020 5May 2020 Exercise period
2%
ERER
Riraliids  RoFSEE RCROERE
REF-0E R-Z2RE RCZORE EAER  HALARR
il LES WAZFHA Rebrs AR AR
AL WA [i§:4i] gfifi CRi [LF3 HATTH AT b4 4] TR M
HK§ HKS
i i
Category I: Directors
FNEE
Mr. Li Tung Lok 22 April 2016 16,500,000 - - - - 16,500,000 1,375,000 0.620 74422 April 2016 to
21 April 2026
EbSt “E-RE ZENENAZTORE
MAZ+ZH “EOAERACE-A
14 September 2018 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 1,666,606 0.080 0.96 14 September 2018 to
13 September 2028
“E-0NE “E-NEAATEAE
UATEA “EDAERALER
Mr. Phen Hoi Ping 22 April 2016 5,000,000 - - - - 5,000,000 416,667 0.620 744 22 April 2016 to
Patrick 21 April 2026
YlTEE “E-RE E-RERAZTORE
WAZ+=H ZEAENAZA-H
Ms Tung Siu Ching 14 September 2018 20,000,000 - - - - 20,000,000 1,666,667 0.080 0.96 14 September 2018 to
13 September 2028
#ELL v SyI3 ZE-NEAATEAE
WiREL “ECAEAATER
Total Directors 61,500,000 - - - - 61,500,000 5,125,000
FR
Category 2: Employees
£-H-ER
22 April 2016 1,210,000 - - - - 1,210,000 100,833 0.620 74422 April 2016 to
21 April 2026
“F-nkE “E-AEMACYORE
WAZ+ZH CEZAEMA AR
14 September 2017 225,620,000 - - - - 225,620,000 18,801,666 0.138 1.656 14 September 2017 to
13 September 2027
v St s “E-LEAATIAE
JUATmA “RZEENMATER
14 September 2018 160,000,000 - - - - 160,000,000 13,333,333 0.080 0.96 14 September 2018 to
13 September 2028

“F- N\
AATER

ZE-ANEAATNAE
ZRIMEAATZA

Total Employees 386,830,000 - = - _
[ & 45

386,830,000 32235832

Total all cat§g0ries 448,330,000 - - - -
G HE

448,330,000 37,360,832
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ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES
OR DEBENTURES

Other than the share option scheme as described in the sections
headed “Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests in Shares and
Underlying Shares” and “Share Options”, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangements to enable the Directors or chief executive of the
Company, their spouses or children under the age of 18 to acquire
benefits by means of the acquisition of shares or underlying
shares in, or debentures of, the Company or any other body
corporate, and none of them had any right to subscribe for the
securities of the Company or its associated corporations, or had
exercised any such right during the year.

MATERIAL INTERESTS OF DIRECTORS IN
TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS OR
CONTRACTS

Save as disclosed elsewhere in the consolidated financial
statements, no other transaction, arrangement or contract of
significance, to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was
a party and in which a Director had a material interest, whether
directly or indirectly, subsisted at the end of the year or at any
time during the year.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contract of significance concerning the management and
administration of the whole or any substantial part of the business
of the Company or any of its subsidiaries was entered into during
the year or subsisted at the end of the year.

No Director was a party to a service contract with the Company
or any of its subsidiaries, which is not determinable by the
employing company within one year without the payment of
compensation (other than statutory compensation).
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' INTERESTS
IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 30 April 2020, the Board were not aware of any persons
who were substantial shareholders of the Company and had or
was deemed to have any interests or short positions in the shares
and underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept under Section 336 of the SFO.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF
LISTED SECURITIES

During the year, neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries
purchased, sold or redeemed any of listed securities of the
Company.

EMOLUMENT POLICY

The emolument policy of the employees of the Group is set up
by the Remuneration Committee on the basis of their merit,
qualifications and competence.

The emoluments of the Directors and senior management of the
Group are determined with reference to their respective duties
and responsibilities, expertise and experience in the industry,
the performance and profitability of the Group as well as
remuneration benchmarks from other companies and prevailing
market conditions. Whilst the Board retains its power to determine
the remuneration of non-executive Directors, the responsibility
for reviewing and determining the remuneration packages of
individual executive Directors and senior management of the
Company is delegated to the remuneration committee of the
Company.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme as an incentive
to the Directors and eligible employees, details of the scheme is
set out in note 31 to the consolidated financial statements.
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APPOINTMENT OF INDEPENDENT
NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

The Board has assessed the independence of all the independent
non-executive Directors of the Company and considers all of them
to be independent having regard to (i) their annual confirmation
on independence as required under Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules;
(ii) the absence of involvement in the daily management of the
Company; and (iii) the absence of any financial, business or family
or other material/relevant relationships between the members of
the Board or circumstances which would interfere with the exercise
of their independent judgment.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Bye-laws
or under the laws of Bermuda, which would oblige the Company
to offer new shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

According to the information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the Board as at the date of
this annual report, the percentage of the Company’s shares which
are in the hands of the public exceeds 25% of the Company’s total
number of issued shares throughout the year ended 30 April 2020.

AUDITOR

A resolution will be submitted to the forthcoming annual general
meeting of the Company to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey
Cheng Limited as auditor of the Company.

On behalf of the Board

Li Tung Lok
Chairman

27 July 2020
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B &3t E8H A RN F
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED
(Incorporated in Bermuda with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
QPL International Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) set out on
pages 50 to 143, which comprise the consolidated statement
of financial position as at 30 April 2020, and the consolidated
statement of profit or loss and other comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of changes in equity and consolidated
statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to
the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true
and fair view of the consolidated financial position of the Group
as at 30 April 2020, and of its consolidated financial performance
and its consolidated cash flows for the year then ended in
accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
(“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants (“HKICPA”) and have been properly prepared
in compliance with the disclosure requirement of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in
the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent
of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code”), and we have fulfilled
our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters.
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Key audit matter

BA 3¢ 7 st 2

Impairment assessment of property, plant and equipment
VERY TV Ty et h a1

Refer to note 13 of the consolidated financial statements.
i 2 W55 G B R I EE13

As of 30 April 2020, the Group had property, plant
and equipment of approximately HK$126,783,000,
which mainly comprised leasehold properties of
approximately HK$109,156,000 and plant and
machinery of approximately HK$5,413,000. .
During the year ended 30 April 2020, impairment

of approximately HK$24,739,000 has been .
recognised. Management performed impairment
assessment based on value in use model that .
required significant management judgement with
respect to the discount rate and underlying cash
flows, in particular future revenue growth and &
capital expenditure. Independent external valuation
were obtained in order to support management’s
estimates.

AR CFAENMA=ZTH, HEBMNYE BE
K #07%126,783,000i o0 FE @I EWEL
109,156,000% 7T 5L i b5 M # 45 #5,413,0009 7T « 7%
BEZZRENA =+ HILEERN © R BE
#124,739,0009 T o & B RE FE A (B A SO AT
Tl R > A =X SR T R gl B R T A R B
i (0 HR AR AR i Y R S AN B ) FE R
F B o T IS Sz A0 BB AG (8 4 PR B0 A R A S
Fo
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T A vy 2 G40 ] o P R SR A 2 OH

Our procedures in relation to management’s impairment
assessment included:

F A AT B B 9 (AT A 2 R T LA

Evaluating the independent valuer’s competence,
capabilities and objectivity;

w18 28 S7 A e B 09 6 JRE ~ BE 0 AN A L

Assessing the methodologies used and the appropriateness
of the key assumption based on our knowledge of the
relevant industry and using our valuation experts;

R 5 T AM 365 AR B A7 2 1Y 0 kST 07 o8 AP O Al (LS K R
Ak Fir B 19 7 125 R0 B SRR R T 1

Challenging the reasonableness of key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the business and industry; and

R BAM 3B 5% S 5 AN AT S 09 Tk > L B B R I e ) 5 B
% &

Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

S P ARR T % A BT PR T ) A SR ) YEE T R A
P o

We found that the assumptions made by management for
impairment assessment were supported by the available
evidence.

FAM 5 B > A PR I (L A A A BB BT A MR R S H
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Key audit matter How our audit addressed the key audit matter

B 3¢ 7 st 2 0 T A vy 2 G40 ] o P R SR A 2 OH

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables

MW 5 59 G sk TR M B M 8L 75 1 A A

Refer to Note 16 to the consolidated financial statements.
w2 B AR MBS IR R R REL6 -

The Group’s gross trade receivables amounted Our procedures in relation to management’s allowance for
to approximately HK$70,279,000 (2019: expected credit losses assessment of the trade receivables as at
HK$53,893,000) and provision for allowance for 30 April 2020 included:
expected credit losses of approximately HK$933,000 KGR EMEEH —F _FFWH =+ H 2 BILHE 5 KR H
(2019: HK$183,000). W5 B R B R AL 2 R 5 f 45
B A U B 5 TR R A A £970,279,0009 G (-
T — JLAE £ 53,893,0009 o0) M wHiE 5 S k5 3EB + Understanding and evaluating the key controls that the
# #1933,000 76 ( = F— JLAF © 183,000457C) ° Group has implemented to manage and monitor its credit
risk, and validating the control effectiveness on a sample
basis;
o TR RGETEAL B AR COE it A B R A A i DLE R
W e AR B > ST A o ) A A

. Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile of the
trade receivables as at 30 April 2020 to the underlying
financial records and post year-end settlements to bank
receipts;

o fhERARA R T TR H =+ B A B BB R BN ) RE
5 T TR A AR % 17 00 B AR A H A% 1Y SRAT &5 S R
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Key audit matter

BA 3¢ 7 st 2
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How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T A vy 2 G40 ] o P R SR A 2 OH

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables (Continued)

HE W 5 59 G sk TR M B My 8 15 1 A (AT

In general, the trade receivables credit terms granted
by the Group to the customers ranged between 30 to
90 days. Management performed periodic assessment
on the recoverability of the trade receivables and the
sufficiency of provision for allowance for expected
credit losses based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going
trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability
to repay the outstanding balances in order to
estimate the expected credit losses for the allowance
for expected credit losses assessment.

—RimE . BEEBRTEFNBREYSRRES
A 730290 H o & B R A R % 5 B4 SR DL
JRE W B o R K Y MR B~ T A S RO BR IR A A AR
DU~ TEIDI R ) R R AR A R Bl e KA K
4 455 298 2 B T AR 4 Tk S0 IR i B 5 B R T i [
Fowt 5 Ye A 0 e 1848 A 1) S R R AT E I RTA -
EHETE B EEF MR RFRARENN
HIT VR EORE > DU R TR M5 B s 18 48 4 1 U AS B
Jfes 1R AT Al

We focused on this area due to the allowance for
expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables
under the expected credit losses model involved
the use of significant management judgements and
estimates.

FAM IR T 1 SR R G by R FE A5 B A 1R K O MR K
5 oy Wk TE 115 B M 1 9 4 S ZE0E ) B O L
H i KAk L o

. Inquiring of management for the status of each of the
material trade receivables past due as at year end and
corroborating explanations from management with
supporting evidence, such as understanding on-going
business relationship with the customers based on trade
records, checking historical and subsequent settlement
records of and other correspondence with the customers;
and

o I HLE A AR AR B C R B IE I S IR R IR
D S AR AR AR B A R (B A AR B B RO Bk T B S Y 4
MEB AR BERF R E KRRk U &
5B A AR A A5 BR ) % B A B R ) R R 5 R

. Assessing the appropriateness of the expected credit
losses provisioning methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their accuracy and
completeness, and challenging the assumptions, including
both historical and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.

o RN TEH HIME B AR A TSR A G b R R B O
A LA Al Y e I o7 0 NI B R E T S B
BT AR 5 > B 48 8 A % B P R -

We found that the management judgment and estimates
used to assess the recoverability of the trade receivables and
determine the impairment provision to be supportable by
available evidence.

FAM TR 2% - G TG AT A T S ) TR K T g el % R
Tl R38BT K A R BT AR IR R S
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Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of loan receivables

MW £ 5% 2 HR 1 B Ml 8 13 1 T A

Refer to Note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

S iAo BB R M RE18 -

As at 30 April 2020, the Group’s gross loan
receivables amounted to HK$22,160,000 (2019:
HK$21,332,000) and a provision for allowance
for expected credit losses of loan receivables of
HK$1,921,000 (2019: HK$1,009,000) was recognised
in the Group’s consolidated statement of financial
position.

e e <o 11 By = NP N S O T
#522,160,000% 7t ( — % — JL4F : 21,332,000% 7T) >
M &1 52 8 e 5 5 T3 5 0 s 8 488 445 1,921,000 7T
(=& — JL4F £ 1,009,000 7T ) © i A & B 19 45 5 B
0N (R

The balance of provision for allowance for
expected credit losses of loan receivables represents
the management’s best estimates at the balance
sheet date of expected credit losses under Hong
Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9: Financial
Instruments expected credit losses models.

AR R S K T A Bl TR B A R A R R
5 DB A R R SR O R - B T B W MR B 1R
B A H B E SRR Rl

Management assesses whether the credit risk of
loan receivables have increased significantly since
their initial recognition, and apply a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their expected credit
losses. The measurement models of expected credit
losses involves significant management judgments
and assumptions, primarily including the following:
B TR A R A R A5 B JEUBR A E R DL A 2
5 R 48 0 > Sl BR ) = I B (e A Y w5 LR A
s 18 - UM B s 1R AY wH B A R v R T R Y A B
B SR > B A LR 5

Our procedures in relation to management’s assessment on
provision for allowance for expected credit losses of loan
receivables as at 30 April 2019 included:

A TEJUEMA =1 B A A B R R R R R K
F14 T 39045 5 s 8 938 4 26 4T Rl IO PR T L4

. Obtained understanding and tested the key control
procedures performed by management, including its
procedures on periodic review on overdue receivables and
the assessment of expected credit losses allowance on the
loan receivables;

o TSI W EHUAE BN R AT AY B S R R T o 604 HL B
JRRE WA R L ) A B R TR e % S B SRR ) T A R s 1R
A O FEAL

. Obtained understanding and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses measurement,
assessed the reasonableness of the model selection and
key measurement parameters determination;

o TR RT AL TG B A A R AR T I A AR R
1 1 B G w2 R 2 1 A BRAE S

. For the historical information, discussed with management
to obtain understanding of the management’s
identification of significant increase in credit risk, defaults
and credit-impaired loans, corroborated management’s
explanation with supporting evidence;

o BB AR BRAT IS BT T B HE AR - &
#9 J A7 B (R R T ) R B o AR AR R R A
ST G 1 Mg R



INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
T8 1A% Bl e

Key audit matter

BA 3¢ 7 st 2

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F

How our audit addressed the key audit matter

T A vy 2 G40 ] o P R SR A 2 OH

Allowance for expected credit losses assessment of loan receivables (Continued)

HE W £ 5% 2 B R 1 B Ml 18 13 1 A (AT)

—  Selection of appropriate model and
determination of relevant key measurement
parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default and exposure at default;

—EEASBE O AT B I R E A B 0 BR S T 2
B35 7 KRR 8 AR O OE A R

—  Criteria for determining whether or not there
was a significant increase in credit risk or a
default; and

— WS B R R BUE A T B MR R

— Economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

— M PR A A R DL R Y KR
14 1 A o

We focus on this area due to the significant estimates
and judgement involved in determining the expected
credit impairment losses allowance on the loan
receivables.

A IR VA A 5 T T R TR R SO R T A R
{1 e 5 38 0 05 T o R A B B o

. For forward-looking measurement, we assessed the
reasonableness of economic indicator selection, economic
scenarios and weightings application, assessed the
reasonableness of the estimation by comparing with
industry data; and

o BAHTIE MR - AN O RP AL KRR B R - SR TE K
R T 5 0 0 BRLAT S BB E AT PR AL AL 5
B A BPE s &

. Checked major data inputs used in the expected credit
losses models on sample basis to the Group’s record.

o RIE BEERE Ak e & THIE Bl AR bl
9 = 2 BRI A o

Based on the above, we found that the estimates and judgement
made by management in respect of the expected credit losses
allowance and the collectability of the loan receivables were
supportable by the available evidence.

LA bl 1 B FRAM B B B A TE S s 1R B A R
B2 KAT Wi ] 1 PLAE Hh B Ak T e ) B T R RS AR BT S
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises the information included in the annual
report, but does not include the consolidated financial statements
and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other Information”).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not
cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is
materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to
be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed,
we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other
information, we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS

AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair view
in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance,
and for such internal control as the directors determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial
statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a
going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless
the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee are responsible for overseeing the Group’s
financial reporting process.

Ao 5 B
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A A TR HIK A S B D A7 7E B K B R R A 9 15
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AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the consolidated financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue
an auditors’ report that includes our opinion solely to you, as a
body, in accordance with Section 90 of the Bermuda Companies
Act, and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with
HKSAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered
material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

. Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of
the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud
or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive
to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The
risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

. Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to
the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

. Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used
and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by the directors.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F
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. Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the
going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit
evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant
doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern.
If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements
or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion.
Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up
to the date of our auditors’ report. However, future events
or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a
going concern.

. Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content
of the consolidated financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events
in a manner that achieves fair presentation.

. Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the
financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain
solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among
other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in
internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that
we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships
and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

o HEHRMSAKE G ERNSE A
H A o AR AR T 2 I B AR R T E R
A7 B TE B DUA B B 3R R e E
fie T AT REAE BCE B4R EAY SR AL
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From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we
determine those matters that were of most significance in the
audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current
period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation
precludes public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely
rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences
of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public

interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement director on the audit resulting in the independent
auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex.

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Hon Koon Fai, Alex

Practicing Certificate Number: P05029

Hong Kong, 27 July 2020
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

2020 2019
SRR R
NOTES HK$’°000 HK$’000
iz Tt THTT
Revenue I 7 5 274,577 282,743
Changes in inventories of B R N 2
finished goods and work in progress TR 4,043 (5,735)
Raw materials and consumables used 15 P DA ) T3 R (127,334) (128,512)
Other income HoAth g A 6 7,691 16,699
Exchange gain/(loss) net T Sk 25, (58 5 38 3,751 (3,074)
Net fair value loss on financial asset A REFN AR £
at fair value through profit or loss (& fefast AEA )
(“FVTPL”) Z A G S AUE
e 18 1% AE (11,379) (13,293)
Realised (loss)/gain on disposal of BN AEFE AR
financial asset at FVTPL ZEMEREZ CEY
(BE1R) s (2,066) 1,292
Other gains and losses HoAh i 75 K i 48 6 (706) 174
Staff costs & B A (79,268) (84,612)
Equity-settled share-based JRe A 5 S DA T Ay 27 B i 2
payment expense NEYba - (8,500)
Impairment of property, P2~ W IR 2 BUE
plant and equipment (24,739) (1,370)
Depreciation of property, W2~ W B 2 I8
plant and equipment 13 (12,131) (11,271)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets A& E 2T e 14 (15,738) =
Other expenses HoAth B 52 (82,071) (89,023)
Finance cost il & AR 7 (1,967) (26)
Loss before taxation ok i 1T s 1H (67,337) (44,508)
Taxation BiIH 8 (808) (914)
Loss for the year A BE iR 9 (68,145) (45,422)
Other comprehensive income for the year: 74 B HAth 2 T Jit A -
Item that may be subsequently reclassified ] & H & B4 75 F
to profit or loss: A 2 HH -
Exchange differences arising WM INET L
on translation of foreign operations e 58, 2% %3 655 3,733
Total comprehensive expense for the year A< 4F B 4 T ] 5 48 48 (67,490) (41,689)
(restated)
(R H )
Loss per share B 1B 5 18 10
Basic and diluted FEA T T (HK36.24 cents i fil) (HK24.16 cents i )

The accompanying notes form an integral part of the consolidated i Bff Bff 5% & A< 4 & MBS i 3k 2 — &B 4> o

financial statements.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
A o B B IR DL AR

At 30 April 2020 A ZFFEMA =4H

2020 2019
R R —E U
NOTES HKS$’000 HK$’000
bt #E F# THT
Non-current asset I B B A
Property, plant and equipment W2~ WA Ik A 13 126,783 160,853
Right-of-use assets i I RE B 14 33,856 =
160,639 160,853
Current assets By
Inventories & 15 48,639 45,487
Trade and other receivables B Ty Fe HoAth B e 2K TE 16 71,588 109,558
Deposits and prepayments e 4 I AT ROIE 16 21,600 23,074
Financial asset at FVTPL 2N RAEFF AR 2
&Rl 17 42,870 43,891
Loan receivables JRE Wi £ K 18 20,239 20,323
Bank balances and cash HATH B X B & 19 154,892 131,276
359,828 373,609
Current liabilities i B £ 1
Trade and other payables B 5 B HoAth AT 3 IH 20 20,233 17,752
Deposits and accrued expenses P 4 M ORE T2 20 38,068 35,071
Contract liabilities G R AfE 21 1,539 =
Tax payable JRE S B TH 685 809
Other borrowings HoAth 1 12 22 22,022 12,596
Lease liabilities/obligations &AM A
under finance leases FH T AE 23 11,035 457
93,582 66,685
Net current assets i B & A 266,246 306,924

426,885

467,777
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A o B B R DL AR

At 30 April 2020 A F FAEP A =+ H

2020 2019
SRR —E U
NOTES HK$’000 HK$ 000
ik T 0 T
Capital and reserves B A I
Share capital J A 24 180,501 180,501
Share premium and reserves J& A5 Y A I fidh e 219,786 287,276
Equity attributable to owners of A2 B BN R AN HE £
the Company 400,287 467,777
Non-current liabilities I B AR
Lease liabilities/obligations & 2
under finance leases &R IE 23 26,598 -
426,885 467,777

The consolidated financial statements on pages 50 to 143 were
approved and authorised for issue by the Board of Directors on
27 July 2020 and are signed on its behalf by:

Li Tung Lok
2 [l 4t
DIRECTOR
HH

HRFESORIBH LG MBMELEFTGR
ToRFELA LA MMEIL R RE T 3 h
THERERER G HE

Phen Hoi Ping Patrick
DIRECTOR
#HH
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COPNSOLIBAIED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
b s 2 0

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

Capital Share

Share Share Contributed redemption options Translation Accumulated
capital  premium surplus reserve reserve reserve losses Total
BN Y ¢ i

Bk BER AR i Rl BEREE  REEE E)
HKS'000  HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000 HKS'000 HKS000  HKS000
T#x  T#x  TEx  TEx  TEx  TEx Tz  T#x

(Note a)

(Mfita)
At 30 April 2018 REF—NENA=1H 180,501 696,688 95,726 12,310 27,141 2,019 (513,419) 500,966
Loss for the year AR EH = = = = = - (45422) (45422
Other comprehensive expense for the year AR A T B X - - - = = 3,733 = 3,733
Total comprehensive expense for the year AR AT B A - - = = = 3733 (45422)  (41,689)
Recognition of equity-settled TR I A 55 S DMy e 2

share-based payment [ES = = = = 8,500 = = 8,500

At 30 April 2019 RZZ—FENA=1H 180,501 696,688 95,726 12,310 35,641 5,752 (558,841) 467,777
Loss for the year AR E - - - - - - (68,145) (68,145
Other comprehensive expense for the year A A R T B - - - - - 655 - 655
Total comprehensive expense for the year AR AT B A - - - - - 655 (68,145  (67,490)
At 30 April 2020 REZZZZENA=1H 180,501 696,688 95,726 12,310 35,641 6,407 (626,986) 400,287
Notes: Mt -

(a) Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the (a) A T[] i A 4 ] A 2 ) 3 O R T A AR
consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s ordinary i 8 A R G [l e 9 T {1 2 B 4 o
shares over the par value of respective repurchased shares.
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

HEBEnRE

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

2020 2019
SRR —E U
Notes HK$’000 HK$ 000
Bt 7 T 0 T
OPERATING ACTIVITIES RBEWH
Loss before taxation o 4 T s 4R (67,337) (44,508)
Adjustments for: R
Interest income FlE WA (1,648) (1,984)
Finance cost il A A 7 1,967 26
Depreciation of property, plant and L E R E Y A
equipment 13 12,131 11,271
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ARG E 2T e 14 15,738 =
Impairment of property, plant and W~ R KRR 2 WUE
equipment 13 24,739 1,370
Realised loss/(gain) on financial asset A AEFT AR #2224 RE =
at FVTPL ZBEB R (k) 2,066 (1,292)
Net fair value loss on s RAERE AT 2 B RE
financial asset at FVTPL FE % FU (L s 18 19 A 11,379 13,293
Equity-settled share-based JBe A 45 55 DA R 3 2 e hft 2
payment expenses A3 B 3 = 8,500
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance for) e & &) 3K (1) 18 1 (5 &
expected credit losses on trade s R (A D)
receivables 6 750 (52)
Allowance for/(reversal of allowance for) M it €8 3 A% 78 1 15 %
expected credit losses on loan WG BT (H A 43 1wl )
receivables 6 912 (103)
Reversal of allowance for expected L fth I8 Wi 3 TE Y TR A MF A 1R
credit losses on other receivables A g I 6 (824) (19)
Gain on disposal of property, th B 2K - R AR R 2
plant and equipment, net (G TREIE 1] 6 27) -
Gain on disposal of L B o HE P 2 I AR R AR
right-of-use assets, net 6 (105) -
Operating cash outflows before EHRE f 8- LU
movements in working capital 2&5’“@%& it (259) (13,498)
(Increase)/decrease in inventories () b (3,152) 1,949
Decrease in trade and other receivables %351 T Ath, JRE i 35 3
B 38,044 6,002
Decrease in deposits and prepayments f%&ﬁﬁ T k> 1,085 1,623
Increase/(decrease) in trade and 5 &,ﬂéﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ A
other payables w8, () 2,481 (15,237)
Increase in deposits and accrued expenses 1% 4 & ME 52 A 4% 2,997 1,742
Increase in contract liabilities H & AR 1,539 =
Cash generated from/(used in) operations %845 fi {5, (A ) Bl 4 42,735 (17,419)
Income tax paid RENIREE (932) (1,024)
NET CASH GENERATED FROM/ mEEHBHE (M) B eFH
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES 41,803 (18,443)
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2020 2019
SBOBE . TR
Notes HK$’000 HK$’000
A Tt T#E T
INVESTING ACTIVITIES e E 37
Interest received EALEIS! 141 2.585
Decrease in loan receivables JRE Wi £ % {Ui’J‘ 679 1,954
Purchase of financial assets at W H %N AEFE AR 2
fair value through profit or loss SRl RE (13,857) (19,012)
Proceeds from disposal of financial assets 83\ R {HFF AH#5 2
at fair value through profit or loss 2 FE T A SRR 1,433 13,177
Purchase of property, plant and Wi B ) 2 - R T RR AR
equipment 13 3,395) (10,793)
Proceeds from disposal of property, ) 2 - R R BT A B
plant and equipment 27 -
Proceeds from disposal of B ff ) RE O T 15 3T
right-of-use assets 355 -
NET CASH USED IN INVESTING B R P B
ACTIVITIES (14,617) (12,089)
FINANCING ACTIVITIES il 3 B
Repayment of other borrowings i 3 A £ (9,560) (7,376)
Repayment of lease liabilities/ R B AR Rl A R
obligations under finance leases (11,642) (508)
Interest paid of lease liabilities/ HEAME WS HERE
obligations under finance leases EAT LR (1,967) (26)
Advance from a director — R 2GR 18,986 15,736
NET CASH (USED IN)/GENERATED  Ft& i E) (Fr i) it S &35
FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES (4,183) 7,826
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) Bia R4 4HE
IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS  #in (W4 ) & % 23,003 (22,706)
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ENZBe R ERBEEE
AT THE BEGINNING OF YEAR 131,276 150,249
Effect of foreign exchange rate charge, net [ % 8] 5 28 {F 4 613 3,733
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS ERZBERFRB4&HE
AT THE END OF YEAR
Representing bank balances and cash TR ERAT &S R M Bl 154,892 131,276
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

1. GENERAL

The Company was a public limited company incorporated
in Bermuda as an exempted company with limited liability
and its shares are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”). Its ultimate
controlling parties are Mr. Li Tung Lok, Mr. Phen Hoi
Ping Patrick and Ms. Tung Siu Ching. The registered office
address of the Company is Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria
Street, Hamilton HM12, Bermuda and its principal place
of business in Hong Kong is located at 8th Floor, Hale
Weal Industrial Building, 22-28 Tai Chung Road, Tsuen
Wan, New Territories, Hong Kong.

The principal activity of the Company is investment
holding. The principal activities of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”) are
the manufacture and sale of integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks, stiffeners and related products, securities trading
and investment holding. Details of the principal activities
of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out in Note 34.

The consolidated financial statements are presented in
Hong Kong dollars (“HK$”) that is different from the
functional currency of the Company which is United States
dollars (“USD”) as the directors control and monitor the
performance and financial position of the Company by
HKS.

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are mandatorily
effective for the current year.

The Group has applied the following new and amendments
to HKFRSs issued by HKICPA for the first time in the
current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases
T Vs B 15 2 E U 2B 165 GiENEY

— &k

EN/NEID S SIS =00 5 A | X RN
AR AR A A HR O R A R
G ARA A ([BZ]) B RN
AR PRI T B S e 2 T 5
e R N ER L o AR N A g O O
3t £ Canon’s Court, 22 Victoria Street,
Hamilton HM12, Bermuda > 7 i = B4
35 b B 5y A U BT A ORI 4 22-28 58 &
(CENEPN-R]

KpNEZ FEEHHIREHE R - AN A
MG A (FR A TALERE]) 2 F 2
ES Y E NS R %ﬁﬁs@ﬁ%%l%ﬁ[ HCAA
IR AR SR BE E A SR E E UL R
PN o A B M S ) SRS
FE AT O B EE34 -

P T3 DA S 0 R R B SRR N T 2
K BA AR UL > 5 G B R TS LA oo
(T 0 )) 250> BLAR 2 7 o) e & % 55 00
(F£56)) A -

M 50 ) e 4855 T 7 8 A R o
HE Q) (17 o S B i o e 0 D)

T A A SR T A SR R T R KB R T
SV 5 i At e o

JAAAEE > AL CE B LR &
B wH AT A8 A BT R AR AE R A
B ik e A

HK(IFRIC)—Int 23

FilE (BB RE R EEET)
— R R 2358

Amendments to HKFRS 9

T vk B O MR IR O 2 BT A

Amendments to HKFRS 19

ok RS R HE ISR 1958 2 B RT A

Amendments to HKAS 28

et e A 552898 L B RT A

Amendments to HKFRSs

A B o R I 2 BT AR

Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Jit A5 30 i B 14 S it E

Prepayment Features with Negative Compensation

B LR ORR 1 B A A AE

Plan Amendment, Curtailment or Settlement

AT VBT ~ AW A5

Long-term Interests in Associates and Joint Ventures

BB AR RGBE AR Z RIS

Annual Improvements to HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

T B RGN R E R — L E R YU
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

Except as described below the application of the new and
amendments to HKFRSs in the current year has had no
material impact on the Group’s financial position and
performance for the current and prior years and/or on
the disclosures set out on these consolidated financial
statements.

HKFRS 16 LEASES

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 for the first time in
the current year. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17 Leases
(“HKAS 177) and the related interpretations.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to apply
HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously identified
as leases applying HKAS 17 and HKFRIC - Int 4
Determining whether an Arrangement contains a Lease
and not apply this standard to contracts that were not
previously identified as containing a lease. Therefore, the
Group has not reassessed contracts which already existed
prior to the date of initial application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1 May
2019, the Group applies the definition of a lease in
accordance with the requirements set out in HKFRS 16 in
assessing whether a contract contains a lease.

As a lessor

Lessor accounting under HKFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from HKAS 17. Lessors will continue to classify
leases as either operating or finance leases using similar
principles as in HKAS 17. Therefore, HKFRS 16 did not
have an impact on leases where the Group is the lessor. The
lessor accounting requirements are brought forward from
HKAS 17 substantially unchanged.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F
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Y 50 ) e 4855 i A v A 5 L
A uE L (17 o 0 B e e 1 1)

(%)

BR T ST At 3 Ab > i A 4 B2 T AT B AR
1 T A o U ik v S 3 A 4 S AR A
JE T o8 1 47 00 BB IR B0 B R B R
U 45 #5 6 BU 5 i R T 81 G 48 R e

By
j( 2 ZE'B °

T o S5 O S S 1 OB AL IR

A G2 [ A A 4F BE UK ME T A o B S R
e QU5 165% o 7 v 5 i 4t YE JI) 25 16 5 I
REBEGFENS17REE ([FE G5
HEQNSE179% ] ) KA B i R

HLEE Y R 38

A 4 [ L 388 ) A HE R 5 i -t e T E T
AT YR R B 1 75% K A R
HRBEET R REEAREE LT
A FH B R 2 A B S & A
B s i ot e I SR 168 > (EUR S 8 S A I R
ak F 5 & AR R B0 5 A0 RE R RZ HE R o (R
L > A 452 o 316 0 S A A R OB B
B EAFAE & 4 o

MR F—AFELH — B RZERT LK
ERT R & K0T 5 A5 AR U8 7 v U S
o YE QI 25 1658 BT A9 B2 E T A B B0 E
# LR EnaslE-

i 2 AL

A B o e ISR 1658 IH T A R
& g B 7 2B A o gt e S 179 R
BORA TR o AR AT 48 4 o ) B i it e
BIJ SR 175 0 1y Dt RISt AL B 0 L AR
B Fl A o (R T v BB R YR T 2R
1657 3 A 4 H A 2 th AN io L3I i 5
B o WA N 2 B R B E KB A
TR 1798
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 May 2019. As at 1 May 2019, the Group
recognised additional lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
at amounts equal to the related lease liabilities adjusted by
any prepaid or accrued lease payments by applying HKFRS
16.C8(b)(ii) transition. Any difference at the date of initial
application is recognised in the opening accumulated
profits and comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach under
HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the following
practical expedients to leases previously classified as
operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-by-lease basis,
to the extent relevant to the respective lease contracts:

i. excluded initial direct costs from measuring the
right-of-use assets at the date of initial application;

ii. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases
with a similar remaining term for similar class of
underlying assets in similar economic environment.
Specifically, discount rate for certain leases of leased
properties in Hong Kong and People’s Republic of
China (“PRC”) was determined on a portfolio basis;

iil. used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining the
lease term for the Group’s leases with extension and
termination options;

iv. elected not to recognise right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities for leases with lease term ends within 12
months of the date of initial application; and

V. relied on the assessment of whether lease are
onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provisions,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as an
alternative of impairment view.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

JEE 50 ) B 485 T A 8 A R
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HWW RN E16AE ()
-V 3PN
A A5 ] 238 W) T A s S A E RIS
16595 > RFH 2t s K IEA H (Bl =%
—JUERH—H)HER R F—LER
H— H > A< 55 18 i FH 75 s 10 5 i 1 e HI) 5
16.C8(b)(ii) 9% 4% I K 2 42 A 55 i AH B AL
EEE%%% AT A A B R AR B AT
SRVE M ) e RRAE ANFH B B S R
%% AT YR RE R 3 B AT 4] 2 %8 0 0 4
B MR LB R A T E o

P A 5 S0 B P A s B i A YE I S 16
DREMNSEA PSR N L (E o
R L e A BRI AEL B 4 o (B 0 B e
MEFE G EE 7R A EEH
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases previously
classified as operating leases, the Group has applied
incremental borrowing rates of the relevant group entities
at the date of initial application. The weighted average
incremental borrowing rates applied by relevant group
entities ranged from 3.05% to 4.51%. The lease liabilities

Y 50 ) e 4855 i A v A 5 L
A uE L (17 o 0 B e e 1 1)

(%)

ﬁiﬁ%%#%ﬁﬁﬂ%lé%ﬂﬁ (%)
AN (4

?th‘aﬁﬁ%%ﬁi%m%mhmahﬁﬁ =1
=R ZIK%IEEM%‘U\WEH%EI%W%WH
B 4 BB B 0 B A ORI R o A B4R
B R 0 0 R T 24 448 2 1 ORI SR A T
3.05% E4.51%. o it ~E—NHFEHHA—H
ZHEAER®ER “FE—LFEMNH=1+H

as at 1 May 2019 reconciled to the operating lease Z RS R H IR
commitments as at 30 April 2019 is as follows:
At
1 May 2019
wE U
HH—H
HK$’000
Tt
Operating lease commitments disclosed AT —JUEM A =+ BB
as at 30 April 2019 K ERIE 56,043
Less: practical expedient — leases with lease W AT AT RE R 5 s — R R K ORE R E
term ending within 12 months from EEFE1248 A &5 R A
date of initial application (404)
Less: Leases not yet commenced B ZF— U R H — B R B G #0 L
on 1 May 2019 -
Less: Effect from discounting R ﬂﬂiﬂﬁ — H 2 1 25 R R R
at the incremental borrowing rate St 3 01 52 %2
as at 1 May 2019 (5,143)
50,496
Add: obligation under finance lease recognised Jill : 7 & —JL4E U A =+ H 5819
as at 30 April 2019 il AR B R A 457
Lease liabilities as at 1 May 2019 MW E-NERLH - HRHE &G 50,953
Analysed as: M
Current T 11,876
Non-current IE i B 39,077

50,953
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

2. APPLICATION OF NEW AND
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (continued)
As a lessee (continued)
The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use as

R D0 T B 465 T 7 8 1 5
SR (TR EM B w A dE i)
(#1)

7 s T A 8 5 ¥ 0SB 1 OB L 1T (40
fie Z R ALA ()

WM B JUE R A — B2 E

at 1 May 2019 comprises the following: A T L FL 4G AT 45 TH -
At
1 May 2019
R E—JUAE
HH—H
HK$’000
Tt
Right-of-use assets relating to operating leases i M ] B 5 U 75 it 4 186 HIJ 55 1 655 1% filE 53 5L
recognised upon application of HKFRS 16 SR B R E 50,496
Add: Right-of-use assets relating to T s I A s B A E R SR 1658 4%
deposits of operating leases recognised ifE 2 B 456 4 FH 5 e < 7 R 110
upon application of HKFRS 16 j<qz3 377
Add: Amounts included in property, AR BEAE ds e st RSB 1798 R A 2
plant and equipment under HKAS 17 W T M 2 &% — BT AR
— Assets previously under finance leases S EIH T 2 & 768
51,641
By class eS|
Vehicle 1 768
Building M 50,873
51,641
Note: it

In relation to assets previously under finance leases, the Group
recategorised the carrying amounts of the relevant assets which
were still under lease as at 1 May 2019 amounting to HK$768,000
as right-of-use assets. In addition, the Group reclassified the
obligations under finance leases of HK$457,000 to lease liabilities
as current liabilities respectively at 1 May 2019.

Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group considered
refundable rental deposits paid as rights and obligations under
leases to which HKAS 17 applied under other receivables. Based
on the definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use of the
underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect the discounting
effect at transition. Accordingly, HK$377,000 was adjusted to
refundable rental deposits paid and right-of-use assets.

AT R EREE FNEREN S > AEH
MR E LA T A — BT R R R A 4 R
75768,00095 JC 1Y HH B & 7E MR T (B 2R 4> MU
R REE R o M Ah > AREEER —F—LER A
— H #%457,000% 7T (1 Bl & LS R I8 T 0
By A fE -

s TR P A U B S o 1 R BE Lo T A AR K
B AR 1] AL 4 9% 4 40 1 8 R A s R R
551795 1) L AR B RE D R AT > A A L il R it
AT o AR 95 B vk B s A B B B 1655 T AL
BT HN 52 28> 3% % 4 4300 IR BEL G0 A A BH
HE T A 8 A DB > A A R DL A O R
5 BB 2 o (KK > 377,0009 o0 L 9 2 £ 2 Al
35 [ L 4 e 4 M (P RE S E o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 285 A M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. KEJBRT B S M) 75 v BB it
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG (7% WS 0 i Ml )
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

HKFRS 16 LEASES (continued) s W05 A SR 1R AL (A
As a lessee (continued) fE 2 LN (8)

The following adjustments were made to the amounts EER _F—JUFE A — HWEES M
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial IR 2R A e R Y < BEAE S DL R RRE o R
position at 1 May 2019. Line items that were not affected A B 52 W) 52 B THE I S A4 LR A o

by the changes have not been included.

Carrying
amounts Carrying
previously amounts under
report at HKFRS 16 at
30 April 2019 Adjustments 1 May 2019
itk
M BRE
5 Rl #1698
/A Sl 2 /A Sl R
MH=+H +H—H
5 e Y R i i Py W T
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$°000
THTT T T THTT
Non-current assets IE i )
Property, plant and equipment ) 2 ~ # %% & 5 H5 160,853 (768) 160,085
Right-of-use assets i AR & = 51,641 51,641
Current assets i )
Deposits and prepayments P 4 T A RO 23,074 377) 22,697
Current liabilities it B £
Obligation under finance lease il & fH 1 7&K ¥ 457 (457) -
Lease liabilities iENE =K
— due within one year — —4F A £ 1Y = 11,876 11,876
Non-current liabilities IE i B A1
Lease liabilities HEAMRE
— due over one year —— 415 2 # = 39,077 39,077
For the purpose of reporting cash flows from operating MU E IR RREE S F LA
activities under indirect method for the year ended 30 April ST HIEFENEESEHAESRE
2020, movements in working capital have been computed M5 4 G 5 W )4 b SO B i —
based on opening statement of financial position as at F— LR H — H OB EA A0 BB R 0L 3 s

1 May 2019 as disclosed above. Ho
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 255 A A

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

2.  APPLICATION OF NEW AND 2. MERBRT K SR AT A IR
AMENDMENTS HONG KONG HUER) ([FBM R ])
FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS (%)

(“HKFRSS”) (continued)

NEWS AND AMENDMENTS TO HKFRSS IN 8 0 A AL A A 3800 B ) B AR T

ISSUE BUT NOT YET EFFECTIVE T v W 05 i e |

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts?

T vk W R E RIS 7% TRB A %2

Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a Business?

B s W IR M ISR 3R 2 BT AR T 3

Amendments to HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28 Sale or Contribution of Assets between an Investor and

its Associate or Joint Venture'

T vk W R Y RIS 1055 K & H HEWE A T A B AT Z WY E LT
B FHE R 2898 2 BT A

Amendments to HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material*

Rt ave s EIEAUYE AL P TIEN CIpNIOMEE 3

Amendments to HKFRS 9 HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark Reform4
HKFRS 7

T v U R Y R SR O 5% ] % B e Y

s gk I 239 5% K
7 Y P S i o E R SR 79 2 B T A

Amendments to HKFRS 16 COVID-19-Related Rent Concession’

7 s B ME RS 165 2 BT A Covid-194H B #H 4 7 %

: Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a date to ! AR 2 B2 A% B e /Y 4R T T A
be determined e

©

MoFZ—F -~ HHZEHIEN

Effective for annual periods beginning on or after

1 January 2021 A JEE JY ] AR 2
3 Effective for business combinations and asset acquisitions g HUWEHIMAE —F _FF —H—Hg
for which the acquisition date is on or after the beginning Z 1% B e 2z AR AR R B R ) 5 2 48
of the first annual period beginning on or after 1 January 1) S5 5 DF B 7 i 0 A K
2020
& Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 4 AR CFRE - —HRZ BB ED
1 January 2020 A 7 ] AR 2
. Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1 June 5 AZEZREARNA - HBZEH G
2020 A JEE A [R] A 2
In addition to the above new and amendments to HKFRSs, B bl T B ARG T A s B A e )
a revised “Conceptual Framework for Financial Reporting” Ah > ST [ A o S HE 22 ] 2 =
was issued in 2018. Tts consequential amendments, F— AR A - T EL A REAE T > R s B
the “Amendments to References to the Conceptual 5 4 5 HE R TAE G HE B 5] o AE T ) 4%
Framework” in HKFRS Standards, will be effective for W R R —H — H B2 G
annual periods beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The J3 1 TH] 2B A0 0 AR ) HE < TEHA I L A B
directors of the Company anticipate that the application I T REAE AT A s B i R R AE T R R
of all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have no AR A g S 5 B TS R A I K 2 o

material impact on the consolidated financial statements in
the foreseeable future.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES
STATEMENT OF COMPLIANCE

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
in accordance with HKFRSs, which is a collective term
that includes all applicable individual HKFRSs, HKASs
and Interpretations issued by the HKICPA, and accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong. In addition,
the consolidated financial statements also comply with the
applicable disclosure provisions of the Rules Governing the
Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange (the “Listing
Rules”) and the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared
on the historical cost basis except for certain financial
instruments that are measured at fair values at the end
of each reporting period, as explained in the accounting

policies set out below.

Historical cost is generally based on the fair value of the
consideration given in exchange for goods and services.

Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an
asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction
between market participants at the measurement date,
regardless of whether that price is directly observable or
estimated using another valuation technique. In estimating
the fair value of an asset or a liability, the Group takes into
account the characteristics of the asset or liability if market
participants would take those characteristics into account
when pricing the asset or liability at the measurement date.
Fair value for measurement and/or disclosure purposes in
these consolidated financial statements is determined on
such a basis, except for share-based payment transactions
that are within the scope of HKFRS 2 share-based
payment, leasing transactions that are accounted for in
accordance with HKFRS 16 (since 1 May 2019) or HKAS
17 (before application of HKFRS 16), and measurements
that have some similarities to fair value but are not fair
value, such as net realisable value in HKAS 2 Inventories

or value in use in HKAS 36 Impairment of assets.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

In addition, for financial reporting purposes, fair value
measurements are categorised into Level 1, 2 or 3 based
on the degree to which the inputs to the fair value
measurements are observable and the significance of the
inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, which
are described as follows:

. Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in
active markets for identical assets or liabilities that
the entity can access at the measurement date;

. Level 2 inputs are inputs, other than quoted prices
included within Level 1, that are observable for the
asset or liability, either directly or indirectly; and

. Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs for the asset
or liability.

The principal accounting policies are set out below.

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION

The consolidated financial statements incorporate the
financial statements of the Company and entities controlled
by the Company and its subsidiaries. Control is achieved
when the Company:

. has power over the investee;

. is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee; and

. has the ability to use its power to affect its returns.

The Group reassesses whether or not it controls an investee
if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes to
one or more of the three elements of control listed above.

Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group
obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the
Group loses control of the subsidiary. Specifically, income
and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or disposed of
during the year are included in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income from the
date the Group gains control until the date when the Group
ceases to control the subsidiary.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

BASIS OF CONSOLIDATION (continued)

Profit or loss and each item of other comprehensive income
are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of
subsidiaries is attributed to the owners of the Company
and to the non-controlling interests even if this results in
the non-controlling interests having a deficit balance.

When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies
into line with the Group’s accounting policies.

All intragroup assets and liabilities, equity, income,
expenses and cash flows relating to transactions
between members of the Group are eliminated in full on
consolidation.

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS

The Group recognises revenue when (or as) a performance
obligation is satisfied, i.e. when “control” of the goods or
services underlying the particular performance obligation is
transferred to the customer.

A performance obligation represents a good or service (or
a bundle of goods or services) that is distinct or a series of
distinct goods or services that are substantially the same.

Control is transferred over time and revenue is recognised
over time by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of the relevant performance obligation if one
of the following criteria is met:

. The customer simultaneously receives and consumes
the benefits provided by the Group’s performance as
the Group performs;

. The Group’s performance creates and enhances
an asset that the customer controls as the Group
performs; or

. The Group’s performance does not create an asset
with an alternative use to the Group and the Group
has an enforceable right to payment for performance
complete to date.

Otherwise, revenue is recognized at a point in time when
the customer obtains control of the distinct good or
service.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

REVENUE FROM CONTRACTS WITH
CUSTOMERS (continued)

A contract asset represents the Group’s right to
consideration in exchange for goods or services that
the Group has transferred to a customer that is not yet
unconditional. It is assessed for impairment in accordance
with HKFRS 9. In contrast, a receivable represents the
Group’s unconditional right to consideration, i.e. only
the passage of time is required before payment of that
consideration is due.

A contract liability represents the group’s obligation
to transfer goods or services to a customer for which
the Group has received consideration (or an amount of
consideration is due) from the customer.

A contract asset and a contract liability relating to a
contract are accounted for an presented on a net basis.

Sale of goods

Revenue from manufacture and sale of integrated circuit
leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related products are
recognised at the point in time when control of the asset
is transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of the
products. The normal credit term is 30 days to 90 days
upon delivery. Payment in advance is required for some
contracts.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognised when
it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to the
Group and the amount of income can be measured reliably.
Interest income is accrued on a time basis, by reference
to the principal outstanding and at the effective interest
rate applicable, which is the rate that exactly discounts the
estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on
initial recognition.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
Property, plant and equipment held for use in the
production or supply of goods, or for administrative
purposes (other than properties under construction as
described below) are stated in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost less subsequent accumulated
depreciation and subsequent accumulated impairment
losses, if any.

Properties in the course of construction for production,
supply or administrative purposes are carried at cost, less
any recognised impairment loss. Costs include professional
fees and, for qualifying assets, borrowing costs capitalised
in accordance with the Group’s accounting policy. Such
properties are classified to the appropriate categories of
property, plant and equipment when completed and ready
for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets
are ready for their intended use.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost
of items of property, plant and equipment (other than
construction in progress) less their residual values over
their estimated useful lives, using the straight-line method.
The estimated useful lives, residual values and depreciation
method are reviewed at the end of each reporting period,
with the effect of any changes in estimate accounted for on
a prospective basis.

Assets held under finance leases are depreciated over their
expected useful lives on the same basis as owned assets.

An item of property, plant and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are
expected to arise from the continued use of the asset. Any
gain or loss arising on the disposal or retirement of an
item of property, plant and equipment is determined as
the difference between the sales proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset and is recognised in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews the
carrying amounts of its property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets, with finite useful lives to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication exists,
the recoverable amount of the relevant asset is estimated
in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if

any).

The recoverable amount of property, plant and equipment
and right-of-use assets are estimated individually. When
it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount
individually, the Group estimates the recoverable amount
of the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs.

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is indication
that corporate assets may be impaired. If such indication
exists, corporate assets are also allocated to individual
cash-generating units, when a reasonable and consistent
basis of allocation can be identified, or otherwise they are
allocated to the smallest group of cash-generating units for
which a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs
of disposal an value in use. In assessing value in use, the
estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present
value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current
market assessments, of the time value of money and the
risks specific to the asset (or a cash-generating unit) for
which the estimates of future cash flows have not been
adjusted.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

IMPAIRMENT ON PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT AND RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
(continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or a cash-generating
unit) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the
carrying amount of the asset (or a cash-generating unit) is
reduced to its recoverable amount. For corporate assets or
portion of corporate assets which cannot be allocated on a
reasonable and consistent basis to a cash-generating unit,
the Group compares the carrying amount of a group of
cash-generating units, including the carrying amounts of
the corporate assets or portion of corporate assets allocated
to that group of cash-generating units, with the recoverable
amount of the group of cash-generating units In allocating
the impairment loss, the impairment loss is allocated
first to reduce the carrying amount of any goodwill (if
applicable) and then to the other assets on a pro-rata basis
based on the carrying amount of each asset in the unit of
the group of cash-generating units. The carrying amount
of an asset is not reduced below the highest of its fair
value less costs of disposal (if measurable), its value in use
(if determinable) and zero. The amount of the impairment
loss that would otherwise have been allocated to the asset
is allocated pro rata to the other assets of the unit or the
group of cash-generating units. An impairment loss is
recognised immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the
carrying amount of the asset (or cash-generating unit
or a group of cash-generating units) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount, but so
that the increased carrying amount does not exceed the
carrying amount that would have been determined had not
impairment loss been recognised for the asset (or a cash-
generating unit or a group of cash-generation units) in
prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised
immediately in profit or loss.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

LEASES

Definition of a lease (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions on Note 2)

A contract is, or contains, a lease if the contract conveys
the right to control the use of an identified asset for a
period of time in exchange for consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising from
business combinations on or after the date of initial
application, the Group assesses whether a contract is or
contains a lease based on the definition under HKFRS
16 at inception, modification date or acquisition date, as
appropriate. Such contract will not be reassessed unless
the terms and conditions of the contract are subsequently
changed.

The Group as a lessee (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions on Note 2)

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
For a contract that contains a lease component
and non-lease components, the Group allocates the
consideration in the contract to each lease component
on the basis of the relative stand-alone price of the lease
component and the aggregate stand-alone price of the
non-lease components.

The Group also applies practical expedient not to separate
non-lease components from lease component, and instead
account for the lease component and any associated
non-lease components as a single lease component.

As a practical expedient, leases with similar characteristics
are accounted on a portfolio basis when the Group
reasonably expects that the effects on the financial
statements would not differ materially from individual
leases within the portfolio.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

LEASES (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of property that have a lease term of
12 months or less from the commencement date and do not
contain a purchase option. It also applies the recognition
exemption for lease of low-value assets. Lease payments
on short-term leases and leases of low-value assets are
recognised as expense on a straight-line basis or another
systematic basis over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

. the amount of the initial measurement of the lease
liability;

. any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

. any initial direct costs incurred by the Group; and

. an estimate of costs to be incurred by the Group

in dismantling and removing the underlying assets,
restoring the site on which it is located or restoring
the underlying asset to the condition required by the
terms and conditions of the lease.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably certain
to obtain ownership of the underlying leased assets at the
end of the lease term is depreciated from commencement
date to the end of the useful life. Otherwise, right-of-use
assets are depreciated on a straight-line basis over the
shorter of its estimated useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate line
item on the consolidated statements of financial position.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

LEASES (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value. Adjustments
to fair value at initial recognition are considered as
additional lease payments and included in the cost of
right-of-use assets.

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group recognises
and measures the lease liability at the present value of
lease payments that are unpaid at that date. In calculating
the present value of lease payments, the Group uses the
incremental borrowing rate at the lease commencement
date if the interest rate implicit in the lease is not readily
determinable.

The lease payments include:

. fixed payments (including in-substance fixed
payments) less any lease incentives receivable;

. variable lease payments that depend on an index or
a rate;

. amounts expected to be paid under residual value
guarantees;

. the exercise price of a purchase option reasonably

certain to be exercised by the Group; and

. payments of penalties for terminating a lease, if the
lease term reflects the Group exercising the option
to terminate.

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are adjusted
by interest accretion and lease payments.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

LEASES (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use assets)
whenever:

. the lease term has changed or there is a change in
the assessment of exercise of a purchase option, in
which case the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using a
revised discount rate at the date of reassessment.

. the lease payments change due to changes in market
rental rates following a market rent review/expected
payment under a guaranteed residual value, in
which cases the related lease liability is remeasured
by discounting the revised lease payments using the
initial discount rate.

The Group presents lease liabilities as a separate line item
on the consolidated statement of financial position.

Lease modifications
The Group accounts for a lease modification as a separate

lease if:

. the modification increases the scope of the lease
by adding the right to use one or more underlying
assets; and

. the consideration for the leases increases by an

amount commensurate with the stand-alone price
for the increase in scope and any appropriate
adjustments to that stand-alone price to reflect the
circumstances of the particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

LEASES (continued)

As a lessor

Allocation of consideration to components of a contract
Effective on 1 May 2019, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to
allocate consideration in a contract to lease and non-lease
components. Non-lease components are separated from
lease component on the basis of their relative stand-alone
selling prices.

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the lease
payments for the new lease.

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (PRIOR TO 1 MAY
2019)

Leases are classified as finance leases whenever the terms
of the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee. All other leases are classified as
operating leases.

The Group as lessee

Assets held under finance lease are initially recognised as
assets of the Group at their fair value at the inception of
the lease or, if lower, at the present value of the minimum
lease payments. The corresponding liability to the lessor is
included in the consolidated statement of financial position
as a finance lease obligation.

Lease payments are apportioned between finance expenses
and reduction of the lease obligation so as to achieve a
constant rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability. Finance expenses are recognised immediately
in profit or loss, unless they are directly attributable to
qualifying assets, in which case they are capitalised in
accordance with the Group’s general policy on borrowing
costs.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense on
a straight-line basis over the lease term.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

THE GROUP AS A LESSEE (PRIOR TO 1 MAY
2019) (continued)

The Group as lessor

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the amount of the Group’s net
investment in the leases. Finance lease income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant periodic
rate of return on the Group’s net investment outstanding
in respect of the leases.

Rental income from operating leases is recognised on a
straight-line basis over the term of the relevant lease.
Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and arranging
an operating lease are added to the carrying amount of the
leased asset and recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease term.

FOREIGN CURRENCIES

In preparing the financial statements of each individual
group entity, transactions in currencies other than the
functional currency of that entity (foreign currencies)
are recorded in the respective functional currency (i.e.
the currency of the primary economic environment in
which the entity operates) at the rates of exchanges
prevailing on the dates of transactions. At the end of the
reporting period, monetary items denominated in foreign
currencies are retranslated at the rates prevailing on that
date. Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are
denominated in foreign currencies are retranslated at
the rates prevailing on the date when the fair value was
determined. Non-monetary items that are measured in
terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
retranslated.

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary
items, and on the retranslation of monetary items, are
recognised in profit or loss in the period in which they
arise.

For the purpose of presenting consolidated financial
statements, the assets and liabilities of the Group’s foreign
operations are translated into the presentation currency
of the Group (i.e. HKS) at the rate of exchange prevailing
at the end of each reporting period. Income and expense
items are translated at the average exchange rates for the
year. Exchange differences arising, if any, are recognised
in other comprehensive income and accumulated in equity
under the heading of the translation reserve.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FOREIGN CURRENCIES (continued)

On the disposal of a foreign operation (i.e. a disposal
of the Group’s entire interest in a foreign operation),
all of the exchange differences accumulated in equity in
respect of that operation attributable to the owners of the
Company are reclassified to profit or loss.

BORROWING COSTS

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction or production of qualifying assets, which
are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of
time to get ready for their intended use or sale, are added
to the cost of those assets until such time as the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
Investment income earned on the temporary investment of
specific borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying
assets is deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for
capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in
the period in which they are incurred.

RETIREMENT BENEFIT COSTS

Payments to defined contribution retirement benefit plans,
including state-managed retirement benefit schemes and the
Mandatory Provident Fund Scheme (the “MPF Scheme”)
are recognised as an expense when employees have rendered
services entitling them to the contributions.

In accordance with the rules and regulations in the PRC,
the PRC based employees of the Group participate in
various defined contribution retirement benefit plans
organised by the relevant municipal and provincial
governments in the PRC under which the Group and the
employees are required to make monthly contributions to
these plans calculated as a percentage of the employees’
salaries, subject to certain ceiling. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations of all existing and future retired PRC
based employees payable under the plans described above.
Other than the monthly contributions, the Group has no
further obligation for the payment of retirement and other
post-retirement benefits of its employees. The assets of
these plans are held separately from the subsidiary in an
independent fund managed by the PRC government.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

TAXATION

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently
payable and deferred tax.

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for
the year. Taxable profit differs from profit/loss before
tax because of income or expense that are taxable or
deductible in other years and items that are never taxable
or deductible. The Group’s current tax is calculated using
tax rates that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
in the consolidated financial statements and the
corresponding tax bases used in the computation of taxable
profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised
for all taxable temporary differences. Deferred tax assets
are generally recognised for all deductible temporary
differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable
profits will be available against which those deductible
temporary differences can be utilised. Such deferred tax
assets and liabilities are not recognised if the temporary
difference arises from the initial recognition of assets and
liabilities in a transaction that affects neither the taxable
profit nor the accounting profit.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for taxable temporary
differences associated with investments in subsidiaries,
except where the Group is able to control the reversal
of the temporary difference and it is probable that the
temporary difference will not reverse in foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets arising from deductible temporary
differences associated with such investments are only
recognised to the extent that it is probable that there will
be sufficient taxable profits against which to utilise the
benefits of the temporary differences and they are expected
to reverse in the foreseeable future.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at
the end of the reporting period and reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits
will be available to allow all or part of the asset to be
recovered.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

TAXATION (continued)

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax
rates that are expected to apply in the period in which the
liability is settled or the asset is realised, based on tax rates (and
tax laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted
by the end of the reporting period.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-of-use
assets and the related lease liabilities, the Group first
determines whether the tax deductions are attributable to
the right-of-use assets or the lease liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions are
attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group applies
HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities separately. Temporary differences
relating to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are not
recognised at initial recognition and over the lease terms
due to application of the initial recognition exemption.

The measurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets
reflects the tax consequences that would follow from the
manner in which the Group expects, at the end of the
reporting period, to recover or settle the carrying amount
of its assets and liabilities. Current and deferred tax are
recognised in profit or loss.

INVENTORIES

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable
value. Costs of inventories are calculated using the
weighted average method. Net realisable value represents
the estimated selling price for inventories, in the ordinary
course of business, less all estimated costs of completion
and the estimated costs necessary to make the sale.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when the
group entity becomes a party to the contractual provisions of
the instrument. All regular way purchases or sales of financial
assets are recognised and derecognised on a trade date/settlement
date basis. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales
of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time

frame established by regulation or convention in the market place.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured
at fair value except for trade receivables arising from contracts
with customers which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15. Transaction costs that are directly attributable to the
acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial liabilities are
added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets
or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition.
Transaction costs directly attributable to the acquisition of
financial assets or financial liabilities at Fair value through profit

or loss (“FVTPL”) are recognised in profit or loss.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial asset or financial liability and of
allocating interest income and interest expense over the relevant
period. The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts
estimated future cash receipts and payments (including all fees and
points paid or received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or discounts)
through the expected life of the financial asset or financial liability,
or, where appropriate, a shorter period, to the net carrying amount

on initial recognition.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is to collect contractual cash flows;
and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions
are subsequently measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVTOCI”):

. the financial asset is held within a business model
whose objective is achieved by both selling and
collecting contractual cash flows; and

. the contractual terms give rise on specified dates to
cash flows that are solely payments of principal and
interest on the principal amount outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured at
FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/initial
recognition of a financial asset the Group may irrevocably
elect to present subsequent changes in fair value of an
equity investment in other comprehensive income if that
equity investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

. it has been acquired principally for the purpose of
selling in the near term; or

. on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual pattern of
short-term profit-taking; or

. it is a derivative that is not designated and effective
as a hedging instrument.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at the
amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL if
doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an accounting
mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest
method for financial assets measured subsequently at
amortised cost. Interest income is calculated by applying
the effective interest rate to the gross carrying amount
of a financial asset, except for financial assets that
have subsequently become credit-impaired (see below).
For financial assets that have subsequently become
credit-impaired, interest income is recognised by applying
the effective interest rate to the amortised cost of the
financial asset from the next reporting period. If the credit
risk on the credit-impaired financial instrument improves
so that the financial asset is no longer credit-impaired,
interest income is recognised by applying the effective
interest rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial
asset from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated as
FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value
at the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net gain
or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any dividend
or interest earned on the financial asset and is stated in
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income line item.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises loss allowances for expected credit losses (“ECL”)
on the following financial instruments that are neither measured at
FVTPL:

(a) trade receivables, loan and interest receivables
(b) other receivables and deposits
(c) cash and bank balances

ECLs are required to be measured through a loss allowance at an

amount equal to:

(a) 12-month ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from those
default events on the financial instrument that are possible
within 12 months after the reporting date (referred to as
Stage 1); or

(b) Lifetime ECL, i.e. lifetime ECL that result from all
possible default events over the life of the financial

instrument (referred to as Stage 2 and Stage 3).

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from all possible
default events over the expected life of the relevant instrument.
In contrast, 12-month ECL (“12m ECL”) represents the portion
of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events that
are possible within 12 months after the reporting date. Assessment
are done based on the Group’s historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, general
economic conditions and an assessment of both the current
conditions at the reporting date as well as the forecast of future

conditions.

The Group always recognises lifetime ECL for trade receivables.
The ECL on these assets are assessed individually for debtors with

significant balances.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the loss allowance
equal to 12m ECL, unless when there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since initial recognition, the Group
recognises lifetime ECL. The assessment of whether lifetime
ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the

likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial recognition.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Impairment of financial assets (continued)

ECLs are a probability-weighted estimate of the present value
of credit losses. These are measured as the present value of the
difference between the cash flows due to the Group under the
contract and the cash flows that the Group expects to receive
arising from the weighting of multiple future economic scenarios,
discounted at the asset’s effective interest rate.

The Group measures ECL on an individual basis, or on a collective
basis for portfolios of financial instruments that share similar
economic risk characteristics. The measurement of loss allowance
is based on the present value of the asset’s expected cash flows
using the asset’s original effective interest rate, regardless of
whether it is measured on an individual basis or a collective basis.

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk on a financial instrument
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the financial
instrument as at the reporting date with the risk of a default
occurring on the financial instruments as at the date of initial
recognition. In making this assessment, the Group considers both
quantitative and quantitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and forward-looking
information that is available without undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information taken into account when
assessing whether credit risk has increased significantly since initial
recognition:

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
financial instrument’s external (if available) or internal
credit rating;

. significant deterioration in external market indicators
of credit risk for a particular financial instrument, e.g. a
significant increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor, or the length of time or the
extent to which the fair value of a financial asset has been

less than its amortised cost;

. existing or forecast adverse changes in business, financial
or economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant decrease in the debtor’s ability to meet its debt
obligations;

3.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)

. an actual or expected significant deterioration in the
operating results of the debtor; significant increases in
credit risk on other financial instruments of the same
debtor;

. an actual or expected significant adverse change in the
regulatory, economic, or technological environment of the
debtor that results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of the criteria used
to identify whether there has been a significant increase in credit
risk and revises them as appropriate to ensure that the criteria are
capable of identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

The Group considers the following as constituting an event of
default for internal credit risk management purposes as historical
experience indicates that receivables that meet either of the
following criteria are generally not recoverable.

. when there is a breach of financial covenants by the
counterparty; or

. information developed internally or obtained from external
sources indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its
creditors, including the Group, in full (without taking into

account any collaterals held by the Group).

Irrespective of the above analysis, the Group considers that default
has occurred when a financial asset is more than one year past
due unless the Group has reasonable and supportable information
to demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is more
appropriate.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is “credit-impaired” when one or more events that
have a detrimental impact on the estimated future cash flows of
the financial asset have occurred. Evidence of credit-impairment
includes observable data about the following events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the borrower or issuer;
(b) a breach of contract such as a default or past due event;
(c) the lender of the borrower, for economic or contractual

reasons relating to the borrower’s financial difficulty,
having granted to the borrower a concession that the
lender would not otherwise consider;

(d) the disappearance of an active market for a security
because of financial difficulties; or

(e) the purchase of a financial asset at a deep discount that
reflects the incurred credit losses.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there is information
indicating that the counterparty is in severe financial difficulty
and there is no realistic prospect of recovery, e.g. when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or has entered
into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial assets written off may still
be subject to enforcement activities under the Group’s recovery
procedures, taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
Any recoveries made are recognised in profit or loss.

Measurement and recognition of ECLs

The measurement of ECLs is a function of the probability of
default, loss given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there
is a default) and the exposure at default. The assessment of the
probability of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information as described
above. As for the exposure at default, for financial assets, this is
represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting
date; for financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the
amount drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any
additional amounts expected to be drawn down in the future by
default date determined based on historical trend, the Group’s
understanding of the specific future financing needs of the
debtors, and other relevant forward-looking information.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECLs (continued)

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between
all contractual cash flows that are due to the Group in accordance
with the contract and all the cash flows that the Group expects to

receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis to cater for cases
where evidence of significant increases in credit risk at the
individual instrument level may not yet be available, the financial

instruments are grouped on the following basis:

. Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group’s trade and

other receivables are each assessed as a separate group);

. Past-due status;

. Nature, size and industry of debtors;

. Nature of collaterals for finance lease receivables; and
. External credit ratings where available.

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management to ensure the
constituents of each separate group continues to share similar

credit risk characteristics.

If the Group has measured the loss allowance for a financial
instrument at an amount equal to lifetime ECL in the previous
reporting period, but determines at the current reporting date
that the conditions for lifetime ECL are no longer met, the Group
measures the loss allowance at an amount equal to 12m ECL at

the current reporting date.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Measurement and recognition of ECLs (continued)

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss
for all financial instruments by adjusting their carrying amount
with the exception of trade receivables where the corresponding

adjustment is recognized through a loss allowance account.

Derecognition of financial assets

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when the
contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset expire or when
the financial asset and substantially all the risks and rewards of

ownership of the asset are transferred to another entity.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at amortised cost,
the difference between the asset’s carrying amount and the sum of
the consideration received and receivable is recognised in profit or

loss.

Financial liabilities and equity

Classitication as debt or equity

Debt and equity instruments that are issued are classified as either
financial liabilities or as equity in accordance with the substance

of the contractual arrangement.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities, trade and other payables, accrued
expenses, lease liabilities/obligations under finance leases
and bank and other borrowings are subsequently measured
at amortised cost using the effective interest method.

The effective interest method is a method of calculating the
amortised cost of a financial liability and of allocating interest
expense over the relevant period. The effective interest rate is the
rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through
the expected life of the financial liability, or, where appropriate, a

shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial recognition.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (continued)

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
Derecognition of financial liabilities

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and only when,
the Group’s obligations are discharged, canceled or have expired.
The difference between the carrying amount of the financial
liability derecognised and the consideration paid and payable is

recognised in profit or loss.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual
interest in the assets of an entity after deducting all of its
liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Group are recognised

at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT TRANSACTIONS
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

For share option granted to the directors and employees
of the Group, the fair value of their services received
determined by reference to the fair value of share
options granted at the grant date is vested and expensed
immediately with a corresponding increase in equity (share
options reserve).

When the share options are exercised, the amount
previously recognised in the share options reserve will be
transferred to share premium. When the share options are
forfeited after the vesting date or are still not exercised at
the expiry date, the amount previously recognised in the
share options reserve will be transferred to accumulated
losses.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY

In the application of the Group’s accounting policies,
which are described in Note 3, the directors of the
Company are required to make estimates and assumptions
about the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities that are
not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and
associated assumptions are based on historical experience
and other factors that are considered to be relevant. Actual
results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised
if the revision affects only that period, or in the period of
the revision and future periods if the revision affects both
current and future periods.

The following is key source of estimation uncertainty at the
end of the reporting period that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets within the next financial year.

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT

Determining whether items of property, plant and
equipment are impaired requires an estimation of the
recoverable amount of the property, plant and equipment
on an individual basis to the extent possible, which is
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. If it is not possible to determine the recoverable
amount on individual basis, the recoverable amount of
the cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs would
be determined. The value in use calculation requires the
Group to estimate the future cash flows expected to arise
from the cash-generating unit and a suitable discount
rate in order to calculate the present value. The discount
rate represents the rate that reflects the current market
assessment of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the asset for which the future cash flow estimates
have not been adjusted. If the actual future cash flows are
less than expected or if there are events or changes in facts
or circumstances which results in a revision of estimated
cash flow, further impairment loss on property, plant and
equipment may arise.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF PROPERTY, PLANT AND
EQUIPMENT (continued)

There is impairment loss on property, plant and equipment
of HK$24,739,000 was recognised during the year ended
30 April 2020 (2019: 1,370,000). The carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment is HK$126,783,000 (2019:
HK$160,853,000). Details of the recoverable amount
calculation are disclosed in Note 13.

ESTIMATED LOSS ALLOWANCE OF LOAN
RECEIVABLES

The loss allowances for loan receivables are based on
assumption about risk of default and expected loss rates.
The Group uses judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation, based on
the Group’s past history, existing market conditions as well
as forward-looking estimates at the end of each reporting
period. Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in Note 18.

ESTIMATED LOSS ALLOWANCE OF TRADE
AND OTHER RECEIVABLES

The loss allowances for trade and other receivables are
based on assumptions about risk of default and expected
loss rates. The Group uses judgement in making these
assumptions and selecting the inputs to the impairment
calculation, based on the Group’s past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates
at the end of each reporting period. Details of the key
assumptions and inputs used are disclosed in Note 16.

VALUATION OF SHARE OPTIONS

As explained in Note 31, share option expense is subject to
the limitations of the option pricing models adopted and
the uncertainty in estimates used by management in the
assumptions. Should the estimates including limited early
exercise behavior, expected interval and frequency of open
exercise periods in the share option life and the relevant
parameters of the share option model be changed, there
would be material changes in the amount of share option
benefits recognised in the profit or loss and share-based
payment reserve. The Binominal Option Pricing Model
and Black-Scholes Option Pricing Model were applied to
estimate the fair value of share options granted by the
Company. These pricing models require the input of highly
subjective assumptions, including the volatility of share
price. The changes in input assumptions can materially
affect the fair value estimate.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATION
UNCERTAINTY (continued)

IMPAIRMENT OF RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS
Right-of-use assets are stated at costs less accumulated
depreciation and impairment, if any. In determining
whether an asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise
judgment and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that may
affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying value of an
asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, in the
case of value in use, the net present value of future cash
flows which are estimated based upon the continued use
of the asset; and (3) the appropriate key assumptions to
be applied in estimating the recoverable amounts including
cash flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present value
used in the impairment test.

As at 30 April 2020, the carrying amounts of right-of-use
assets amounted to HK$33,736,000, no impairment losses
were recognised during the year ended 30 April 2020.
Details of the right-of-use assets are disclosed in note 14.

DETERMINING THE LEASE TERM

As explained in note 2, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease term
at the commencement date for leases that include renewal
options exercisable by the Group, the Group evaluates the
likelihood of exercising the renewal options taking into
account all relevant facts and circumstances that create an
economic incentive for the Group to exercise the option,
including favourable terms, leasechold improvements
undertaken and the importance of that underlying assets
to the Group’s operation. The lease term is reassessed
when there is a significant event or significant change
in circumstance that is within the Group’s control.
Any increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.
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JBE e ) REL R O R

91



92

QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION

REVENUE

Revenue represents the amounts received and receivables
for goods sold by the Group to external customers less
sales returns and discounts. All revenue contracts are
for period of one year or less, as permitted by practical
expedient under HKFRS 15, the transaction price allocated
to these unsatisfied contracts is not disclosed. All revenue
were recognised at point in time.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Information reported to the executive directors of the
Company, being the chief operating decision maker
(“CODM"), for the purpose of resources allocation and
assessment of segment performance focuses on the location
of customers. The Group currently operates in one business
segment in the manufacture and sale of integrated circuit
leadframes, heatsinks, stiffeners and related product. A
single management team reports to chief operating decision
makers who comprehensively manages the entire business.
Accordingly, the Group does not have separate reportable
segments.

The customers of the Group are mainly located in the
United States of America (the “USA”), Hong Kong,
Europe, the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”),
Philippines, Malaysia, Singapore, Thailand. Customers
located in other countries have been aggregated into a
single reportable segment as the segments do not meet the
quantitative thresholds as set out in HKFRS 8.

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

5. REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL S.
INFORMATION (continued)
SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results
The following is an analysis of the Group’s revenue and

W di Be 23 B EERE (48)

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F

oy W EORE ()
VgLV ES

AR 7 A 42 181 4% T i o 0 380 B 31 23 Wi 4

results by reportable segment: &S vl
Revenue Segment results
g Vi E 3
2020 2019 2020 2019
SROBE CTNE SROBE CTE
HKS$’000 HK$000 HK$’000 HK$°000
T T SR Y T
The USA * 33,156 30,512 2,013 1,756
Hong Kong itk 1,480 2,166 84 138
Europe B 36,244 43214 2,362 2,756
The PRC i 94,525 80,196 2,403 1,876
Philippines FHE 5,428 8,267 404 522
Malaysia B A TG ER 62,730 50,319 4,119 3,126
Singapore HmyE 3,262 11,816 332 754
Thailand e 19,793 37,040 1,425 2,362
Reportable segment total A4 AR 256,618 263,530 13,142 13,290
Other countries Hi B % 21,853 22,629 1,243 1,425
278,471 286,159 14,385 14,715
Eliminations el (3,894) (3,416) = =
Revenue to external customers and  JMIE % F it 2
segment results L 274,577 282,743 14,385 14,715
Net gain on disposal of property, & ¥3 Wi Lt 2
plant and equipment Wi i 13 A 27 =
Net gain on disposal of HEMAEEE L
right-of-use assets i 4 5 AR 105 -
Impairment of property, VERE ST LV
plant and equipment W (24,739) (1,370)
Net fair value loss on financial BARBERABRGZ
asset at FVTPL SREEANME
g R (11,379) (13,293)
Realised (loss)/gain on disposal of & /A R A &
financial asset at FVTPL ZEMEEZ
E2H (BR) (2,066) 1,292
Equity-settled share-based e 7 5 B DA R A3 2 e
payment expenses VAN S5 - (8,500)
Depreciation of property, VERE £V v
plant and equipment e (12,131) (11,271)
Depreciation of right-of-use assets {fi i # & & 2 #7185 (15,738) -
Unallocated interest income A B A E A 1,648 1,984
Unallocated corporate expenses o B AR 2E B 3 (15,482) (28,039)
Finance cost g A (1,967) (26)
Loss before taxation W B Al i 4 (67,337) (44,508)
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment revenues and results (continued)

Included in the PRC reportable segments are revenue from
inter-segments of approximately HK$3,894,000 (2019:
HK$3,416,000).

The accounting policies of the operating segment are the
same as the Group’s accounting policies. Segment profit/(loss)
represents the profit/(loss) from each segment without
allocation of corporate expenses which include directors’
remuneration, depreciation expenses, net gain on disposal
of property, plant and equipment, net fair value loss on
financial asset at FVTPL, realised (loss)/gain on disposal
of financial asset at FVTPL, equity-settled share-based
payment expenses, interest income and finance costs. This
is the measure reported to the CODM for the purposes of
resources allocation and performance assessment.

Inter-segment sales are charged at prevailing market rates.

Segment assets
The following is an analysis of the Group’s assets by
reportable segment:

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W gi Be o3 B RERE (58

7y 6 HOR (A1)

ailiE- Y ES 4 )

H B TR A AR A A
3,894,000% 7C ( =% — JL4F : 3,416,000%
Je) e

Ke oy R 2 G Ak BUR BLA SR B 2 & RH B
HEAR A © 5p 3 A (s 57) 95 2K A % 70
B 2 i A, (s 48) - TSI 28 2 i 4 2 BA
X (EFEEREGWM) I ERSO HEY
3 MR AR B 2 i R 1 AU (E T
AR SR 2 4 Rl R N (e e TR R
BAREFARGEZ CMEE L C B
(B 1) Was ~ IR & 58 LU 0y 0y 2k
AT BB S FIB A DA B Bl B A @
Ty WUE IR ) BE B R BLRE AL ) £ B AR R
RE Bzt R

ViR TR 6 B 4 I 2 TS (B AR R
Zigi3:9:3

AT 2 A S 45 T 425 40 96 B 19
244

2020 2019
=t =¥ Z L SR
HK$’000 HK$000
F# Tt
The USA F 9,035 4,648
Hong Kong s 488 145
Europe [ 6,236 13,896
The PRC Hp 30,177 15,764
Philippines FHH 955 1,771
Malaysia J5 A% VG 5E 16,766 5,006
Singapore B 719 1,225
Thailand S 2,422 7,848
Reportable segment total AR O A T 66,798 50,303
Other countries T B R 2,548 3,407
69,346 53,710

Unallocated 43 Bic
Property, plant and equipment VERR Fr Y& 126,783 160,853
Right-of-use assets i I RE & 33,856 =
Inventories PR 48,639 45,487
Financial asset at FVTPL A REF A Z S EE 42,870 43,891
Other receivables At R i K I 2,242 55,848
Loan receivables JRE A £ 3K 20,239 20,323
Bank balances and cash SRAT &5 % LB 154,892 131,276
Deposits and prepayments i g T FUASH AR 21,600 23,074
Consolidated total assets HEERESME 520,467 534,462
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

REVENUE AND SEGMENTAL
INFORMATION (continued)

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION (continued)
Segment assets (continued)

For the purposes of monitoring segment performance
and allocating resources between segments, all assets
are allocated to operating segments other than property,
plant and equipment, right-of-use assets, financial asset
at FVTPL, inventories, other receivables, loan receivables,
deposits and prepayments and bank balances and cash.

No segment information on liabilities is presented as
such information is not regularly reported to the CODM
for the purpose of resources allocation and performance
assessment.

Geographical information by location of assets

The Group’s non-current assets of approximately
HK$50,154,000 (2019: HK$45,855,000) are located in
the PRC and approximately HK$110,485,000 (2019:
HKS$114,998,000) are located in Hong Kong based on
physical location of assets.

Information about major customers

Revenue from customers of the corresponding years
contributing over 10% of the total sales of the Group are
as follows:

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

W di Be 23 B EERE (48)

oy W EORE ()

k& B (f51)

BN = S A L B T <
ERLIECR 13- VEXCE - R )
5 3 - WA Bl T A
FAEF ARG 2 B MEE 7 HALRE
AT R T~ AR R % B B TR B S LA
B SRAT 45 B B4

F A 20 0 B AR ORI O A U TR 0
Lo R B AP A% ) A RO 2O B
f7 418 2 5 A7 Bl KL

5 R T A M T B 4y 2 b [ R

A S5 [ G A T A B AL B B ) R
Z BB EE B £)50,154,000 o0 ( —F
— JLA4F 1 45,855,000% o) K EH il 2 9k
B & 5 #9110,485,0004 96 (& —JL
41 114,998,000%5 7T) ©

HEREFZEH
T A A7 JBE A A 4 4 B AR 10% L 1
ZEFUERIT

2020 2019

R R TR U

HKS$’000 HKS$’000

T T T

Customer A — The USA HEFH—-%H 27,796 —*
Customer B — Europe BF Z — R 32,827 39,617
Customer C — Malaysia HE NS 41,724 S
Customer D — The PRC EET—%H 32,599 ¥
* The customers contributed less than 10% of the total * &5 E R D A S B AR R 9 10% o

revenue of the group.

Information about major products

The Group is solely engaged in the manufacture and sale
of leadframes, including integrated circuit leadframes,
heatsinks, stiffeners and related products. Since the
information on revenue from external customers for each
product and service is not available, no information related
to major products could be disclosed.

B3 B E 2 B

A £ A A 0 e B S AR AE > LA 4R
(R B | BRAE ~ BB ~ 0 R AR B A B

Al Z SES o Fh VS R 3 A B A% i B RS BT

RIS % B AR BB OB SR Bl &

T b Z EORL AT 4 R
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Ao B 255 A A

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

S

6. OTHER INCOME AND OTHER GAINS 6. oAU BCON DA B 3 il Wi 2 B s i

AND LOSSES
2020 2019
SRR TR —JUE
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
F#x THTT
Other income HAb B A
Sales of by-products and scrap BRIl i % R R B 2,178 7,827
Bank interest income SRAT A E A 141 12
Interest income from loan receivables A& H ME i & 3k 2 F) Bt A 1,507 1,973
Rental income AU A 2,470 2,479
Sundry income A TE WA 1,395 4,408
7,691 16,699
Other gains and losses Hfth Wi 5 12 s 1B
Net gain on disposal of property, 2 WA A 2
plant and equipment TR 27 =
Net gain on disposal of LB O RE A 2 g A
right-of-use assets 105 -
Allowance for/(reversal of JRE W& B HiE R T A
allowance for) expected credit losses R4 (43 1E))
on trade receivables (750) 52
Allowance for/(reversal of JRE i B K TE I AE &
allowance for) expected credit losses B84, ($8 455 1A] )
on loan receivables 912) 103
Reversal of allowance for expected LAt B8 A 35 T 1Y T A
credit losses on other receivables s 18 18 M 1 ) 824 19
(706) 174
7. FINANCE COST 7. ik B AR
2020 2019
SR OERE SR U
HKS$’000 HK$ 000
T# THIT
Interest on lease liabilities/obligation il E f i //Fl & fl &R & >~ F &
under finance lease 1,967 26
1,967 26
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TAXATION Bi

2020 2019
R OERE —E s
HK$’000 HKS$’000
Tt Tt

The charge comprises: 32 AL

Current tax: R[5
PRC Enterprise Income Tax Hp R £ 25 BT AR B 808 914
808 914

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as
the Group had no estimated assessable profits arising from
Hong Kong for the both years.

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment) (No.7) (the “Bill”)
which introduces the two-tiered profits tax rates regime.
The Bill was signed into law on 28 March 2018 and was
gazetted on the following day. Under the two-tires profits
tax rates regime, the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable
profits of qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%,
and assessable profits above HKS$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The assessable profits of corporations not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime will
continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

Under the Law of the PRC on Enterprise Income Tax (the “EIT
Law”) and Implementation Regulation of the EIT Law, the
tax rate of the PRC subsidiary is 25% from 1 January 2008
onwards.

Taxation arising in other jurisdictions are calculated at the
rates prevailing in the relevant jurisdictions.

A the end of the reporting period, the Group has
estimated unused tax losses of HK$480,925,000 (2019:
HK$462,427,000) available for offset against future
profits. As at 30 April 2020, no deferred tax asset has
been recognised in respect of such losses due to the
unpredictability of future profit streams.

F A 7 B2 BB T 1R 4F JBE ¥4 4 7 7 o 7 2
Z Al R R A > ST S A s A B
P 484 -

W_ZE—NE=ZH_+—H - FE-TE
i — LR (BFT) (579%)
Bl B2 ([RpIEZ]) > 5] A W 8k il F
B - e Bl Z i —F— NF=H
AN H BB AR A R E A
FI B o AR AR )R A5 B B A B R A
2 2 1H2,000,000%5 7T E SR BL A $28.25%
Z B R BIOBL > M 2,000,000 7T 2 MR
Bl A $216.5% 2 Bl AR - A5 A W )
il 1) 75 T ) E R 2 A 2 2 ME R B A 48
B HE16.5% 2 B — Bl R HBL -

R P B A 3 BT A5 BLE (T4 26 T 15 i
) R AR R E R A %
T AE— H — H > o B g A7) 2 B R
F525% o

Ay ) 3 B R R AR 2 B T 4 A B R kR
& 2 AT B R -

AR IR AR 4R ) 2 R B B OE s R
i 51 £480,925,0004 7T ( & — JL4E
462,427,000 70) AT A 1 4K 85 7 A 36 F)

ATERTFAED A =+ [ d i TE R
o A e AR L > A AIE % 5 s 8 e R R AT
ol JE i o
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

TAXATION (continued)

The tax charge for the year can be reconciled to the loss
before taxation per the consolidated statement of profit or

8. BLH (#1)
A AR B BTE S B AR

loss and other comprehensive income as follows:

5 2 e HAth 2

W 2 2% BT 51 B B i s 12 2 SR AR

2020 2019
SR OERE ZE U
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Loss before taxation o B4 T s 4R (67,337) (44,508)
Tax at Hong Kong Profits FEFHR B AR A16.5%
Tax rate of 16.5% T 2 BLIE (11,110) (7,344)
Tax effect of expenses not deductible A AJ 1L B 52
for tax purpose 2B 8,756 4,053
Tax effect of income not taxable TR HGR B
for tax purpose 2 B R B (2,021) (391)
Tax effect of non-allowable losses of #2315 2 A AT F1 B k5 18
offshore operations (Note a) R REE (M ita) 1,323 1,590
Tax levied on the PRC processing T B L 2 PRl 2 BUIE (M D)
arrangement (Note b) 808 914
Tax effect of tax losses not recognised ﬂiﬁﬁ RES Y TR I= A 3,222 2,143
Tax effect of utilisation of tax losses  # Fl A fE R g2 B 1E 2
previously not recognised BB 5 2 (170) (51)
Tax charge for the year AAF B B IE S 808 914
Notes: BT -
(a) A Hong Kong incorporated subsidiary entered into a (a) — A A U G A ST 2 B R N ) B —

processing arrangement with a PRC entity, as such, 50% of
such subsidiary’s manufacturing taxable profit or tax loss
were offshore nature and not subject to Hong Kong Profit

Tax.

(b) Being the PRC Enterprise Income Tax levied on the (b)
processing fee paid by the Group under the PRC

processing arrangement.

i o

] v [ BT 8 T SL 0 T - WOR% Y
2% ) AR EE T A T RRBL ik A s B I s 1R
Z50% J7 Jag e 5 R L O3 JE A A A
Ik

Ty A S AR o B 2 B S A 2
P & O i el R S I



ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4 99

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 285 A M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% ~F "4 H =1+ H L4
9. LOSS FOR THE YEAR 9. AR

Loss for the year has been arrived at after charging the AAEFE RO IR T HIEA -
following items:

2020 2019
TR OERE —E U
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Directors’ emolument o 45 2,687 2,569
Salaries and allowances of other staffs FAth{E & 193 4 M A 71,481 75,654
Contributions to retirement benefit — Hfh{E & 13 R 4@ FI 51 S 4k 3K
scheme contributions of other staffs 5,100 6,389
79,268 84,612
Repair and maintenance expenses Hets R AR B 3 23,625 21,114
Auditors’ remuneration A% B A <5 850 900
Operating lease rentals in respect of i Z & &EHAH &
premises - 14,104
Expenses relating to short term lease 5% BiFH & A7 B 2 BH 2 595 =
Depreciation of property, P2~ W B s 2 I
plant and equipment 12,131 11,271
Depreciation of right-of-use assets ARG EZITE 15,738 =
Impairment of property, W2~ TR IR 2 WE
plant and equipment 24,739 1,370
Net foreign exchange (gain)/loss ANRE (W dh) 1R i A (3,751) 3,074

Share-based payment expense DBy 2 B8 2 AN 3K B 32 - 8,500
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10.

11.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

LOSS PER SHARE

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share

10. 43 )8 s 1

AN A AN B AG I A BB AR T 4 18

attributable to the owners of the Company is based on the EEUREVNE € SR
following data:
2020 2019
I e 250 ZE U
HKS$’000 HK$’000
T# T
(restated)
(&8 H §|J
Loss for the year attributable to AN TR NEE A A T
the owners of the Company 0 9 M 1R R A 2 A A B 4R
for the purposes of basic and
diluted loss per share (68,145) (45,422)
Weighted average number of FH DA g B B A T 4 e 15 2
ordinary shares for the purposes of 3 & fill #E 7 ¥ 8
calculating basic and diluted loss
per share 188,022,110 188,022,110

The calculation of the basic and diluted loss per share
amount is based on the loss for the year attributable
to owners of the Company of HK$68,145,000 (2019:
HK$45,422,000) and the weighted average of 188,022,110
ordinary shares (2019: (Restated) 188,022,110) in issue
during the year as adjusted to reflect the effect of the share
consolidation. The share consolidation of every twelve
issued shares of a par value of HK$0.08 each in the issued
share capital of the Company be consolidated into one
share of par value of HK$0.96 each was effective on 5 May
2020. Comparative figures have also been adjusted on the
assumption that the share consolidation had been effective
in the prior period.

The computation of diluted loss per share for both years
does not assume the exercise of the Company’s outstanding
share options as their exercise would result in a decrease in
loss per share.

DIVIDEND

No dividend was paid or proposed during the year ended
30 April 2020 (2019: Nil). The directors of the Company
do not recommend the payment of a dividend for the year
ended 30 April 2020 (2019: Nil).

11.

B i A B B s 4B Y AR B AR IR AR 2
WA N E AL 5 1868,145,0008 5T (-
— JUAF 1 45,422,000%5 0) X4 A B #4T
A 0 A T 15 #0188,022,110/% ( —
— JLAE (8 FE ) : 188,022,110/ ) 715 >
SR IVl g el B - v
A 2N ) BB AT A v A M T (EL0.08 ¥
JGZ EEEAT A A OF i — B B TR {E0.96
5 T6 2 0 1 AR A DF S S AR
H R H AR IR BB A B & —
[ E AR 0 5 2 i B -

R% T A J5E 1) 5 B 4 v s 4R O 2 S AT
AR A 1 R AT (8 Y B TR 1 L - T R
i HEAT (o6 € 980D 4 SBO ARG 18

B B

ANFREE ZFE FENH =+ H 1k

AP B G 4 R AT B R IR AR AT RS (2

T U F) o RN A ORI

ﬁﬁyﬁ PO H = +H¢¢Vﬁﬁ&
(ZF—NF %)
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

12.

DIRECTORS' AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S 12. #¥ BEAFMEG M4/ EE
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’ ) I 4
EMOLUMENTS
DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S g R AT AR Y T 4
EMOLUMENTS
The emoluments paid or payable to each of the eight (2019: 77 KES T NANSB (ZF—JLFE:N\H)
eight) directors were as follows: EREI ST
Executive directors Independent non-executive directors
(Note iv) (Note vi)
BiES BukamEd
(Hitiv) (Hztvi)
Phen Wong
Li Hoi Ping Tung Ka Lok Chung Liv  Chu Chun Yau
Tung Lok Patrick  Siu Ching Andrew Hoi Yan Rongrui  On Franco Chi Hang Total
Al 4 (280 #INF WRE AR b3 g & Ay
HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000
T T T T T T T T i
(Note 1) (Note ii)
(Hiiti) (Hitii)
2020 i Jav 23
Fees [k 122 - 168 240 144 100 120 - 894
Other emoluments Hofbm 4
Salaries and other benefits EEERL - 1,708 - - - - - - 1,708
Retirement benefit BRI
schemes contributions 5K - 85 - - - - - - 85
122 1,793 168 240 144 100 120 - 2,687
2019 ZE0E
Fees e 124 - 108 160 144 - 120 71 733
Other emoluments il
Salaries and other benefits Fa kMR = 1,751 = = = = = = 1,751
Retirement benefit RIRRAIF
schemes contributions it = 85 = = = = = = 85
124 1,836 108 160 144 - 120 71 2,569
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12.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

DIRECTOR’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

Notes:

i. Mr. Liu Rongrui was appointed as independent non-
executive director on 18 April 2019.

ii. Mr. Yau Chi Hang was resigned as independent
non-executive director on 21 January 2019.

ii. The Executive Directors’ emoluments shown above were
for the services in connection with the management of the
affairs of the Company and the Group.

iv. The Non-Executive Director’s emoluments shown above
were for the services as director of the Company.

V. The Independent Non-Executive Directors’ emoluments
shown above were for the services as directors of the
Company.

Mr. Li Tung Lok (“Mr. Li”) is also the Chief Executive of
the Company and his emoluments disclosure above include
those for services rendered by him as the Chief Executive.

The emoluments payable to directors of the Company as
approved by the board of directors on the recommendation
of the remuneration committee, are having regarded
to their individual duties and responsibilities with the
Company, remuneration benchmark in the industry and
prevailing market conditions.

During the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the
directors as an inducement to join or upon joining the
Group or as compensation for loss of office.

AR AT BRI 2/ DR LY
B2 (%)

g R AT AR 2 (%)

wit

i Bl Es A & — SUAFMA +VH
TERANE S B R AT E R -

ii. BT RER —F—ILF— At —
F 208 5 JF BLAT S A

iii. SRR T AT A PR A R K
74 B2 1) B IR P 4 o

iv. ESCE R T AT EEPEE AL A E
) W B 4 o

v. E SO R TS S AT EE AR AL
EE:0) %7

R g ([ E]) IRAA R FTE
BB bSO R B A B AT AR Y iR
TS 4 o

JE A A% ) HE S 2 T < T A NS A%
H AR 28 7 2 BB S B 3~ AT 36 3 I L v
LE kR mdl HMZE B g 2R
L e

RBEE_F_FFER_F—LFENA
=+ HR R AR B O AT SRR AT
P AR i R AR SR B 2 R =
SR A £ 1 T 2 A% i AR 7 TG A L
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

DIRECTOR’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE'S
EMOLUMENTS/EMPLOYEES’
EMOLUMENTS (continued)

EMPLOYEES' EMOLUMENTS

The emoluments of the five highest paid individuals
included one (2019: two) executive director of the
Company, whose emolument is included above. The
aggregate emoluments of the remaining four (2019: three)
highest paid individuals are as follows:

12, w3 R A7 BRI 4/ 8 H

M4 (7))
D L i 1 4

LA RFEHMA LGS -4 (ZF N
FEMAL)ALFRRTESE KM EC
B HERMA (- =Z4) K

o TN L 2 T AR AT

2020 2019
R R ZE U
HKS$’000 HKS$’000
Tt AP
Salaries and other benefits 4 S H At AR 2,762 4,726
Retirement benefits schemes FER N R I R

contribution 140 176
2,902 4,902

Their emoluments were within the following bands: WAF 2 & A~ B4
2020 2019
R R ZE—UF
Number of Number of
employees employees
& B A\ =N
HKS$nil - HK$1,000,000 % —1,000,000% ¢ 3
HK$1,000,001 — HK$1,500,000 1,000,001 7¢ — 1,500,000 It 1 =
4 3

During the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019, no
emoluments were paid or payable by the Group to the five
highest paid individuals (including directors and employees)
as an inducement to join the Group or as compensation for
loss of office.

WBE_EFLEFER_F—JLFEMA
= B OEAERE s AR R M AT SR AT T
EZEAEHFMAL (BFREFLEE) Z
P <5 > AE 2 T B A 4 T 2 ki =R s i

L -
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

13. PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

13. 3% - R4S Ko it i

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Furniture, Moulds,
fixtures toolings and
Leasehold Leasehold and Motor Plant and production  Construction
properties  improvements equipment vehicles machinery films in progress Total
TH#>
fE RE-kE BHEER  TREREE
Mk LIES Rkt i i fi il 43 TR IR Ay
HKS$000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$000
Tt T T Tt T T Tt T
COST A
At 30 April 2018 A E—-NEMA=TH 119,804 48,730 18,735 3,445 164,606 71817 9,841 442,978
Additions e - 681 1,325 - 7,023 1,764 - 10,793
Disposal & - - (90) - - - = (90)
Transfer L¢3 = = 8,471 = = = (8,471) =
Impairment off Bl = = = = S = (1,370) (1,370)
At 30 April 2019 A E-NENA=TH 119,804 49411 28,441 3,445 171,629 79,581 = 452,311
Adjustments upon T HE 7 B 2 )
application of Fl6aE s 2
HKFRS 16 - - - (2,116) - - - (2,116)
Asat | May 2019 RZF-NERJ—H 119,804 49,411 28441 1,329 171,629 79,581 - 450,195
Additions nE - Ryl 357 1,071 1,590 - - 3,395
Disposal i = S (15) (360) S = = (373)
Transfer 3 = = = 3 = = = X
At 30 April 2020 REZZZFENA=FA 119,804 49,788 28,783 2,783 173,219 79,581 - 453,958
ACCUMULATED Rt &
DEPRECIATION WAL
AND IMPAIRMENT
LOSS
At 30 April 2018 A E—-NEMA=TH 2,662 45,893 15,747 2,165 142,302 71,508 - 280,277
Provided for the year KR 3,993 312 2,620 504 2,1 1,065 - 11,271
Eliminated on disposals i & Bf 444 - - (90) - - - = (90)
At 30 April 2019 RZF-LFMA=1H 6,655 46,205 18,277 2,669 145,079 72,573 - 291,458
Adjustments upon T o B AR 5
application of Fl6uE s M hZ
HKEFRS 16 - - - (1,348) - - - (1,348)
Asat 1 May 2019 MR- NELA—A 6,655 46,205 18,077 1,321 145,079 72,573 = 290,110
Provided for the year KR 3,993 783 2,761 236 3,171 1,187 - 12,131
Disposal i - - (15) (360) - - - (375)
Transfer i - - - 570 - - - 570
Impairment B - 1,046 1,458 - 19,556 2,679 - 24,739
At 30 April 2020 REZZEENA=ZARA 10,648 48,034 2,481 1,767 167,806 76,439 - 327,175
CARRYING VALUES ~ Ikiiff
At 30 April 2020 REZBZFENA=LA 109,156 1,754 6,302 1,016 5413 3,142 - 126,783
At 30 April 2019 RZF—-NENA=1H 113,149 3,206 10,164 776 26,550 7,008 - 160,853




ANNUAL REPORT 2020 4F

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

13.

o o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT
(continued)

The above items of property, plant and equipment are
depreciated on a straight-line basis at the following useful
lives:

Leasehold improvements 8 years

Leasehold properties Over the lease term

Furniture, fixtures and equipment 5 — 8 years
Motor vehicles 5 years
Plant and machinery 6 — 12 years
Moulds, toolings and production films 6 years

The net book value of the Group’s motor vehicles includes
an amount of approximately HK$776,000 as at 30 April
2019 in respect of assets held under finance leases.

At the end of the reporting period, in the view of operating
loss of manufacturing business, the directors of the
Company conducted a review of the Group’s property,
plant and equipment and determined that the recoverable
amount of the property, plant and equipment is lower
than its carrying amount as at 30 April 2020, accordingly
an impairment of HKS$24,739,000 has been recognised
in profit or loss for the year ended 30 April 2020 (2019:
HKS$ 1,370,000). The recoverable amounts of the property,
plant and equipment of the Group have been determined
on an individual basis to the extent possible, which is
the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value
in use. If it is not possible to determine the recoverable
amount on individual basis, the recoverable amount of the
cash-generating unit to which the asset belongs would be
determined. The pre-tax discount rate used in measuring
the value in use was 16.6% (2019: 17.7%) per annum.

13.

o3k~ RO BBl (41)

Aty €~ AR KB T Y LA AR IS B
He 5 DL AT 0 R AR R IR AT AR

GENEL/E$3 84F
HEWE LA
AR ~ 2 B T R A 54F —84F
R SAF
A Bk 64 — 124F
T TH KR4 EHIE R 64F

NZFE—HENA=+H KAEERE >
OGRS EHER A
B #1776,0000 G ©

A A T R 4G IR S B R R SR 2 &R
BER AAFEFRCHALE ZYE
W BB AT A T E S R R
VU = H W2 - a8 B 2 T i [ B
BRI HL R T (B MOR R E T AR
A= BRSNS (E
24,739,000 7 ( — & — JL4E 11,370,000
Won) o AL E Y B KR 2 T L
o] B AE (B2 AR E Bl 5 R AR B0 R 1
(B ) 2 e ) T =m0 RE A Y 3 e
TR S o il M % e A 9 B HE R AT i [m)
BRI E E JT JR B A A B 2 T i
] R o R W= P 2 B A R B R
B 416.6% (& —JLE  17.7%) °
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

14. RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS 14. {8 I BE % %
Motor Leased
vehicle Properties Total
VL HEWE Ha st
HK$ 000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T o THs o T
Cost AR
At 1 May 2019 (Note 2) ATE—NERA—H
(Bt 7t2) 2,116 50,873 52,989
Disposals i (651) = (651)
Transfer (L8713 (743) = (743)
Exchange realignment FE b, 3 = (1,873) (1,873)
At 30 April 2020 WZFEZFHEMA =+H 722 49,000 49,722
Accumulated depreciation and 2 537 # & Wl s 18
impairment losses
At 1 May 2019 (Note 2) WEE—JAEHHA—H
(Bit#t2) 1,348 = 1,348
Provided for the year AR IR B A 261 15,477 15,738
Disposals i (401) = (401)
Transfer o 43¢ (570) = (570)
Exchange realignment [ 5, 77 B (249) (249)
At 30 April 2020 AR TFAENHA =1 H 638 15,228 15,866
Carrying amounts R THI
At 30 April 2020 R_F_FHEMA=1H 84 33,772 33,856
At 1 May 2019 (restated) W_F—JEAH—H
(®EH) 768 48,776 49,544

During the current year, the Group leases properties for

self-own. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed term of

1 to 3 years. Lease terms are negotiated on an individual

basis and contain a wide range of different terms and

conditions. In determining the lease term and assessing the

length of the non-cancellable period, the Group applies

the definition of a contract and determines the period for

which the contract is enforceable.

The carrying amount of the Group’s motor vehicles

held under finance lease amounted to approximately

HK$768,000 as at 30 April 2019.

RARFEE . RIEEHEMEELEARY
¥HEAALLE ZE MY E3IFEF -
B TEAR A LB AT s IS A RN
T A8 K B MG A o A 755 2 L MO B A RS T R
SR RS > AR AR T
37 TE A A 0] AT JIH] o

BoE—IJVEMA =+ B A 5 E
EHBHETHAZREZRTEN R
768,000 L ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

14.

15.

16.

o o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS (continued)

Expense relating to short-term leases and other leases with

lease terms end within 12 months from the date of initial

application of HKFRS 16 amounted to approximately

HK$595,000 during current year.

Lease liabilities of HK$37,633,000 are recognised with the
related right-of-use assets of HK$33,856,000 at 30 April

14. € RIHER A (%)

TAARAE B > A7 B A UORE R S
HEHI S 1658 2 BB 1248 H R £ 1k a9 4 1
TR B HoABFR B 19 BA 572 49 £5595,000% 7 ©

HR_FE_FFMA=+H - RHEE
A 537,633,000 T K AH B 16 ) RE &

2020. 33,856,000% I °
INVENTORIES 15. 1%

2020 2019
R R SR
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F# TH T
Raw materials and consumables B A KL B 7 FE 40,699 41,591
Work in progress 2 B 5 4,747 2,353
Finished goods S 3,193 1,543
48,639 45,487

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/

16. B 5 B I A MOk 2 4 J B

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS A 3k B
2020 2019
R OERE —E s
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt TH T
Trade receivables FE S 5 Bk 3Kk 70,279 53,893
Less: Allowance for expected credit ¥ © T8 1115 5 Jf5 8 15
losses (933) (183)
69,346 53,710
Other receivables A R i K I 2,242 56,672
Less: Allowance for expected credit W TE A B R A
losses - (824)
71,588 109,558
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)

The Group allows a credit period ranging from 30 to
90 days to its trade customers. The following is an aged
analysis of trade receivables net of allowance for expected
credit losses presented based on the invoice date at the end
of the reporting period:

16.

B 5 B 3G il ME WOk B4 4 B B
sk B (40

REMG T H S HF 2 G588 P05
90 FI o v 4 417 30 1) 4% o I » B Wi 2 53 W 3
TR T £ 5 5L 08 A 4% 9 5 E 00 2 00
2 JEB Sy AT T

2020 2019

—®o®E Tk

HKS$’000 HK$’000

Tt T

Within 30 days 30H A 28,505 21,865
Between 31 and 60 days 31HZE60H 25,096 21,246
Between 61 and 90 days 61H Z90H 5,347 5,739
Over 90 days 90H DL £ 10,398 4,860
69,346 53,710

Before accepting any new customer, the Group will
apply an internal credit assessment policy to assess the
potential customer’s credit quality and define credit limits
by customer. Management closely monitors the credit
quality of trade receivables. Included in the Group’s trade
receivables balance are debtors with aggregate carrying
amount of HK$20,598,000 which are past due at the
reporting date for which the Group has not provided
for impairment loss, as there are no significant changes
in credit quality of these debtors and the amounts are
still considered recoverable based on historical payment
experience or such balances were subsequently settled by
debtors. For trade receivables that were neither past due
nor impaired, there is no significant changes in credit
quality and no recent history of default. The Group does
not hold any collateral or credit enhancements over all
trade receivables.

WA R R T AL GHATA
WiE BB ER S 2 8-
EWHATHEREFZEEHE - THEH
VERBERE SRR FEE R A&
S MR AR &S R P B R T AR
20,598,000 70 it #e # H 1A E 4 ) 2 e
SRIE > b G55 R SRR TE 2 {5 B R I 4
RS AR 5 AR 1R A BRAR B > 5% K
TR 1 w8 2 AT i I > mR A B A B B S H AR
B S A& 3 o R b A 4 [ 7 OR 35 00 HE i
FRIEAE W8 s 48 8 Af o A 1 A 3
JRE B 5 W K 0 5 R0 RE 3  J E K eks
AT A N TR 4 5 o A 4B (8] S 48 AR AT AT B i
B o R 3K B A AT AT IS BRSO g A B
Jit -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

16.

o o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

TRADE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES/
DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS (continued)
TRADE RECEIVABLES

Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
for trade receivables in accordance with the simplified
approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 30 April
2020 and 2019.

16. B 5 B 3o 4l HE Wk i 4 B T
fF 3k (748)
R e B 5 M sk
WEFRER EF—JLHEMA =+
H Lk AR R AR5 A W 5 i 4 8 R 55 958
#5 Z fEALk  EE S AR K E WERR 2
MG SRS T -

Trade Other
receivables receivables Total
WE W B B MRk HL At M WAk JE At
HK$’000 HK$°000 HK$’000
Tt T Tt
Balance as at 1 May 2018 WoE—=/NFEALA—HB
iz 235 843 1,078
Reversal of allowance for TE WG B s 15 1 4 3 )
expected credit losses (52) (19) (71)
Balance as 30 April 2019 WoE—JUEMH =1 H
i &5 R 183 824 1,007
Allowance for expected credit T8 {5 B ks 18 15 1
losses 750 (824) (74)
Balance as at 30 April 2020 WZFZEFENMHA =1+H
14 %5 B 933 - 933

Details of ECL assessment are set out in Note 28.

A B AR B s 18 A Al A A O B R

28

DEPOSITS AND PREPAYMENTS ¥ 4 B BT R
2020 2019
R R ZE U
HK$’000 HK$°000
Tt AR
Deposits ¥4 19,636 18,493
Prepayments TA AT BIH 1,964 4,581
21,600 23,074

Included in the Group’s deposits is an aggregate amount
of approximately HK$3,659,000 (2019: HK$3,603,000)
denominated in RMB, the foreign currency of respective
group entities.

A ] 2 4 L35 S8 EE £93,659,00095
I ( —FE— L 1 3,603,0004 5T ) Z #HE
RN REE (FHBEEE# 2 SM0) 5HE -
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17.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

FINANCIAL ASSET AT FVTPL

%2 RGN 2 2 4 ik B

2020 2019
SROBE CFLE
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 7t T#IT
Listed equity securities (Note a) LTS (M ita) 42,870 40,827
Unlisted equity securities (Note b) I LTTREATE S (M b ) = 3,064
42,870 43,891
Notes: WAt
(a) These investments represent equity securities listed in Hong (a) HERE RS SFFEERENE
Kong and are classified as held for trading investment. e b T RO R I o
(b) In September 2016, Henghua Global Fund SPC, an (b)

exempted company incorporated with limited liability
under the laws of the Cayman Islands (the “Fund Entity”)
created a segregate portfolio, Henghua Global New
Opportunity Fund SP (the “Fund”). In October 2016, the
Group has subscribed 40,000 class R shares of the Fund.

The Fund has two classes of shares, i.e. class P and class
R. Class P share has a priority over class R share, whereas
class R share could only be redeemed by the holder of
class R share with the following conditions: 1) if the fair
value of the net asset per class R share will not be lower
than the fair value of the net asset per class P share; and 2)
after the lock-up period, which is equal to a period of 12
months commencing on the issue of such class R share, i.e.
October 2017.

As at 30 April 2019, 40,000 class R shares of the Fund held
by the Group represented 100% of the total outstanding
issued shares of the Fund and 0.1% of the authorized
share capital of the Fund Entity. The Fund mainly holds
equity securities listed in Hong Kong. The directors of
the Company expected that the Group’s investment in the
Fund will be recovered within one year from the end of the
reporting period.

The directors of the Company assessed whether or not the
Group has control over the Fund Entity based on whether
the Group has the practical ability to direct the relevant
activities of the Fund Entity unilaterally. In making the
judgement, the directors of the Company considered that 1)
the directors of the Fund Entity are solely responsible for
the overall management and control of the Fund Entity;
2) the directors of the Fund Entity may, at any time and
without notice to, or the consent of, the holders of class
P and class R shares of the Fund, create and designate
additional classes of share in respect of the Fund; 3) both
holders of class P and class R shares of the Fund Entity
have no voting rights (except in relation to a modification
of the rights attaching to the respective class of share) nor
rights to appoint or remove directors of the Fund Entity;
and 4) the fund manager, the Fund Entity and its directors
are independent third parties to the Group. After the above
assessment, the directors of the Company concluded that
the Group has no rights to direct the relevant activities of
the Fund Entity and therefore the Group has no control
over the Fund Entity.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, all unlisted equity
securities were transfered to listed equity securities.

=% —754FE JL A > Henghua Global
Fund SPC (R B £ 1 5 5 0] % i
SRR RAR) (THEEEHE])
5% o7 M L 4% & 4 A Henghua Global
New Opportunity Fund SP ([ 34 ]) o

AFENETH O AR EC R
H£4240,000/8 R %% 1y -

% 4 AP S R AU o PRSI
13 R SEULE =2 A7 (8 S > T R TR
FEAT N AETE 2 DT e 4% 77 7T [u]
REURA - 1) B R REURM G EFHEZ
O SO AR AR B B P U3 A I
ZRRE B2 EM 2 % A RR
MR8t U (= F — b4+ )
FT WA .

ATE—JUENA =+ H > AEE
% 440,000 R B0 B wZ & &
ZAFRE BT RSB K I A E 0. 1%
ZHRERA - ZEEFEEGEE
T A TS J o AR N ) o T AR AR [
A 5% 5 A 2 B A R O 1 A R
AL — 4 Ry i ]

AN F) PR A S A
T 15 35 L 4 B A B G B R ST
A 4 R T M A A TR 1 M -
AEFI B RS> A AR EER AL 4
B HEREAT RS ER Al E
P REeEBERTHMFERZES
BT B A5 A A Y 45 T A 2
HRZIE S P B AR B F A N8 &
MR 3) FE A FH 2 PRUL R
UrFe A N3 SR S (A BB RT &
FBE 453 B8 A 1) 255 6k 41 ) R I AR AT 7 T 4
ERAE R R4) H e R AT
LW R AN B ) 2 ST AR T o B
AR EEA > AN T E RG> A E T
MEHE 5 & PO 2 M BTG B> SoA 4R
Vo] 0 R 22 O 3 4 B R o

BVIE % “F A = H L
AT LR S0 L
B o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
o 5 R B
For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F
18. LOAN RECEIVABLES 18. HEWCEE X
2020 2019
SRR R U
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F# THIT
Within 30 days 30H 4 - =
Between 31 and 60 days 31H 260H = =
Between 61 and 90 days 61H %290H - =
Over 90 days 90H i E 22,160 21,332
22,160 21,332
Less: Allowance for expected credit ¥ : T8 115 5 Jb5 8 15
losses (1,921) (1,009)
20,239 20,323

The loan receivables were repaid in accordance with the
terms of the loan agreements and all loan receivables are
recoverable within one year.

MOVEMENT IN THE ALLOWANCE FOR
EXPECTED CREDIT LOSSES OF LOAN
RECEIVABLES

Movement in ECL that has been recognised for loan
receivables in accordance with general approach set out in
HKFRS 9 for the years ended 30 April 2020 and 2019.

B Wi T AR R T e 2 e R R

i A B WA O —

AN AT T U] o

M %k 2 T 4 £ o 0 9 40 52

é‘iﬁﬁiﬁwﬂiﬁéi

AEMA =+

Ik 45 BE - M8 A i T 5 0 e R 2505
#0277 I W £ Tk L e D 2 T

WEREBEEHNT -
Total
At
HK$’000
F# T
Adjusted balance as at 1 May 2018 TR AR T — H SR R 4 1,112
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses TA W B s 1E 73 4 3 ) (103)
Balance as at 30 April 2019 W ZE— UM A =+ H B &S8R 1,009
Allowance for expected credit losses TE A A5 0 s 18 1 A 912
Balance as at 30 April 2020 ATFRFAENA =4 H A R 1,921

Details of the ECL assessment are set out in Note 28.

TR B 18 A W 15 RS B RE28 -
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19.

20.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

BANK BALANCES AND CASH

Bank balances held by the Group comprised of bank
deposits which carried prevailing market interest rates
ranging from 0.01% to 0.35% (2019: 0.01% to 0.30%) per
annum. The bank deposits have the original maturity of
three months or less.

Included in the Group’s bank balances and cash is an
aggregate amount of approximately HK$3,931,000 (2019:
HK$2,503,000) denominated in RMB, the foreign currency
of respective group entities. The remittance of these
funds out of the PRC was subject to exchange restrictions
imposed by the Government of the PRC.

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/
DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES

The following is an aged analysis of trade payables

19.

20.

WATHB KBLE

AL E A 2 AT A R B ISR A T
0.01E 0358 (T —JLAE:0.01E =
0.30)8 ) Z BLAT T B R S5t B ERATAE K »
SRATAE A 2 JR BN B A = {8 A B 46
] o

AEEZRITHE R A SAHE AL
3,931,000 76 ( =& — JL4F : 2,503,000
J6) S DA B WE (HH BE S T E B 2 M)
FHE o 1 5% 5 B 4 18 v B R o 28 32 v B i
JF i i e BEE S B 7 A R

BB B 30 b M A 3 B 5 B B M
al 21
2 5% ME 5 AT 95 45 40 I 9

presented based on the invoice date at the end of the H 25 2 BRE > -
reporting period:
2020 2019
R OERE —E U
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Trade payables B 5y WEAT R I
Within 30 days 30HA 8,513 8,104
Between 31 and 60 days 31260H 6,328 4,413
Between 61 and 90 days 61290H 2,369 2,007
Over 90 days 90H L E 3,002 3,217
20,212 17,741
Other payables At JE AT TR 21 11
20,233 17,752

The credit period on purchases of goods is ranging from 30
to 90 days.

W& 25 A T30%90H -
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20.

21.

o o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

TRADE AND OTHER PAYABLES/

20. ﬁ%&%ﬁ&iﬁﬁ%ﬁﬁ/i&%&l@

DEPOSITS AND ACCRUED EXPENSES M ()
(continued)
2020 2019
“RTRE “E N
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Deposits and accrued expenses i 4 X ME 2R
Rental deposits received £ A L 4 4% 42 505 748
Accruals JE &t 22 1 37,563 34,323
38,068 35,071

Included in the Group’s deposits and accrued expenses
are aggregate carrying amounts of approximately
HK$505,000 (2019: HK$748,000) and HK$31,849,000
(2019: HK$39,101,000) denominated in RMB, the foreign
currency of respective group entities, respectively.

CONTRACT LIABILITIES

A AR 2 T A T ME T A B3 AR A 4R
87> A 505,000 ¢ ( — & — h@-
748,000 75) 231,849,000 7t ( — &
— JU4E £ 39,101,000 7€) /& DA R (1
BAAE BB 2 AN ) B -

21. FHaMH

HK$’000
Tt
At 1 May 2019 W_F—JHEHLH—H =
Decrease in contract liabilities as a result of FAFENER R FFA S EEZ
recognising revenues during the year that was Wi A 2B BOA A A D
included in the contract liabilities
at the beginning of the year —
Increase in contract liabilities as a result of R B P U R
consideration received from customers B H A
during the year 1,539
At 30 April 2020 AR TFAENMHA =+ H 1,539

The contract liabilities represent the Group’s obligation
to transfer goods for which the Group has received
consideration. The contract liabilities would be recognised
as revenue within one year. The Group recognises revenue

B R AR B T s B AR T ZH
AR I TAL o B A B RO R — AF R
Ty W s o A% 52 T B it B RS 1 T4 ol e
WS 2 % P IR AR A AR -

when “control” of goods and services is transferred to the

customers.
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22. OTHER BORROWINGS 22, HAbAy £
2020 2019
SRR TR U
HKS$’000 HK$’000
F# TH T
Borrowing from a director (Note a) Il — % H S (Mita) 22,022 12,596
Carrying amount shown under H A T AR E T 2 MR A
current liabilities:
Repayable on demand or R B SR SR — AR R B R
within one year 22,022 12,596
Note: Mt 7t
(a) The borrowing was advanced from Mr. Li, a director (a) i B0 H AR 4 F) #E S A R R S A L
and a shareholder of the Company and was interest-free B G S A G o 22 8 £922,022,0003
and unsecured. The whole amount of approximately 7T ( ZF — L4 £ 12,596, 000{%75 2L
HK$22,022,000 (2019: HK$12,596,000) denominated in N B (4 ) BEB 2 AR S -

23.

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

RMB, the foreign currency of respective group entity.

LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS 23. RIEEAG WAL ARG
UNDER FINANCE LEASES
Present value
Minimum of minimum
lease payments lease payments
do UG AL B £k
I A AL £ 3k Z BUHE
2020 2019 2020 2019
ZRCRE ZE—IUE ZRORE ZE—JUE
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
T T T#x T#HT
Amounts payable under TR
finance leases: WEAT 2 &%
Within one year —4FR 12,467 466 11,035 457
In more than one and not —4EDL WA
more than two years PLIA 11,626 = 10,663 -
In more than two and not WAL b A
more than five years A 16,470 - 15,935 -
40,563 466 37,633 457
Less: Future finance charges ¥ : R A€ Al & % I (2,930) 9 NAREH N/A R A
Present value of lease TEREZ BHE
obligations 37,633 457 37,633 457
Less: Amount due for WA 1218 A A
settlement within MK 2
12 months (shown S FIARH
under current A
liabilities) (11,035) (457)
Amount due for settlement A 1218 A 4% 5
after 12 months WatE 2 &% 26,598 =
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LEASE LIABILITIES/OBLIGATIONS 23. MEAMN BEMERYE (H)
UNDER FINANCE LEASES (continued)
The Group entered into lease arrangements with AL [ BB NL A = O A T KR
independent third parties in relation to certain properties BT LA B o AR W BR A P13 34F o i
and motor vehicles. The lease terms ranged from 1 to 3 CRCERERZE-IVFEMA ZHH R
years. Interest rates of underlying lease liabilities at the FRAFT 52 H 3 AH BE AR B & 6 0 4R R 2 5
date of inception is 3.05% to 4.51% and 3.05% to 3.75% A £53.05% 2£4.51% 13.05% Z3.75% ° #l
per annum as at 30 April 2020 and 2019, respectively. T B FE 28T S > R BR AN A v BB R T )
Obligation under finance lease were reclassified to lease I AR E M E RGN —F— LFER
liabilities on 1 May 2019 upon the adoption of HKFRS 16 A—HEHIFEEHEARE-
as set out in note 2.
The net carrying value of leased assets used to secure ARwEREE AR RIEMWHEEE
the lease liabilities/obligations was HK$84,000 (2019: A% TH ¥ {H 75 84,0008k 70 ( = F — JU4E -
HK$768,000). 768,000 7T ) °
The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the AR [ A PR RS TR IR E
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the opening FH 7 W B 5 S M B 2R 169 - Sl A A
balances at 1 May 2019 to recognise lease liabilities relating F—JUE A A — B 0300 &5 8 DAk S A
to leases which were previously classified as operating MR8 A s & 5 B R S8 1795 0 B s 58 il
leases under HKAS 17. Comparative information as at BEHA RS ER A E A R M ES
30 April 2019 has not been restated. Further details on the FEZE-JUEMHA =+ HIY LR E R o
impact of the transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2. T 25 75 Vi I S R R AR 169k Y i — 2P
GV
SHARE CAPITAL 24. AR
Number of
shares Nominal value
ity 8 H T i
HK$’000
T T
Authorised: T
At 1 May 2018, 30 April 2019, REFE—NEHLA—H
1 May 2019 and 30 April 2020 “E-NFENA =T
“E-RELA-HRK
ZERTERENMA =1 H
~ Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each — BT {6008 7T 2 3 4 it 15,000,000,000 1,200,000
— Redeemable preference shares of — B R H0.02% 6 2
HK$0.02 each QEEk: S 500,000,000 10,000
Issued and fully paid: EEIT IR
At 1 May 2018, 30 April 2019, REZFE—/ELA—H
1 May 2019 and 30 April 2020 CE-NFENA =R
ZE-NERTA—H K
“HFZFRENHA=Z+H
— Ordinary shares of HK$0.08 each — 4 T {EL0.08 ¥ 7T 2 % 4 i 2,256,265,322 180,501
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25. CAPITAL AND OTHER COMMITMENTS 25. ¥ 7 B 3 fibs 7k i

At the end of the reporting period, the Group had AR A A SRR A A KRBT Z &
outstanding capital commitments as follows: AARYEWT
2020 2019
“RTRE “ENE
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#E T
Capital expenditure in respect of R e 2 R
acquisition of property, plant and 2 BRI A AR A
equipment contracted for but not SRA AT IR
provided in the consolidated ZEA B K
financial statements 10,319 12,832
26. LEASE COMMITMENTS 26. RE RIS
As at 30 April 2019, the Group had commitments in REE—JUEM A =+ H > AL ERER
respect of premises for future minimum lease payments B ZE Y 3 AT 2 R AR B IR B K
under operating leases, which fall due as follows: TH 2 AR I 7 DA R AR 1 30 1
AS A LESSEE fe Ry TR ALA
2019
ZEJLE
HK$ 000
T T
Within one year — 4N 13,696
In the second to fifth year inclusive FoEE R (BEETRmAE) 42,347
Over five years i AR -
56,043
AS A LESSOR fe ks I ALA
2020 2019
SRR R
HK$’000 HK$’000
T# 0 T T
Within one year —4ER 753 1,610
In the second to fifth year inclusive 5 = 2 5 HAF (645 & B W 4F) - -
Over five years A AT = =
753 1,610
As at 30 April 2020 and 2019, the Group had ATECRER E-NFENA=+H
approximately HK$753,000 and HK$1,610,000 respectively A AR AR 2 R AR N B0 A B R AE 40 i A 2

lease commitments a lessor. 753,000% 7€ 52 1,610,000%5 JC °
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LEASE COMMITMENTS (continued) 26. MR (4E)
AS A LESSOR (continued) fie ks MALA (58)
Leases are negotiated for a term of twenty-three years A AR B 2 R AT S ALY
for certain production facilities in the PRC (of which the OE R A4 (EECA TAERE
landlord has given a priority to the Group to renew such SE R m i BRI 4 AH [ AG 3K B e A N
lease under similar terms and conditions of the original MERZ LAY ) > Tl S 2 A R A
lease) and terms of one to two years for other premises — WA R A 2 A e
with fixed monthly rentals.
CAPITAL RISK MANAGEMENT 27. ¥ KM B4 B
The Group manages its capital to ensure that entities in A 45 8] 45 3 L AR DA T R A A R
the Group will be able to continue as a going concern 18 BB 7 AR AR > [R] IR 25 288 B AL 805 B RE 22
while maximising the return to equity holders through the ] 2 P 25 HE 2 5 N AR i oK [l ik
optimisation of the debt and equity balance.
The capital structure of the Group consists of net debt, A AR B 2 R R R R S (L
which includes other borrowings disclosed in Note 22, net FE224 BE 2 HoAAE B 1Bk B K S [R] B
of cash and cash equivalents, and equity attributable to ST H DR AN A N AL RE S (2
owner of the Company, comprising issued share capital, WO BATIRA - et R Bt -
reserves and accumulated losses.
The directors of the Company review the capital structure AN T AR AN R o 1 By
on a regular basis. As a part of this review, the directors 2y A F R R AR K
of the Company consider the cost of capital and the risks B BEAT I A A B 2 JRU B o A A i 0 o
associated with the issued share capital. The Group will BEAT B A DA B 8 A S A i £ B R
balance its overall capital structure through the issue of B HoAb S 8 (w5 22) 1 T fy HoRE gl g
new shares as well as raising new other borrowings and A BN
repayment of existing other borrowings, if necessary.
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 28. £@WTH
CATEGORIES OF FINANCIAL A T H I
INSTRUMENTS
2020 2019
“RTRE —E U
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt T#E T
Financial assets &
At fair value through profit or loss e U AR 28
— Listed equity securities — B AR I 42,870 40,827
— Unlisted equity securities — 3k BT R A S - 3,064
Financial assets at amortised cost FIE 3 8 AR AN FE 8 2 A TE 246,719 261,157
Financial liabilities 4 £ A
Amortised cost 81 B AR 117,956 65,419
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES

The Group’s major financial instruments include trade
and other receivables, deposits and prepayments. financial
asset at FVTPL, loan receivables, bank balances and cash,
trade and other payables, deposits and accrued expenses,
obligations under finance leases, lease liabilities and
other borrowings. Details of these financial instruments
are disclosed in respective notes. The risks associated
with these financial instruments including market risk
(including foreign currency risk, interest rate risk and
equity price risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The
policies on how to mitigate these risks are set out below.
The management manages and monitors these exposures
to ensure appropriate measures are implemented in a
timely and effective manner. There has been no significant
change to the types of the Group’s exposure in respect of
financial instruments or the manner in which it manages
and measures the risk.

Market risk
(1) Foreign currency risk

The Group operates mainly in Hong Kong and its

monetary assets, liabilities and transactions are
principally denominated in the functional currencies
of respective group entities, which are mainly
HKS$ or USD. However, the Group has purchases
and expenses transactions which are primarily
denominated in Renminbi (“RMB”). The Group
currently does not have a foreign currency hedging
policy. However, the management closely monitors
foreign exchange exposure to ensure appropriate
measures are implemented on a timely and effective
manner.

The carrying amounts of the Group’s major foreign
currency denominated monetary assets and liabilities
at the reporting date are as follows:

28.

Assets

¥

2020

ZRIFH

HK$’000
T

RMB NG

6,076

L@ TR (4)
S 5 L B 4 B H B K BOR

AEHZ TECB T EOQEY S K HA
JRE WACER T~ i 4 B TR BRI A A R
AR R 2 4 A MR B R BRAT A R
KB 4~ B 5 K H A A 300 ~ 1 4 T I
AT~ RE AL RS - LB AR HoAh
B4 o 025 4 Al T 5 2 5E 05 O R A B I 5T
B 57 o B S 4 i T ELAR BE 2 JE R £ 9 T
5 J B (G5 A0 e R ~ A 22 B e i AR
s JE B ) ~ A5 0 L B B I ) 4 LB o
AT o AR 527 258 JaRL g 2 TR O SRS T S o A
T 4 % B P R A TR > AR R R IREAT AR
b 5% A0 HE i o A 4B ]k 4 i T L T
2 JEL B 2 B A B R w AL B 2 5 3
4 TR B o

i 55 Jal b

(i) SR
AEHTEREFEEE HEWE
EREARS FEDSEEER
ZYfe M (DA o £ oo ks )
FHE R AEHA FEUAR
W (TN D) w2 s 8 R B 32
38 5 o 2% B [ B IRE NI 41 T 57 A1 BE 2
TSR o SR > 45 B % Y B A
BEE JRUBGE > LA £ A K% IR A 24l £R R
i

AEEERDSNHEFHEZ BHE
E R B RO B H O 2 R T (E

T
Liabilities
=R
2019 2020 2019
ZE - ZFRIERE X —JUE
HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T T 0 T
6,467 74,912 56,558
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

)

Foreign currency risk (continued)

Sensitivity analysis

The following table details the Group’s major
sensitivity analysis of a 5% increase and decrease in
HKS against RMB. 5% (2019: 5%) is the sensitivity
rate used which represents management’s assessment
of the reasonably possible change in foreign
exchange rates. The sensitivity analysis includes only
outstanding foreign currency denominated monetary
items and the aforesaid inter-company receivables
and adjusts their translation at the year end for a 5%
change in foreign currency exchange rates. A positive
number below indicates a decrease in post-tax loss
where the HKS$ strengthen 5% against the relevant
foreign currency. For a 5% weakening of the HK$
against the relevant foreign currency, there would be
an equal and opposite impact on the post-tax loss,
and the amounts below would be negative.

Decrease in post-tax loss A BE B Bt A% i 18 T A
for the year
RMB N

28.

L@ TR (5)
S 5 e B A B B B BOOR (A)

T 45 JE B ()

1)

S I B ()

UK EE 4 AT

T SN /A ST N
[ 2 F T e N B 5% Iy i 4 = 24
JEPE T o 5% (= F — JLAE 1 5%)
B BT 2 SR A AT LR AR R
I AW TE R 2 A PN fE s
A BT AR SR A o SRR 43 BT AL 35 DU
ANEE R A 2 R MEE B IEE U
Ko bt B i 2 ) [ 4 B - I AN
T 2% 1) 5% 5 B 3 3% 55 TH B 7 4 45
HEAT YA REAE e o R R 2 IE B
2R W 0 S0 A B A1 W TH(E S FF 2
o B A% e 15 a2 - WS G S AH B A
Wz (E5% R > R BIE R A
ERUMAH R 2 R B MR R 2 SR
DINHPEE=E

2020 2019

= = R
HK$’000 HK$000
SR Tt e
2,874 2,505

In the opinion of the directors of the Company,
the sensitivity analysis is unrepresentative of the
inherent currency risk as the exposure at the end of
the reporting period does not reflect the exposure
during the year.

AN I E RS BURE DM RE
FOWCEUE E R B LR > R
S0 [ A SRRy A JEL o 0 A B Bk A TR
Y Je i o
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28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(i)

Interest rate risk

The Group is exposed to fair value interest rate
risk in relation to fixed-rate loan receivables and
fixed-rate lease liabilities/obligations under finance
leases (see Notes 18 and 23 respectively for details).

The Group is exposed to cash flow interest rate
risk in relation to the fluctuation of the prevailing
market interest rate on interest-bearing financial
assets and financial liabilities, which are mainly
balances with banks which are short term in nature.

The Group currently does not have interest rate
hedging policy. However, management monitors
interest rate exposure and will consider hedging
significant interest rate exposure should the need
arise.

The directors of the Company consider the Group’s
exposure to interest rate risk on interest bearing
bank deposits, are not significant as the bank
deposits are within short maturity periods and no
material fluctuations on interest rate are expected,
so no sensitivity analysis is presented regarding the
financial assets.

28.

L@ TR (4)
Yo 5 e B A B B B BOSR (A

T 55 JEBg ()

(i)

R B

A 45 Tt A A B I R 2 1B E A
2 RSB B T E A R B AR
FRIE 0 18 3B 4 e (A R B (B
wF A a2 A 2 B RE18 &% 23) -

AL ABEE S MEE &M
B 2 T T B R R ) R 4R B
o VAP 3 o R B S S SR AT

74 ] ISl ) A B e B o SR
T > R B S ) R Ja g Sl R
EdSEY & Rl DN E S

AN FEER L AEEE B R
747 30T T 3 2 A A By A F
R B2 A B 8RATT A 3K 0 301 70 3
ST ) 3 T A € o B R )
8] Sz J0 A0 % 45 4 il R A A
B3 -
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Market risk (continued)

(iii)

Equity price risk

The Group is exposed to equity price risk through
its financial assets at FVTPL. The Group’s financial
assets at FVTPL have significant concentration of
price risk in the Hong Kong stock market. All of
these investments are equity securities listed in the
Stock Exchange. Management manages the exposure
by maintaining a portfolio of equity investments of
the Group with different risk profiles.

The sensitivity analysis indicates the instantaneous
change in the Group’s loss for the year that would
arise assuming that the changes in the price of the
respective trading securities had occurred at the end
of the reporting period and had been applied to
remeasure those financial instruments held by the
Group which expose the Group to equity price risk
at the end of the reporting period.

At 30 April 2020, if the price of the respective
equity instruments had been 30% (2019: 30%)
higher/lower, with all other variables held constant,
loss for the year ended 30 April 2020 would
decrease/increase by approximately HK$12,852,000
(2019: HK$12,248,000).

28.

L@ TR (5)
S 5 e B A B B B BOOR (A)

T 45 JE B ()

(iii)

A B 15 Il e

AL RN R EF ARG Z
< il T TR B S AS B A LB o AR
WA RER ARG Z S/
HEAWEETREBRT ZE
A% Ja B o BT AT LG BB £ A B 52 B
T e AR w5 o A L 2 A A R
HARG AN 7] & B 4G 2 A 46 T A
B AL i A BCAS R R LR

TR O AT 46 A R 2 AR SR
AF R 4R 2 R B S Bl > ) iR SO
3 o i I 2 AB K 5 B S i
fH] &5 SRIRF 8% 2 K MBI BT R
BZEALEFZ &M TH
% % G TR A A AR R il
TH] 4t TR IRF TR 36 JS A £ A% JaL B

AR FAEN A = H o R
B A T H 2 (845 BT #30%
(F—JLE 1 30%) ifi T A3 HoAth 5
AR A QI E T T 4E N
A=+ HIEFEEZ EREGHRD
M #712,852,000% oC (& — L
41 12,248,0004: 7T) ©
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and loan receivables. Management
has a credit policy in place and the exposures to these
credit risks are monitored on an ongoing basis.

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9, which
permits the use of the lifetime expected credit losses
provision for all trade and other receivables. To measure
the expected credit losses, trade and other receivables have
been grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and identified
the key economic variables impacting credit risk and
expected credit losses. It considers available reasonable and
supportive forwarding-looking information.

Loan receivables

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management of the
Group has delegated a team responsible for determination
of credit limits, credit approval and other monitoring
procedures to ensure that follow-up action is taken for the
recoverable amount. In addition, the Group reviews the
recoverable amount of each individual’s loan receivables at
the end of each reporting period to ensure that adequate
impairment loss are made for irrecoverable amounts.

The Group manages and analyses the credit risk for
each of their new and existing clients before standard
payment terms and conditions are offered. If there is no
independent rating, the Group assesses the credit quality
of the customer based on the customer’s financial position,
past experience and other factors.

28.

L@ TR (4)
Yo 5 e B A B B B BOSR (A

i £ )l B

AR A 5 BB =k B " 5 B At
JE WA K I e B W B K < BN AR
B> Sl HLA B B A0 8 (R B R B Y
[

A A ] R T A v s i e S SR 9 B AT A
Z AL T Wk TR £ B TR AR - %
HLRE SO T 3 T A B Sy J At R R E R
A EINE Sk - SRt RN
Bl 1R > 5 KO A I G T © AR A5 4 A
{5 B JEL B 45 B o o A SR B O AT IR S
A > Sz ] 5 2 A R e % TR A 5 B R
Z EBREP R K EEAG  A
A AR 2 I R R

JE s £k

Ml EEEEEER A EEEHEED X
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

In determining the ECL of the Group’s loan receivables,
the management assessed the expected losses individually
by estimation based on general economic conditions of the
relevant industry in which the debtors operate, value of
any pledged assets, financial position of the debtors and
an assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group has concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. As at 30 April 2020, the largest
loan receivables was approximately HK$4,133,000 (2019:
HK$11,546,000) and was approximately 19% (2019: 54%)
of the Group’s total loan receivables. The Group seeks to

28.

ST R
ﬁﬁ%ﬁl‘ﬁ'%ﬂﬁﬁ%&ﬂ% )

VW Bk (A1)

P 78 7 A S T B SR AR TR 4 R 4R

MR - A LR 925 A R S 5 N\ 8 T 7 A B
A7 2 1 B AR IR DL ~ AE A 2 KA 1Y
fEME - f ?%J\B’Jﬁh%ﬂkﬁ&ﬁﬁﬁﬂiﬁiﬁﬁ
BT LA B BAR DL T7 ) 89 A 22 At - B
Al T e 4 -

A AE 2 A5 AT A B 4R R A T Bl E
o ﬁA*?*%im}ﬁiJrEl B K HE Y
B 3K B #14,133,0000 o0 ( & — JLAE
11,546,000% 7T) &ﬁaﬁ%@ﬁ%q&%ﬂﬁ@
B2 H19% ( F—JUEE 1 54%) - A4

minimise its risk by dealing with counterparties which have R EG TR R I 25 B T AT
good credit history. S VA JE B i & B Ik o
Loan receivables JRE W £ 5k
As at 30 April 2019
R_F—RLAENA=1+H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
5 — BB o 9 PR Bt
HKS$000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HKS$’000
T T T T
Loan receivables, gross JE i B K > AR 21,332 = = 21,332
Less: ECL on loan Uk B i R 3K TR 0
receivables [ER=A 1,009 = = 1,009
Loan receivables, net TE B 3K R 20,323 = = 20,323
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT

OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

28. &I H (

)

§O A B A O ()

JE s £k

(%)

As at 30 April 2020
RF_RAENA=1H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
BB HMEE EENi:3E HEt
HKS$000 HKS$000 HKS$’000 HKS$’000
T T T#IT T T
Loan receivables, gross JRE A B K > HAR 22,160 = = 22.160
Less: ECL on loan W M i B R TR
receivables (ER=y it 1,921 = = 1,921
Loan receivables, net JRE A 3K AR 20,239 = = 20,239
Movements for ECL of loan receivables are as follows: JE U B KRS SRR 2 s Ean
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
WP o 3= 5 PR EL HaEt
HKS$000 HK$000 HK$000 HK$’000
T T T T T T FH T
At 30 April 2018 e AN S
— HKAS 39 MWH=+H
—HwgstER
53998 1,112 = = 1,112
Allowance for ECL JRE e 8 B TR S
on loan receivables B 18 2 B (103) = = (103)
As 30 April 2019 W_F— L4
MH=+H 1,009 - = 1,009
Allowance for ECL JARE Wi £ K TE 1A
on loan receivables {5 B4R 2 15l 912 = = 912
As at 30 April 2020 AR TR
WH=+H 1,921 - = 1,921
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FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

Loan receivables are categorised into the following stages
by the Group:

Stage 1

Loan receivables have not experienced a significant increase
in credit risk since origination and impairment recognised
on the basis of 12 months ECL (12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Loan receivables to customers have experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment is recognised on the basis of lifetime ECL (Lifetime
ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3
Loan receivables that are in default and considered credit
impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit impaired).

In assessing whether the credit risk of loan receivables
has increased significantly since initial recognition, the
Group compares the risk of default occurring on the
loan receivables assessed at the reporting date with that
assessed at the date of initial recognition. In making this
reassessment, the Group considers that a default event
occurs when (i) the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit
obligations to the Group in full, without recourse by the
Group to actions such as realising security (if any is held);
or (ii) the financial asset is past due for more than 90 days.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable, including
historical experience and forwardlooking information that
is available without undue cost or effort.

28.
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IR B
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A5 FF Al B SR 30 15 B LB B A0 25 e SR
DASK J2: 1 £ 55 25 109 0 IR - A 42 [ R
H 1 S Ah A 8 A 5 R A A 40 Y Ja e B
A5 HE R B IR A 0 SRR AT L o AE 4
AT E R RTAG I > AR R 2 88 A A T A i
W JB 72 4 ¢ () 18 KON R K T B AE A 4R ]
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FeA) B IE DLT /) A 48 [ 2% O A HoAR B
FEHE 5 (i) 5% < P Ja HHBBR90 H o A
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Loan receivables (continued)

Stage 3 (continued)

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration in a
loan receivables’s external or internal credit rating (if
available);

- existing or forecast changes in the technological,
market, economic or legal environment that have a
significant adverse effect on the debtor’s ability to
meet its obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.

As at 30 April 2020, the allowance for expected credit
losses on loan receivables was HK$1,921,000 based on
expected loss rates up to 100% applied to different stages.

Trade receivables

The Group has a concentration of credit risk in certain
individual customers. At the end of each reporting
period, the five largest receivables balances accounted for
approximately 66% (2019: approximately 65%) of the trade
receivables and the largest receivable was approximately
23% (2019: approximately 25%) of the Group’s total
trade receivables. The Group seeks to minimise its risk by
dealing with counterparties which have good credit history.
Majority of the trade receivables that are neither past due
nor impaired have no default payment history.

28.

L@ TR (4)
Yo 5 e B A B B B BOSR (A

M SR (40
A3 B (4
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BEHE 0 5 22 100% A9 T8 1 k5 18 2R B
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

28.

L@ TR (5)
S 5 e B A B B B BOOR (A)

VI W S 5 MRk ()

Trade receivables-day pass due

Wi B 5 R o — HEL 0 1

Not pass  Within 30 Over 90
As 30 April 2019 due days  31-60 days  61-90 days days Total
REZE-AEMA=ZAH i 30H 4 31-60H 61-90H  90HLIE st
Expected credit losses (‘ECL”) rate 115 £ 518 % 0.02% 0.08% 0.35% 28.71% 52.54% 0.34%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) 4R & (T 0) 40,146 9,611 3,750 209 177 53,893
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) 2MENGE SR
(F¥#T) ©9) @®) (13) (60) 93) (183)
40,137 9,603 3,737 149 84 53,710
Trade receivables-day pass due
JE WS B S Wik — 2 0 B
Not Within Over
As 30 April 2020 pass due 30 days  31-60 days  61-90 days 90 days Total
REZRZFENA=TH A 30H A 31-60H 61-90H  90HW E gt
Expected credit losses (‘ECL”) rate i {7 5 H % 0.44% 0.44% 5.02% 5.02% 17.08% 1.33%
Gross carrying amount (HK$°000) 4 MeT ff (i c) 48,964 10,439 5,095 4,750 1,031 70,279
Lifetime ECL (HK$’000) EWENGREER
(%) (216) (46) (256) (239) (176) (933)
48,748 10,393 4,839 4,511 855 69,346
Other receivables At J8E 8 35 I

Other receivables relating to accounts that are long
overdue with significant amounts, known insolvencies or
non-response to collection activities, they are assessed
individually for impairment allowance. The Group
recognised the allowance for expected credit losses by
assessing the credit risk characteristics of debtor, discount
rate and the likelihood of recovery and considering the
prevailing economic conditions.

WO A HESMRERZIRA - AT
7 B [ R 65 5 28 WO ) 2 At ik
TEL > B 00 Tk 488 4 1 AR A o A 4R 1 7
3 G (B N 22 AR B LB e G B B R
Wi [|] 22 T RE TR DL % 25 R B AT A K D A
PR TS B R A
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Trade receivables (continued)

28.

L@ TR (4)
Yo 5 e B A B B B BOSR (A

VW S Rk (A

The movement of loss allowances for other receivables GRNEER i S IE 14 e 48 45 4 5 &) dn
during the year are as follows: pe
Other
receivables
At W Wk IE
HK$ 000
Tt
At 30 April 2018 WE - NFWUH =1 H
— Amounts re-measured through opening — 5 ) R R
— accumulated losses — REHiE 843
At 1 May 2018 W oFE— NENLA—H 843
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses TE A {5 B0 e 48 45 4 48 ) (19)
At 30 April 2019 WZF—IJUFEMHA =1+H 824
Reversal of allowance for expected credit losses TH W5 B s 1R B 43 Il (824)
At 30 April 2020 WECRAENH = H 824

Other credit risks

In relation to the Group’s deposit with bank, the Group
limits its exposure to credit risk by placing deposits with
financial institution with high credit rating and no recent
history of default. The directors consider that the Group’s
credit risk on the bank deposits is low. Management
continues to monitor the position and will take appropriate
action if their ratings are changed. As at 30 April 2020 and
2019, the Group has no significant concentration of credit
risk in relation to deposit with bank.

£ 68 R B

HEA B AT O SRAT 2 A T & AS SR
75 1 A AT % ﬁmMEmF;&ﬁHL%
S 4 i A A0 Bk 2 4 R RE S FE DL SAIK BT
K% 2 A5 BB o 3 B RR Ay > A AR AT
TE3K 2 A5 B a1 A - 45 2L 4 A s 5K
BAR L > S 516 A 18 45 2 BT AR 58 e R U
BATE) o N B B4R K = F—JLAE A
= H o AR B R AR EE
JE I v i 4R Ao
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued)
FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk

Liquidity risk relates to the risk that the Group will not
be able to meet its obligations associated with its financial
liabilities that are settled by cash or other financial assets.

In the management of the liquidity risk, the Group
monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash equivalents
to finance the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects
of fluctuations in cash flows. The management of the
Group is satisfied that the Group has sufficient financial
resources to meet its financial obligations as they full due
through monitoring internally generated funds, raising new
funds through placing of shares and monitoring closely on
the utilisation of other borrowings.

The Group also relied on other borrowings as a significant
source of liquidity. The Group’s policy is to regularly
monitor current and expected liquidity requirements and
its compliance with lending covenants, and to arrange
additional banking facilities, to ensure that it maintains
sufficient reserves of cash to meet its liquidity requirements
in the short and longer term.

The following table details the Group’s remaining
contractual maturity for its non-derivative financial
liabilities. The table has been drawn up based on the
undiscounted cash flows of financial liabilities based on
the earliest date on which the Group can be required to
pay. The maturity dates for other non-derivative financial
liabilities are based on the agreed repayment dates.

28.

L@ TR (5)
S 5 e B A B B B BOOR (A)

i B & 5 B
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

28. FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (continued) 28. &WTH (4)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT Yo 5 I 4 PR B B SR ()
OBJECTIVES AND POLICIES (continued)

Liquidity risk (continued) WE & &R bE (%)

The following table includes both interest and principal N RGNS R AR B R - R A B
cash flows. To the extent that interest flows are floating BAVEE R R Z TR R > AR R B R
rate, the undiscounted amount is derived from interest rate e 75 1A M &5 R R 2 I R HEATAS o

at the end of the reporting period.

Liquidity and interest rate tables B B K F 5
Weighted Repayable Total
average on Less than 1to5 undiscounted Carrying
interest rate demand 1 year years cash flows amount
Tk AR RN B4
FRHAE  ERIEE 1N 1E5% bk g-k i i

% ~ HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS$000
% T T T T T

2020 “ERIEE

Non-derivative financial liabilities Ik fij A 4 i £1 1%

Trade and other payables B 5 B LA IEAT 3R n/a 4 i F - 20,233 - 20,233 20,233

Deposits and accrued expenses 4 R RESHE n/a 4 i H - 38,068 - 38,068 38,068

Borrowing from a director ] — 4 & S - 22,022 - - 22,022 22,022

Lease liabilities HEARE 4.49 - 12,467 28,096 40,563 37,633
22,022 70,768 28,096 120,886 117,956

2019 ZE R

Non-derivative financial liabilities Ik fij 4 4 i £ %

Trade and other payables B 5 B A REAT 3R n/a N = 17,752 = 17,752 17,752

Deposits and accrued expenses e RERH A n/a A ] = 35,071 = 35,071 35,071

Borrowing from a director ] — % - 12,596 - - 12,596 12,596

Obligations under finance leases e AR 3.54 - 466 - 466 457
12,596 53,289 - 65,885 65,876

The amounts included above for variable interest rate RSN ] A R T H 2 AR

instruments for non-derivative financial liabilities are S Rl B A7 T A R R AT I i ) A

subject to change if changes in variable interest rates differ WIRE 185 8 2 Al R R R B B e R e

to those estimates of interest rates determined at the end of 5o

the reporting period.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

This note provides information about how the Group

determines fair values of various financial assets and

liabilities.

(I

FAIR VALUE OF THE GROUP’S
FINANCIAL ASSET AND LIABILITY
THAT IS MEASURED AT FAIR VALUE
ON A RECURRING BASIS

The Group’s financial asset and financial liability
at FVTPL is measured at fair value at the end
of each reporting period. The following table
gives information about how the fair value of the
financial instrument is determined.

Fair value
VAN
2020
ZEROERE

Financial instruments
ZRMIH
Financial asset at HK$42,870,000 C
FVTPL
— equity securities
listed in Hong
Kong
BARBEFABRREZ
CHERE
—REE LT
A 7%
Financial asset at HKS$Nil £t
FVTPL
— unlisted equity securities
BEARMEF ABRZ
SHERE
— K bR A 5

During the year ended 30 April 2020, all shares in

level 2 were transfered to level 1.

During the year ended 30 April 2019, there was no
transfer between instrument in Level 1 and 2.

29.

2019

ZE 0K

HK$40,827,0007% 7T

HK$3,064,000¥ 7©

S THZ A il B

7% B 4 04 A 4 0 A R %
B R 2 A S B o

(D AR IR DL A i 2 AR
e R R 2 A Rl

AL A REFE AR 2
B D i BARS A  A
WRHE N R (ER R - TR EE
b TH 2N Rl k&

Ko

Fair value Valuation techniques
hierarchy and key inputs
ARMEES  MGES LSRR
Level 1 Quoted bid prices in an
H—% active market

8 Bl 05 B i 2 B
Level 2 Calculated based on
B quoted bid prices of

the equity in an equity

fund securities listed

in Hong Kong as which

the fund invested
IR B P E 2 1

FELWZRAGSRL

P A BB

PEE T FFENA =+ HE
AR BN T Iy i R R
— & o

REE_F - NAFEWMA=+HIE
R O — AR R TR Z M
JHE 1L WAL
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS OF

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS (Continued)

(IT) FAIR VALUE OF THE FINANCIAL
ASSET AND FINANCIAL LIABILITY
THAT ARE NOT MEASURED AT FAIR
VALUE ON A RECURRING BASIS
The fair value of other financial assets and financial
liabilities is determined in accordance with generally
accepted pricing models based on discounted
cashflow analysis.

The directors of the Company consider that the
carrying amounts of other financial assets and
financial liabilities carried at amortised cost
approximate their respective fair values.

RETIREMENT AND PENSION SCHEMES
The Group currently participates in MPF Scheme for all
qualifying employees in Hong Kong. The assets of the
scheme are held separately from those of the Group in
funds under the control of trustees. The Group contributes
5% of the relevant payroll costs or capped at HK$1,500
(or higher percentage based on the choice of employees)
to the MPF Scheme in Hong Kong, which contribution is
matched by employees.

The employees of the Company’s subsidiaries in the PRC
are members of retirement benefits schemes operated by
the PRC government. The relevant PRC subsidiaries were
required to contribute certain percentages of the monthly
salaries of their current employees to fund the benefits. The
employees were entitled to retirement pension calculated
with reference to their basic salaries on retirement and
their length of service in accordance with the relevant
government regulations. The PRC government was
responsible for the pension liability to the retired staff.

Contributions to the above schemes for the year
ended 30 April 2020 made by the Group amounted to
HK$5,100,000 (2019: HK$6,389,000).

29. &M THZARMEGE (5)

(I1) 3l b 42 8 4 2% ¥E DL 24 e fH it 3t
ZEMEREREBAKZ AR

fii

HibemEEREMAEZIAR
{EL 7T LS B B 4 0 & 00 AT A ik

Z s e AR A E

Ay T R T 1R 8 A B AR
HMteMmEELREMAMRZIE

T L B A% B 2 8 SR E AR A

30. 3Bk B8 il

ALEHEAMALEBEHBLESEERS
WG GBI EEEZTANEET
DIESE B AER EENHES-
AL 351 A BH 3B 4 AR 2 5% 3K LA 1,500
TR BB (SRR B0 & H A )
Tia] 5 s T A 4 A > B Bk SRR A

G

A% m) o B A W 2 B TS B B
JIr HEE A 1A AR AR AR L 5 B9 R B < A B
W@ A FHEBA R TAHFZETHD
O3> DL R A 488 o AR IR A I
JERLB . B T = 2B AR S Ty HOR AR
hF 2 BE AR 2 M RS A B A o b B BUR

HIBK A TRIEBKREMHTRL-

BEFE _FENHA=+HILEE A%
) bl AR 2 3K 455,100,000

JC (=& —JL4E 1 6,389,000%5 7T ) ©
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS

EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME

The share option scheme of the Company (the “Scheme”)
was adopted pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed
on 15 September 2015 (the “Adoption Date”), which has
a terms of 10 years commencing on the Adoption Date.
The purpose of the New Scheme is to provide the eligible
participants (the “Eligible Participants™) as defined in the
Scheme with the opportunity to acquire interests in the
Company and to encourage the Eligible Participants to
work towards enhancing the value of the Company and its
shares for the benefit of the Company and its shareholders
as a whole. The Board may grant options to the Eligible
Participants, including, but not limited to, (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time, including any executive
directors but excluding any non-executive director) of any
member of the Group or any entity in which any member
of the Group holds any equity interest (the “Invested
Entity”) and (b) any non-executive directors of any
member of the Group or any Invested Entity.

A share option granted by the Company is exercisable at
any time or times during the option period determined by
its directors. The Eligible Participants who accepted the
offer of the option (the “Guarantee”) are not required to
achieve any performance targets before any option granted
under the Scheme can be exercise. The date of the expiry of
the share option determine by the Board which shall not be
later than the 10th anniversary of the commencement date
in respect of such share option. The option acceptance date
should not be later than 28 days after the date of offer. The
exercise price (subject to adjustment as provided therein)
of the option under the New Scheme shall be determined
by the Board but shall not be less than the highest of (i)
the nominal value of the shares; (ii) the closing price per
share as stated in the daily quotation sheet of the Stock
Exchange on the date of grant, which must be a business
day; or (iii) the average closing price per share as stated
in the Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheet for the five
business days immediately preceding the date of grant of
the options.

31.
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For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION
SCHEME (continued)

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the Scheme shall not exceed
such number of shares as required under the Listing
Rules, being 10% of the shares in issue as Adoption Date,
excluding the shares which would have been issuable
pursuant to the options which have lapsed pursuant to the
Scheme.

During the year ended 30 April 2020, no share option
was granted under the Scheme. During the year ended
30 April 2019, an aggregate of 200,000,000 share options
were granted under the Scheme. As at 30 April 2019,
the outstanding 448,330,000 share options representing
approximately 19.9% of the issued share capital of the
Company. However, the total maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon exercise of all outstanding share
options must not exceed 30% of the issued share capital
of the Company from time to time. The number of shares
in respect of which options may be granted to any one
grantee in any 12-month period is not permitted to exceed 1%
of the shares of the Company in issue in such 12-month
period up to and including the proposed date of grant,
without prior approval from the Company’s shareholders.

31.

DA BBy 2 BE W 2 Ak 28 5 (468)
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31. SHARE-BASED PAYMENT 31. DB iz % ()
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION JBe AR &% 53 0 I8 BE it (4
SCHEME (continued)
Movement during the year RN Z )
The following table discloses movements of the Company’s R PR A EE R R B R
share options held by the directors of the Company and TR 2 AN A R A A T 2 s )

employees under the Scheme during both years:

Exercise Exercise Outstanding
price prise as at
before share after share 30 April 2020
consolidation  consolidation after share
which which  Outstanding Outstanding Outstanding consolidation
completed on  completed on at at at  which completed
Option type Date of grant 5May 2020  5May 2020 30 April 2018 Granted 30 April 2019 Granted 30 April 2020  on 5 May 2020
e Jwt 23
TALA kG
REBZRE RIBZRE A e 1%
HAHARG HAHHRR R-Z-N\E REZZ-0E REBZRE RIECRE
AfER AGERE WASNR JWA=AH WA=AH MA=1R
T L gERM W2EHER ZFiff A A gl PR ol AR A B A AT
HKS$ HKS
oy 7
Directors 22 April 2016 0.620 744 21,500,000 - 21,500,000 - 21,500,000 1,791,667
% “E-AENAZTZA
14 September 2018 0.080 0.96 - 40,000,000 40,000,000 - 40,000,000 3,333,333
SE-NERATIA
Employees 22 April 2016 0.620 744 1,210,000 - 1,210,000 - 1,210,000 100,833
fEg “E-AEMAZTCA
14 September 2017 0.138 1.656 225,620,000 - 225,620,000 - 225,620,000 18,801,666
“E-LEARTHA
14 September 2018 0.080 0.96 - 160,000,000 160,000,000 - 160,000,000 13,333,333
“E-NELATIA
248,330,000 200,000,000 448,330,000 - 448,330,000 37,360,832
Exercisable at the TRAE R R A7l
end of the year 248,330,000 448,330,000 448,330,000 37,360,832
Weighted average T L1766

exercise price HKS0.182% 7T HKS0.08# 7T HKS0.137i# 78 - HKS$0.137#7T  HKS0.137# 7
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SHARE-BASED PAYMENT
TRANSACTIONS (continued)
EQUITY-SETTLED SHARE OPTION

SCHEME (continued)

Under the Scheme, share options can be exercised at any
time from the date of acceptance. The Guarantees are not
required to achieve any performance targets before any
option granted under the Scheme can be exercise.

There is no equity-settled share-based payment during the
year ended 30 April 2020 (2019: 8,500,000) were recognised
as expenses in the consolidated statement of profit or loss
and other comprehensive income. The Company had used
the Binomial Option Pricing Model to value the share
options granted.

The following major assumptions were used to calculate
the fair values of share options granted:

31.

VLB By 7 RE W 2 A K 28 B (
JBE AR s S0 JBE A it 0 (#0)

FRE w1 B > 18 e R ] i 422 4 H I3 4% BB IRR A
i o PR N AEAT (0 AR 98 51 ) 48 352 2 AT AT 1t
5 B i 2 % ) AT ] 3 45 F A o

HE T ZFENA = +E1J}:¢f“mjt
AT A S DL B A 2 AR (=
F— JLEE 1 8,500,000) it &5 A 18 25 M H
by 2 T Wi 2 5 R R 2 BH S o AR A W
TE 3300 o A A X B R 2 B R
Ak AE -

PATR F ik B4R 2 1 T HE 2 o e I BT R
Mz EZRR:

Grant date AW 14 September 2018 14 September 2017 22 April 2016
—E— 4 e S v ZERNE
JLH+MH LA+ H WA —+—H
Exercisable period (RRia:] 10 years £ 10 years 4 10 years 4
Closing share price at grant date BEAMZ IR RE  HKS$0.064% 70 HK$0.138% 7C HK$0.60%5 70
Closing share price immediately FH L H BT
before the grant date uﬁzﬁiﬂﬁf’f HK$0.064¥ 76 HK$0.135% 70 HK$0.60%5 7C
Exercise price before share i e %
consolidation which was effective A R E B
on 5 May 2020 AT 2 AT HK$0.08%5 70 HK$0.138% 7t HK$0.62i# ¢
Exercise price after share e S 2 |
consolidation which was effective HH A A i
on 5 May 2020 R 2 AT E HK$0.96% 70 HK$1.656¥ 70 HKS$7.44%5 70
Expected volatility (Note a) FINE (Hfita) 84.47% 89.60% 79.72%
Expected dividend yield (Note b) FRE R (B iEb) 0% 0% 0%
Risk-free interest rate (Note c) A 5 B3 % (Bt ) 2.39% 1.51% 1.36%

The variables and assumptions used in computing the
fair value of the share options are based on the directors’
best estimate. The fair value of share option varies with
different variables of certain subjective assumptions.

Notes:

(a) The expected volatility was determined with reference to
the historical daily volatilities of the share prices of the
Company.

(b) The expected dividend yield was determined based on the
historical dividend yield payout of the Company.

(c) The risk-free interest rate was determined with reference to
the Hong Kong sovereign bond curve as of with the same
term to maturity.

wH O BB N OB BT R T 2 S R AR R
Ty R T R 2 A R o W AE L SR E AT
WE & T E BB 2 A (] A i g 5 o

() TR T 2 7% AR O A R E LA 2
H 99 g 1T 7 AE

(b) TE 4T BB R T AR A AR 0 R O 1 RE R
R AL B M fHEE o

(c) e Ja o A 2 T 22 B 0 IEE TR A R 2 A
«%E%h#ﬂﬂfmﬁﬁ?ﬂm
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 285 A M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

32. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 32. BB IT RS
In the ordinary course of its business, the Group entered A 55 A HH 55 i AR vh BB B 5 R o
into the following transactions with related parties: TG
(A) At 30 April 2020 and 2019, interest-free loans were (A) AR TRER ZFE—JUFEMA
obtained from Mr. Li, a director as disclosed in =tH - RREFFLEEG LT
Note 22. K CUNB FE22 T $5%) -
(B)  Compensation of Key Management Personnel B) EEEHEHAABZHM
The remuneration of directors of the Company and ApmlER R T EER NG
other members of key management during the year TR A Z BT
were as follows:
2020 2019
“RTRE —ENE
HK$’000 HK$000
T8 Tt
Fees and salaries M4 I & 5,310 4,564
Retirement benefit schemes AR AR B F ] E 3
contributions 191 189
5,501 4,753
The remuneration of directors of the Company and ARAFEF R EEEHANE Z M
key management is determined by the remuneration o JIMHMEE G2 HMALE
committee having regard to the performance of VARE kXY ¥

individuals and market trends.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

o £ B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

33. RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES
ARISING FROM FINANCING

33. WY E A A 2 A AT IR

ACTIVITIES
Lease
liabilities/
obligation
Other  under finance
borrowings lease Total
s AR
g i
He Al £ £ R A
HKS$000 HK$’000 HKS$000
TH#IT TH# T THE T
At 1 May 2018 W oE—/\FHALH—H (4,236) (965) (5,201)
Accrued interest JREFFILE - 26 26
Interest paid EATFE - (26) (26)
Financing cash outflow il B 4 O 7,376 508 7,884
Financing cash inflow Pl S B 4 A (15,736) - (15,736)
At 30 April 2019 and 1 May 2019 i* —ZF—JLFMHA =+H
KZZ—JHFEAA—H (12,596) (457) (13,053)
Lease liabilities raised upon T RE A v A S i 45 e I
application of HKFRS 16 HI16MEREL
L A i - (50,496) (50,496)
Accrued interest JE ST F) B - 1,967 1,967
Interest paid AT LR = (1,967) (1,967)
Financing cash outflow Pl B 4 9,560 11,642 21,202
Financing cash inflow Bl & A (18,986) = (18,986)
Exchange realignment [ffE 58, 3 2% — 1,678 1,678
As 30 April 2020 AR ZFAETMA =+ H (22,022) (37,633) (59,655)
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 285 A M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

34.

PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES
The following are the particulars regarding the Company’s
subsidiaries at 30 April 2020 and 2019 which principally
affect the results, assets or liabilities of the Group. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that a full

34.

list of all the subsidiaries will be of excessive length.

These subsidiaries operate principally in the place of

establishment/incorporation unless otherwise indicated.

Name of subsidiary

il Pk

The Industrial Investment
Company Limited

QPL (Holdings) Limited
WELEARAA

QPL Limited (Note a)
RERRAT (K a)

Place of

establishment/

incorporation Principal activities

/MBS FEEH

Cayman Islands ~ Investment holding

HEHE BERR

Hong Kong [nvestment holding

Fik REER

Hong Kong Manufacture and sale of

i integrated circuit

leadframes, heatsinks,
stiffeners and
related products

S0t BB SRR B AE
B R R AEE R

Paid up

registered capital/
Issued share capital
CHthE A/
SRITRA

2,050 ordinary shares
of HKSI each

20508 B R EELE T
Va3l

408,000,772 ordinary
shares of
HK$0.04 each
408,000,720 Bt
i E0.047 70 7 L4 it

2 ordinary shares of
HKS1 each and
1,000 non-voting
deferred shares of
HKS! each (Note b)

WEREEIETL
TR 0008: 4
1T BT
AR (M7 b)

T ZERE A v

DR AR ZF ZRER L —JLFEMA
ST HEEPRAREEES G AE
AN FMHE AT FENRE AR AT EH
L H T M A T 2 4 R R T
B o B AR AN > R% S I N E)
FLRST H M B ST M B R A o

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capitalfissue share capital held by

PR MA A/ TR RA T

Company Subsidiary

KA WAl
2020 2019 2020 2019
“RORE CTNF ZB0RE CToNF
% % % %
244 244 97.56 97.56
100 100 - -
- - 100 100
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 255 A A

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% = F ZFA4F H =+ H IEF

34. PARTICULARS OF PRINCIPAL
SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

Name of subsidiary

L} PRk

QPL (US) Inc.

Enma Holdings Limited

Quality Capital
HEEAHRAA

Excellence Strive
Holdings Limited

Notes:

Place of

establishment/

incorporation Principal activities

VGO RS

The USA Distribution of integrated

% circuit leadframes and
investment holding

IMERNERDIRIE

REEER

British Virgin Island Securities trading

SEEARE  RERE

Hong Kong Provision of financial
ik assistance and advance
PROAHH 0 K

British Virgin Island Property Investment
EEELRE  WERE

(a) Operating principally in the PRC.

34.

Paid up

registered capital/
Issued share capital
CEEMEA/
SRITNA

150,603 ordinary shares
of no par value,
paid up to
USD4,071,281
150,603 4 (A
ERERS40T1 81T

1 ordinary share of
USDI each

IR BRI E1£
LEER

1 ordinary share of
HKS1 each

IR R (1 e
e

1 ordinary share of
USDI each

IRE R EEET
VA3 1

(b) The deferred shares, which are held by the Group, are
practically of no economic value.

None of the subsidiaries had issued any debt securities at
any time during both years or at the end of both years.

FEERE A kR (4

Proportion of nominal value of
registered capitalfissue share capital held by

R A/ TR AR A T 0

Company Subsidiary

AR W
2020 2019 2020 2019
“RORE CTNE ZBSRE TR
% % % %
06.4 06.4 336 336
100 100 - _
100 100 - -
100 100 - -

(a) 2 R

(b) H A 4 B R AT 2 R A T 7 T B O
AT AT 8 P AE (L -

A T A8 A BE TR A AT R (] B4 2 A A AR
AR WA B 2w B AT AL T AR B A
%,
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35.

o o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #% & “F4FE A =+ H IL4FE

SUMMARISED FINANCIAL 35. AN ) W B P
INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY A B A A S 1 A R R 2 B S IR
Information about the statement of financial position of L3R 2 G R -
the Company at the end of the reporting period includes:
2020 2019
R OERE —E A
HK$’000 HK$’000
Tt Tt
Non-current assets Ik B A
Investments in subsidiaries WM E A W 22 1 431 431
Current assets i B & A
Amounts due from subsidiaries JRE WAz BA Je 2 ] 3k A 325,436 365,146
Bank balances and cash SRAT 45 R LB & 73,731 65,790
399,167 430,936
Current liabilities i B £ £
Amounts due to subsidiaries JREAST i Ja 2 W) R IH 2,286 2,286
Accrued expense e &t % 2,843 812
5,129 3,098
Net current assets B S E R E 394,037 427,838
394,469 428,269
Share capital (Note 24) JBeA (it it24) 180,501 180,501
Share premium and reserves J A5 vai 18 % fti A 213,968 247,768

394,469 428,269
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Ao B 255 A A

For the year ended 30 April 2020 #Z% = F “F4F 0 A =+ H IL4FEE

35. SUMMARISED FINANCIAL 35. ARAEWEERE (/)

INFORMATION OF THE COMPANY

(continued)

MOVEMENT IN SHARE PREMIUM AND B A e AT B i 45 5% )

RESERVES

Capital Share
Share  Contributed  redemption options  Accumulated
premium surplus reserve reserve losses Total

Rl HARR RAREGG  WRERE  RHES it
HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000
Tk Fibx Fibx Fibx Fibx Fikx

(Note a)
(Hita)
At 30 April 2018 RZF—=AEMA=1H 696,688 131,129 12,310 27,141 (613,840) 253,428
Loss and total comprehensive expense 44 48} 2 i
for the year ek = = = = (14,160) (14,160)
Recognition of equity-settled TERR AL B DM RO B A 2
shared-based payment fi = S = 8,500 S 8,500
At 30 April 2019 REZF-NEMA=1H 696,688 131,129 12,310 35,641 (628,000) 247,768
Loss and total comprehensive expense 4/ 48 R 2
for the year B 4 - = = = (33,800) (33,800)
At 30 April 2020 REZZFEMA=1H 696,688 131,129 12,310 35,641 (661,800) 213,968
Notes: Bt -
(a) Capital redemption reserve represents the excess of the (a) A [ AR I ] A 4 ) 35 A
consideration paid for repurchase of the Company’s AT AR A 8 A B 8 [ 093 T 2 B 4

ordinary shares over the par value of respective
repurchased shares.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

36.

37.

38.

o o B 5 R M

For the year ended 30 April 2020 # % = ZF ZZA4F H =+ H IE4F

MAJOR NON-CASH TRANSACTIONS
During the year ended 30 April 2020, the Group had
non-cash additions to right-of-use assets and lease liabilities
of approximately HK$50,496,000 and HK$50,873,000
respectively.

EVENTS AFTER THE END OF THE
REPORTING PERIOD

Pursuant to an ordinary resolution passed by the
shareholders of the Company at the special general
meeting held on 29 April 2020 (“SGM7”), with effect
from 5 May 2020, (i) twelve issued shares of a par value
of HKS$0.08 each in the issued share capital of the
Company be consolidated into one share of a par value of
HK$0.96 each in the issued share capital of the Company
(“Consolidated Share”) and (ii) the issued share capital of
the Company be reduced by (a) rounding down the number
of Consolidated Share in the issued share capital of the
Company to the nearest whole number by cancelling any
fraction of a Consolidated Share in the issued share capital
of the Company; and (b) cancelling the paid up capital of
the Company to the extent of HK$0.95 on each of the then
issued Consolidated Share such that the par value of each
issued Consolidated Share will be reduced from HK$0.96
to HKS$0.01.

Besides, the Directors are not aware of any significant
events affecting the Group subsequent to the financial
year and up to the date of this report. However, under the
outbreak of COVID-19, the Group’s operating environment
would be increasingly challenged when the epidemic
continues. The Group will continued to adopt prudent and
risk balancing management approach in the coming years.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 on 1 May
2019 using the modified retrospective approach. Under
the transition methods, comparative information is not
restated. Further details of the change in accounting
policies are disclosed in note 2 of the consolidated financial
statements.

36.

37.

38.

FHREHERY

REE F CFENA =+ HIEFEE AR
LEMHAREEE LB A EN B &
4> 7l B %150,496,000% 7T £ 50,873,000

4 390 4% e 1

WMEANFABRRK -F _FFMA
AU H BT 2 R RO (TR
Ak e )z FmkmE, 5 _F
FERLALABE - OF T+ AL ALD
BEAT B AS TP R B I (0,087 o6 2 B B AT
ety & B — AR A B3 AT A 4
R TH(E0.96 W 76 2 & BE A (T4 DFeA 1)
J2 (i) AR\ 2 O AT AR A T e T
5 (a) B M gL 8 A\ BB AT I A AT
] 2R G F B 43 > o AR 20 ) 2 B AT IROA o
A DR SCE )N R A R T G
Ko (b) ¥4 B M IR B 35 AT & HF B 430.9595
TG EE B AR 0N T E OB AS > B I B AT
A DGy 22 1 E R 0.963 JT HIl K £0.017

ol

Bt 2 S > B 2 800N 0 T B BUAR R AR M
HEAR H YR B B AT E R
A o SR - 76 18 3507 B e IR 2 R 1
LT - 74 5 ] 1Y 568 BR 5514 i 2 1 A8 A
T 78580 U2 o A% 2 [ I AR 2 A s A A AR
B AR L 10 o 4 A B 9

o 7

AEER _F-NLELA - HRAKE
T W15 T U ME T A s B A Y T GR
165% o RIFH P Ty 3% > I M5 LT o
A B a R EUR 2 B P R AR Y
5 ¥ B RE2 400 % -
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QPL INTERNATIONAL HOLDINGS LIMITED

FINANCIAL SUMMARY
S 75 1L 22

A SR T A Bk B A B0 KSR A AR B EGR Y
A A B A E 2 BB AR S

The financial summary of the Group for the past five financial
years, as extracted from the Group’s published audited
consolidated financial statements, are set out below:

REVENUE AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR
ATTRIBUTABLE TO SHAREHOLDERS

I SR A A R M Ak B s 1

For the year ended 30 April
REWA =+ HIEEE

2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
TE-RNFE ZE - ZEFE-NFE ZEFE SEREOEE
HK$000 HKS$’000 HK$000 HKS$'000 HK$°000
T Tk T T T
Revenue g 287,021 280,719 315,861 282,743 274,577
Loss before taxation i B T s 1R (1,054) (62,444) (210,294) (44,508) (67,337)
Taxation (charge) credit BLIA () K5 (9,937) 7,294 (1,129 (914) (808)
Loss for the year attributable AR RO A
to shareholders (i (10,991) (55,150)  (211,423) (45,422) (68,145)
ASSETS AND LIABILITIES B K A
At 30 April
PHMH=+H
2016 2017 2018 2019 2020
ZE-RNE ZF-LE ZF-NE ZF-NE SR ORE
HK$000 HKS$000 HK$000 HK$'000 HK$°000
T Tt T Tt TG
Property, plant and equipment VESE $1Y & 17,516 27,843 162,701 160,853 126,783
Right-of-use assets f I REE 7 - - = = 33,856
Financial asset at FVTPL N R ERI AR Z
SRl 84,214 247,908 50,057 43,891 42,870
Bank balances and cash WATEE R KB4 641,668 322,761 150,249 131,276 154,892
Other current assets HoAt B 108,136 186,828 212,494 198,442 162,066
Current liabilities i B=K i (93,135) (90,730) (71,981) (66,685) (93,582)
758,399 694,610 503,520 467,777 426,885
Share capital JEE A 180,501 180,501 180,501 180,501 180,501
Share premium and reserves B A7 s A I s 568,345 513,145 322,562 287,276 219,786
Shareholders’ fund B 4 748,846 693,646 503,063 467,777 400,287
Deferred taxation iR HE R IH 8,586 = = = =
Lease liabilities/obligations under HEaE MEnE
finance leases K 967 964 457 - 26,598
759,399 694,610 503,520 467,777 426,885
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